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TROY AND THE COTTLE FAMILY
by Robert M. Cotde

The settlement of Troy as it is, was probahly due

to a report in Woodstock, Vermont in 1798, that the <li-
mate of the West was a good cure for consumption and
to the comresponding failare of the firm of Ransom and
Cottle, which had conducted a large mercantile busi-
ness, mostly on credit. The junior member, Capt.
Warren Cotile, had become disgusied with the simation,
decided to seck a new home in Ehe west, Taking his
youngest son, Ira, who was about eightesn, Warren left
Woodstock in 179€ and found a temporary place in St
Charles county about a hall of mile north of where
Cottleville is now. Then, leaving his son Ira here,
Warren wenl back to Woodstock for the rest of his fami-
ly. His enthusiastic report of the terrilory appealed very
strongly to his brather Joseph and his family who also
decided ta moved West. However, Joseph selected his
name to the northwest of Warren, where Troy now
stands. Joseph Cottle and his son-in-law, Zadock
Woods, staked off their claims on oppasite sides of the
town spring in Troy. Land Commission records show
that Joseph received & “Permit to Seitle™ dated Sept. 2,
1799 and had surveyed his land claim by Dec. 23, 1799
Joseph erected the first house in Troy, 2 log cabin, in
1801, Quite soon after his arrival in Missouri, Joseph
was appointed “Deputy Surveyor” for the St. Charies
district of the Louisiana Territory, which was that por-
tion of the land between the Mississippi and Missou
rivers and north to Canada. Joseph was the original sur-
veyor of a significant part of the jand in St. Churles and
Lincoln Counties. Tha Missouri State Archives contain
maech of his work.

On September 16, 1819 (one hundred seventy
five yeass ago), Joseph Cottle, also known as Deacon
Cotile, topether with is son Lee F.T. and Zadock Woods,
surveyed and laid out the plat for the town of Troy, con-
taining 200 tots. Joseph’s home was on lat numbes 189,
adiscent to the strong spring. On this same date, Joseph
and his wiles, Azubah, deeded to the people of the town
of Troy a piece of ground (hat included the spring, with
the reservation that a “Spring House” 10 feet wide and
30 feet long be boilt immediately below the head of the
spring. Zadock Woods and his wife, Minerva (Cottle),
had town lot number 187. They afso deeded a tract of
land, adioining that land deeded by Foseph, to the peaple
of Troy. The original plat was 2300 feet long by 950 feet

wide, except al the southern end, it did not cxtend west
of main sizeet and was only 700 feet wide, It was about
this time, that the name of John Cottle first appeared in
the records, when he purchased a lot from his brother
Joseph in December of 1819, (Although 1 was always
told that we are dircet descendants of Joseph Cottle,
during the rescarch of this information, 1 discovered that
we are really direct descendants of John Coule, his
brother). Documents that mention John Cottle are quite
searce and only a few have been located. The fist men-
tion of John was in 1817 in the census of St Charles
Diistrict, which incladed what is now Lincola County.

Al of the town dwellings of the town were pro-
tected from Indian attacks by a stockade or fort, which
had been erected by Zudock Woods. Woods Fort was the
most exictisive fort in the territory now inciuded by
Lingcola County. Within the fort, was also the first tavemn
in Lincoln County, built and operated by Zadock
Woods. During the War of 1812-15, some of the offi-
cers stationad at the fort were Nathan Boone, Capt.
Deniel M. Roone, and Capt. Calloway, who were sons
and the grandson of the famous Danie! Boone. Lt. Zach
Taylar (afterward (ieneral and President Taylor) was
also stationed at the fort ané commanded many local cit-
izens, including the Cottles. Tt is said that some of the
fimbers from the fort were used to build the old Cotile
house near Moscow Mills, which still stands.

Deacon (Joseph) Cottle was a dependable, quite,
mild-mannered, and deeply religious man. He did not
migrate to Texas, fike all the rest of the members of his
family, probably because he was past 70 hy then. He
remained in Troy, comtinued to self lots, and in 1831, he
apparently sold the remainder of the town lots and deed-
ed his extensive farm lands to two sons, Sherman ard
Almond, Joseph derived a major portion of his inceme
from Ihe sale of the town lots, however he also had
income from his horse powered grisi mill, from farming,
surveying, and from his office of Justice of the Peace.
Ne Jater record of Joseph is found, and it is believed that
he disposed of these properties in anticipation of hig
death. (He is believed lo be buried in the Troy ceme-
tety, but to date no records have been be found))

After about thirty vears in Missouri, the urge to
move came again, and dlmost afl {he Cottles left for
California and Texas. John was the enly one of the fami-
Iy to stay, which accounts for the fact that there are no
dircet descendants of Joseph round. The crowning
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reward for the Cottle’s fove for adventure is probably
the naming of Cotile County in Texas for George
Washingion Cottle, one of the martyrs of “the Alamo”.
The Cottles have been active and influential in
the Troy eormunity and Lincoeln county aver the years,
as active church members, prominent farmers, and hav-
ing held various government positions and public
offices. | really regrel that 1 hadn't taken more interest
in tracing my family heritage while my Aunnt Mary
Cotile Tumbull was living, who could have answered so

_many questions that now remain open, probably forever.

My family wee, fraced baek from my Faiber,
William A. Cottle to John Cottle, the brother of Joseph,
is as follows:

iohn Cottle (Elizabeth Allen) - 5 children

Edward Coltbe, {Celia Jamnison), - 16 children

{.ouis De Montimer Ceottle (Elizabeth Caroline
Seyrass) - 12 children

William Martial Cottle {S8arah Elizabeth Brownj - 3
children

William Arlington Cottle (Lucy Woolfolk) - 8 children

This family surnome, COTTLE has persisted jor cen-
furies, appearing first abouf the lime of the Roman
Empire, with traces of the same root name prior i this
period. The name is first recorded in England in the
Anglo-French form COTTELL, when William the
Congueror invaded England in J066. The Conile amces-
iy has been iraced back o Willimn Cotile, of Salisbury,
Massachuseits around 1638, My ancesiry goes back Io
Edward Coitle of Murthu’s Virepard, Massachuserts,
who, with hiy five brothers, moved to Woodstock
Vermont in 1772

ZADOCK WOODS FAMILY

Zadock Weods, along with others, armived in St
Eouis and made application for land. 'With the paper-
work completed, they moved westward, In the caravan
with Zadock Woods, his wife Minerva, and their three-
year-old daughter Minerva, was Joseph {Deacon) Cottle
and his wife Azubah, Zadock's mother Keziah, James
Woads and his family, and his younger brother Martin.
‘Warren and Tra Cattle, and Minerva’s brothers, Almond,
Andrew, Lee and Shermar, along with David Bailey and
his widowed sister, Hannah Cottle, They traveled along
to Si. Charles, westward away from the Mississippi to
the banks of the Cuivre. All halted here at Caivre and
most of the caravan seitled there, Deacon Cottle and
Zadock Woods familics chose to joumey westward for
two morc days.¥

When the cabins were completed Joseph
Cottle's was a small one-room dwelling erected south of
the spring, whike Zadock Woods was larger and north of
the spring. David Bailey would later build off to the
scutheast, what would become the towns outer limits.

Woods™ home was chosen as the place of fortifi-
cation from Indian raids, and a second girding of logs
was constructed argund the first,

The land &t the edge of the meadow was cleared
of its timber, to be used for the cabins and stockade.
thus cxpanding the open area around these first
dwellings. Vepetable gardens were planted in March,
and & community field of Indian com and wheat was
laid out at the same time

During [ate summer and falf of the first year
more families arrived in the community. Zadock direct-
«d the building of houses and barny, and the digging of
wells.

In February of 1803 the first child was bom in
the new little town. She was Ardelia, the daughter of
Zadock and Minerva. She was to be one of the first to
be buried in the town, dving of crib death at the age of
seven months. On October 13, 1803, the first son of
Fadock and Minerva Woods was born.  Nomman was
given a middle initial “B” at his christening, perhaps it
honor of the Boones. Just thirteen months later, on
November 17, 1806, Minerve gave birth fo their second
son. He was given the name Montravilie after a2 French
srapper who had befriended the family. Montraville was
a sickly child, developing 2 nervoes dizorder and had
learning disabilities that kept him basically illierate.
Leander the third son was born July 12, 1809. It was this
same year that Zadocl’s mother, Keziah, died.

Zadock, without the biessings of his father-in-
law established an inn and tavern on his property. it
became a gathering place for the people of the region.
Zadock was able to accumulate considerable real cstate
and continued to engage i construction. Mincrva
taught some of the children, including her danghter, Hit-
tle Minerva,

in 1816 Zadock signed on z contract of partner-
ship with Moses Austin who was seeking financial
backing for his lead mining venture in and around
Potosi. By 187, the postwar depression caught the men
in a financial crisis, Woods® finances disappeared. In
1819 all Woods had lefi was the deed to his ian, and the
property on which it and his home siood, and one slave
Wushington. The profit from the inn was nof suflicient
16 keep zoing and none of the children were ofd enough
1o carn income for the family, Zadock was having o



sign promissory noles in exchange for food and sup-
plies.

Zadock and Minerva began to make plans to
{eave for Texas. They had lived on the sume progerty for
21 years, had been citizens of Spain, France and
America. Residents of Upper Louisiana, Missouri
Territary and the State of Missouri. In December, 1823
7adock went to Texas alone, returning in March. On
October 4, 1824 Zadock and his family, along with Lee
Cottie and the slave Washington departed from Troy.
The Woods family arrived in Texas on Ociober 25,
1824,
Sowrce; Zadack and Mimerva Coitle Woods, American

Pivreers by Speilman
* Some sources read that they arrived at the

Clark setiement and Christopher Clark led them to the
spring where they would setile, others that they had vis-
ited the area earlier and had found the spring. Some
material gives the date of 1801 while others that it was
1802. One source gives that all stayed for over a vear in
one cabin, that of Joseph Cottle, and olhers read that
they vocupied separate cabins, Taking uli these differ-
ences we find that they did settde in what was to be Troy
and shared the trials and joys of 2 new settlement.

DAVID BAILEY-
FIRST SHERIFF OF LINCOLN COUNTY

It has not been established when the David
Bailey family came to this area, for some believe they
carme with the Cottle’s and Woods® families and seftled
with members of the Cottic family in the eastern part of
what is now Linceln Counly. Another account gives
them as coming in 1816 or 1818 waveling with daughter
Betsy and her husband Beanet Paimer, who would later
become the first County Clerk, Bailey’s granddaughter,
Sarzh Pratz (wife of John A. Pratt), wrote that he died
June 16, 1826 in Troy. It was his son Col. David Bailey
that was commissioned on January 1, 1819 by acting
Governer Frederick Bates to become the first Sheriff of
Lincoln County.

In addition to his duties as Sheriff of Lincola
County, Col. Bailey was active in community affzirs. He
erected the walls of the first Masonic Hall bailding
about the year 1837 and the bubding stood in an unfin-
ished condition usdil 1851 or 1852 when it was sold to
the trustees of the Universalist Church, and the trustees
of the Masonic Lodge. The societies finisked the build-
ing and owned it in partnership; the Masans occnpying
the upper story and the church the lower. Between 1855
and 1860 the church became disorganized and then fol-

lowed some trouble about the ownership of the building
and about payment of the taxes. Finally the praperty
was sold far taxes, the Masonic Lodge becoming the
purchaser. It stands at the east side of Main Sweet, on
Lot 114 of the ariginal plat of Troy.

Sheriff Bailey served on the board of the first
Agricultural and Mechanical society. He was one of the
trustees of the Lincoln Academy. He was awarded the
contract to build the Arst Court house in Lincoln County
for the amount of $1,500,

Cal. Bailey’s death is given as [864 and accord-
ing to Lincoln County Probate records, he had one son,
Heary Bailey, whose wife was named Heler, and they
were the parents of two children, Lizzie and Susan C.
He owned a farm of 240 acres, bots no. 11,33,34,29,37
in the Prairie Hath tract of land. As noteworthy as this
gentleman was to Troy he iies in an vnmarked grave.
The May 8, 1914 newspaper stated that the grave of
David Bailey in the Troy Cemelery witt be marked by a
suitable headstons or monument by order of the city
council. Mr, Bailey was one of the early settlers of Troy
and one of the town's biggest benefactors and it is just
proper that his last resting place should he marked and
remembered. It secms that this project was never com-
pleted for according to city records there is no marker
for his prave.

JOSHUA N. ROBBINS

Unfortunately the man who named Troy left
very itile history for us. He was the first and only mer-
chant for several vears. H was not until July 8, 1820, the
year of the formiag of Lincoin Cousnty, that he was
gratied a merchant’s Hicense.

Liacoln County Deed records shows that in the
early 180s he purchased a considerable amount of
land. He apparently suffered financial difficulties, along
with others of the time,

Dieed records show that Sheriff David Bailey
and Francis Parker as trustees of Joshuz Robbins, late of
Lincoln County were selling his property for debis.
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WING FAMILY

In 1819 Horace B. Wing and Miss Mary Perkins
of Weodstock, Vermont were united in marriage.  That
same year they started west, the mode of travel heing
quite different what it is today. They started across the
country in a two horse wagon, and traveled on to
Wheeling, West Virginia. There they embarked to a flat
boat and wend down the Ohio River to the Mississippi
River and up to St. Louis. In order to make the boal thip
they had to discard many of the possessioas they had

_brought from Vermont. A grandfather clock that had

been given 10 Mary by her English parents had to be dis-
mantled. The face and works were placed in straw and
brought with them to Troy. (Hiver Simonds made & new
case anid reasserbled the clock. The clock is stll in the
Wing Family. When the young couple wirived in St.
Louis they found it to be an insignificant Indian village
so they maved on to St. Charles. Afler a shoet stay there,
this seemed to be 400 smalt for them and they emigrated
1o the now territory that was to be known as ‘Troy. Here
they joined a group of people who had alse come from
Vermont; the Cottles, Clarks, Collards, and Zadoeck
Wood families.

Wing was a tanner by trade. He developed a
farge tannery in the south part of Troy and made boots,
saddles, and all leather goods for the armies, as well as
fot the local people. His heirs became millers, lumber-
men, judges, and later gavernment workers.

Horace Wing died May 29, 1873 and his wife
Mary died February 9, 1858, Patricia Sleet Achor is the
anly living heir in Troy at this tme.

BLOCK FAMILY

Two Jewish brothers, Emanuel and Eleazer
Biock, came as young men from Bohemia to Missouri
in 1817 and to Lincaln County by 1823 {Tax List) when
they began operating & general store, first in Moscow
Mills, and later in Troy. For a time, Hyman and Phineas
Block, probably cousins, worked in the store, but they
maoved to Louisiana, Mo. around 1840, Elcazer and
Emanuel were active investors in real estate and mort-
gages sround Troy.

An older brother, Wolf Block, had come to St.
Louis in 1795, making the Blocks the first Jews west of
the Mississippi. (Hulletin of the Missouri Historical
Society).

There were no Jewish girls about and, like most
carly Jews in Missouri, they married Christian girls.
Cmanuel mareied Sarzh Hamilton of Woeodstock,
Vermont sad they had |. William Henry who married

Mary J--—, 2. Eliza Ann who married Levi 1. Carr, 3.
Detia Marie who married Joseph Tanner, and 4. Mary
Elen who marricd John E. Dickey.

Eleazer married Lucretia Maria Parker, the
daughter of Francis Parker, Clerk of the Lincoln County
Court, and his wife Catherine Clapp. They had 1.
Thomas Griffin who married Flizabeth “Lissic” Levy
and became a riverboat captain on the Mississippi, 2.
Edward Rates who fell i}l as 2 student at Yale University
and died at the home of his grandfather, Francis Parker.
3, Francis “Frank” Emanuel who married Margaret
“Maggie” Douglas Cochran, daughter of Andrew
Cochran, the Avburn merchant, and moved to Atlants
and became a wealthy candy and ctacker manufacturer,
4. Lucretia Maria who married 1. A, Meysenburg, and
5. Delia who married a Me. Carr.

Jews were not welcome in Troy, and they suf-
fered eontinuous, if minor harassment. From time te
time the brothers were arrested for operating the store
on 2 Sunday {the Jewish Sabbath is on Saturday). The
Sheriff, Valentine Peers, yielded to pressure and arrested
them for playing cards in the store un Sunday, though,
personally, he saw little wrong with it. Some time later
another raid on the store found Vulentine Peers as one of
the card piayers. (Court records and newspaper
ACCOLRLS).

On another occasion, Eleazer sided with a freed
slave, Thomas, wha was being “taken up” by William
Walt. As an ex-siave Thomas had so right to sue.
Eteszer hired a lawyer from St. Louis to protect
Thomas® freedom and Judge Ezra Huni raled in
‘Thomas' favor and admonished Watt. This did littke for
Elcazer’s popularity in Tray.

The harassment took its toll, and the brothers
mowed to St. Louis around 1830, where they became
real estate developers. Emanuel and his wife, however,
are buried in Troy cemctery.

‘the Free Press camied a story about one of the
Block brothers who wrote a letter from St. Louis
addressed stmply “To the girl who has black heir™ and
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on the back “who has not written her futher since...™”
The enderstanding postman delivered the letier, uppend-
ing o message “Write your father!” She did so.

FRANCIS PARKER

Francis Parker was bora in 17%7 in Windsor,
Vermont. He was of Seotch-Irish deseent and his fether
was a Revolutionary soldier. Al the ape of 20, Francis
came West, tarried & while in Illinois, and moved on fo
Missauri and Lincaln County. He confessed Christ pub-
licly in [824, and the next year untied with the
Dardenne Church in 5t Charfes Coungy. Six years later
he set off with others to form a church in Troy. The
estecm in which he was held is shown in the fact that be
was Counly Clerk 32 years and Circuit Clerk at the
same fime for 26 years. Francis Parker was clerk of the
Prestyterian Session for 35 years end during those years
kept a fully writtan and complete history of the Church.
For several years Parker Seminary occupied the first
floor of the present Presbyterian Church Building,

Francis Parker died Sepiember 4, 1865 and is
buried in Troy Cemetery.

JOHN 5. BALL

Iohn S, Ball, first minister of the Troy
Presbyterian Church, was bore in Virginia, December
1773, Hge was iiberally educated, read law, but never
practiced the profession. During the war of 1812, ke
commanded & Virginia regiment and was with his troops
at Fort McHenry near Baltimore when it was bombard-
ed by the British Fleet, He came to Missouri about 1815
and gettled in the Bonhomme neighborbood in St. Lonis
County. In 1832 Colostel Hall moved to a farm in the
vicinity of Troy. His house was on the site of the John E.
Creech home. The wedding of his daughier to Frederick
Bates, the second governor of Missouri took place in
this home,

FOSEPH HART

Joseph Hart was bornt in Prussia on the 18th of
Novembor 1818, and emigrated to Amcrica in the year
1849, Not long after reaching this country he came Lo
Lincoin County and engaged in the business of peddiing
merchandise. He made his home with the family of the
late Judge Charles Martin, and they became life long
friends. He was married to Miss Temperance Stewart on
the Sth of August 1357, and the following winter he
engaged in the mercantile business in Troy in partner-
ship with Alex P. Stewart; the firm dissolved in 1872,
Mr. Hart buying Stewart’s interest.

In the previous vear fire destroved the store,
house und dwelling, bul these were rebuill.  There were
seven children born to the first marriage, two along with
his wife died in the cholera of 1873: one child also died
in infancy. Four sons of the first marriage fived 1o man-
hood. Adelph P, Herman, Sam and Jacob. Mr. Hart
marricd Miss Rosa Siciner on December 2, 1873 and
they bad three chiklren livirg to adulthood, Logis, Dr
Ed. R. and Isaac.

Mr. Hart was known to more people in the coun-
ty, perhaps, than any man who ever sold goods in Troy.

KATHRYN “KATY” FLYNN

Katheyn Ann {Sommer)
Flynn was bom June 14, 1934, in
St Paul, Missouri. She preferred
to be called “Katy.,” She was not
perfect and would have heen the
first 1o tell vou that. In fact, she
would be the first to tell you any-
thing she knew was a fact regard-
less of how you thought of her
afterwards.

Her passion for the community and its people is
mirrored in her great love for her children.

As a business woman she was keen and knew
the difference between business and friendship and
refused to mix the two. A preater friend, however, could
not be found.

Flynn Drilling was started in 1954 by her hus-
band, Michael F. Flynn. She chose to stay at home o
raise her family over becoming involved in the business
just as her mother had raised her brothers and sisters
while her father worked, However, this wouid be inter-
rupied by Michael F. Flynn being called to serve his
Ceuntry and Katy being called (o serve both her family
and the business. After Mike retumed, so did Katy
return gladly to assume her primary responsibility as
mother.

In 1969, Michael F. Flynn passed away. Rather
than aliow the family business be purchased, Kaiy chose
to tun the business and misc her family of six on her
oW,

In the late 70%s, a national publicalion comtacted
Katy to do 2 feature on her as the “New Rusiness
Woman of the 70°s.” Katy brashly declined, stating, “1
didn’t run the business for glory as & woman, There's
nothing outstanding here; T just did it for my family.”
The publication, as well as anyonz who has done basi-
ness with Katy knew that she was quite outstanding.

L

Amidst the numerous men that toid her 2 woman coald
rol rin 2 business, much less a well drilling company
she persevered. Despite the threats that she should sell
or be run oul of business, she continued for her family,
Ironigally, she cantinued while many men who doubted
her have since met falure.

You would never hear her talk bitterly about her
experience and struggle as  business woman. You
would hear her remark how good the people of this
communily are fo her family, She instilied in her family

- a great responsibility to return fo the community what

was given to them. This was dore by examplc.

A devout Catholic, she sceved on the Sucred
Heart Parish Council and as 2 member of the Si. Ann
Sodality. She recognized her responsibility to her parish
by donating 1o its needs, specifically those of the schoal.
Her philanthropy extended to the FFA, various civic
auctions, fund raisers, zed anvone she thouglt was in
need. She preferred o make her donations ancaymously
and without recognition.

She zlways chose to be directly involved with
her children's ives over her own personal life. She was
a 4-H leader, soltball coach and chaperone at teen
dances. She saw that one of her children was faced with
the dilemma of being unable to participate in Cub
Scouts and she quickly assumed the position of Den
Leader allowing many in the Catholic Schoo! to partici-
pate in scouting. She even made an unsuccessiul bid for
School Board.

Her home was headquariers for the neighbor-
hood lemonade stands and clubs, shelter for the numer-
ous dogs and cats abandoned at the City Park and coun-
seifing center for many teenagers who thought their par-
ents weren't as coof as she was. She can be quoted by
often saying, “You can do or say anything bad about me
but yoa lesve my kids and dogs alone.”

She was a member of the Troy Chamber of
Commerce, Remice Withrow Club and Charier Member
of the Toard of Directors of 51, Joseph West Hospital.

Her favorite pastime was Cardinal basebalt. Tt
has been said thal when the verses to “Take Me Out to
the Baligame” were written the writer had Katy in mind.
Her passion for basebali was only surpassed by the
ctjoyment she recsived by taking others to the ballpark.
Many people of this community, young and old, have
memorics of the Cardinals and Raty Flynn rooted in
Section 145, Row 20, Seats | through 4.

Kaiy Flynn passed away ca December 1, 1992,
In her memory, the Katy Fiyen Outstanding Business
Woman's Award has beer: named by the Troy Business

and Professional Woman's Club to be bestowed to out-
standing women it business or a profession.

BE1TY COX HUNTER
“(Going Boldly Where Few Women
Have Gone Before™

Reity Cox Hunrer, a native
of Lincokn County, Missour! and
resident of Troy has achieved
much for a woman in & man’s
world. In 1968 she became the
manager of the H. W. Gossard
Manufacturing Company in Troy,
being the fitst woman 10 have held that position.

An active, community-minded individual, she
involved herself in local organizations and soon became
the first woman o hold the office of President of the
Troy Chamber of Commerce in 1979, She later received
that organization’s highest award by being named
“Womag of the Year” in 1969,

Ir 1991, upon the death of her husband Dee,
Retty was appointed to 1l his vacant seat on the Tray
Board of Aldermen. Again, the first woman to hold that
pasition. At the end of her {emporary term she success-
fully ran for election and won the seat an her own.

Also in 1991 she was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Old Alexandria Cemetery Association,
another position previously held only by men.

Berty approaches her role in the affairs of her
community ot as an advocate of “Women's Rights”,
rather as a concemed citizen who cares enough about
the commusity in which she lives to work hard for it
ared she just happens to be a woman.

The community of Troy has benefitied greatly
from her dedication and talent as & leader. She contin-
ues to keep alive the spirit of the early pioneer woman
in @ modem: suciety.

Dese Ann Aydaeioit, Owner
208 South Linceln Diive
Troy, MO 63379
Telephone (314) 528-5260
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LOIS REMD MARSH

“Fiest Lady of Troy”

. “The Figst Lady of Troy”
as she was described by the Mayor
of Troy upon her death in 1990,
describes well the life of Lois
Jrene Reid Marsh. Secldom is 2
commanity fortunate enough to
have an individual as involved and
dedicated to her adopted home
town as was Laois Marsh.

A mative of Sturgeon, Missouri, Lois came to
Troy in 193% with her husband Joc who was employed
by the Kemper Furniture and Undertaking Comparny.
They iater purchased the undertaking business in 1950.
She immediately immersed herselfl in community affairs
by becoming a reporter for the froy Free Press and later
as a reporter and show host for KWRE Radio Station, an
interviewer for KMOX radio and KSD-TV in St. Louis,
and a correspondent for the Hannibal Courder-Post.

Her involvement with community activities
expanded over the years umil there was scarcely an
o_rganization or grouy whick did not come o her at one
time or another for assistance with projects or publicity.
She served as secrctary of the Troy Chamber of
(.Iummerce for over 30 years receiving that organiza-
tion’s Woman of the Year Award in 1963, was a founder
and charter member of the Troy Carillon Club, the Troy
Area Council On Aging, the Retired Volunteer Program,
the Troy Business and Professional Women’s Club, the
Troy Foster Home Program and an active member of the
Evangelipe Club and the First Baptist Church in Troy
where she served as organist for many years.

Along with her civic sctivities, afer the death of
her husband, Leis successfuily continued to own and
manage one of the oldest husinesses in the county, car-
rying her Christian concem and energy into her business
1ife also.

Her passing was indecd a loss, but present and
futare generations of the Troy community will benefit
greatly because one lady cared enough,

JUDGE EDGAR B. WOOLFOLK

Judge Edgar B. Woolfoik was born on
November 22, 1865 in Flint Hill, Mo, to Richard A. and
Mary E. (Allen) Woalfolk. He attended country and
Troy public schools, Troy Collegiate Institule, and high
school at Montgomery City. T 1885-1887 he taught
school in Linceln County. He began reading law in 1887
with Nerton and Dryden, and was admitted to the bar in

1889. He formed a partnership with Clarcace Cannon,
Hz was elected Prosecuting Attorney in 1890 and serveq
four years. He served Lincoln County as Representative
to the General Assembly of Missouri from 18951601,
He served as Judge of the 35th Judicial Circuit inclug-
ing, St. Charles, Eincoln and Pike counties from 1913 -
1943.

Judge Woololk was married to Mary Norion on
1892. They were the parents of one son, Morton A.

Judge was a member of the Masonic and I00OF
Lodges of Troy for more than 50 years and was an
active member of the Meshodist Church, Judge
Woolfolk died January 2, 1956.

EIDGE ANDREW I, BROWN

Judge Andy Brown was born Oclober 29, 1878
the son of Moses Harvey Beown :
and Margaret {Hardesty) Brown.,

Judge Brown was elected
County Surveyuer in 1968 and
served in that capacity for twenty [
years. In 1941 Governor Lioyd J
Stark appointed him Judge to fill
the vacaacy on the bench of The
Lincoin County Court created by
the death of C. Y. Brown and he 2
continsed in that office until his death,

He married Florence M. Rinaman December 23,
1502, They were the parents of one san, Walter.

Judge Brown authored the Lineoln Review in the
late 30’s. He aiso published a Lincoln County map.
Judge Brown wrote many historical articles about
I.incoin County and Troy. Many of his articles were
puabiished in the Troy Free Press. His last article, “The
Schools of Lincoln County™ appeared in the Free Press
two days after his death. fudge Brown's hobby was his-
torie research ‘and sharing with ali interested Esteners.
Judge Brown died January 21, 1959,

ROLLA CALVIN JEANS

Mr. Rolla Jeans probably
held the Missouri record for being
the okizst active police afficer.

He was first elected 1o the
affice of City Marshal for Troy in
April of 1932 and served in that
aifice until Aprit of 1950. In 1956
he was re-elected and served uniil
April of 1968. Ad that time he was
&7 wears old. However, he contin-

i

ed 10 serve as the Troy School Crossing Guard until the
age of 90. He performed this valuable service as 2 vol-
unteer for almost 8 vears, guarding both morning and
evening during the school year.

n adgition 1o his police work, he had also heen
a carpenter, blacksmith, and streel commissioner for the
city of Troy.

Me. Jeans was bomn February 14, 1881 and dicd
February £2, 1976, lacking 2 days of being 95.

SENATOR D.E. WILLIAMS

Senator Derwood E. Williams was bom August
14, 1889 in a log cabin near Auburs and spent his high
school years in Troy, graduating 1910. Graduating in
1845 from Wissouri University with a degree in law,
Senator Williams came back to Tray to practice law
with the firm of Avery, Young and Dudley. He worked
for the lJaw {irm approximately one year when he and
Mr. Dudicy became partners in 1916, In 1918 Mr.
Dudiey died and Senator Williams maintained his own
office for many years.

Seeking pubiic office, he was elected Lincoln
County Prosecuting Atiomey in 1918 and served until
1022 Tn 1926 he was elevted to the Missouri Housc of
Representatives serving one term. In 1928 he was elect-
ed Senator and served until 1932 when he again served
the community as a fawyer until 1940. In 1938 he
formed a partnership with Grover Huston which lasted
until 1951, In 1940 Williams was again elecied 1o a four
year ferm as Senatot,

Even though he was unable to see, he had a
great lepal and retentive mind, being able to remenmber
books, page numbers, and quots the fext,

He was a member of the Missouri Bar
Association for almost 60 years and taught Sunday
School at the Baptist Church for 50 years.

Senatar Derwood E. Williams died April 7,
1973,

OMER H. AVERY

Omer H. Avery, Je. was bom June 15, 1500 to
Omer H. Avery Sr. and Kate Jefferson Avery, Omer
{Pat as he was known 1o his many friends) lived kis
entire life on the home place. He graduated from
Buchanan High School in the class of 1918. He aitended
the University Arts 2nd Science School and Law School
graduating in 1924, He practiced as an attorncy in Troy
from 1924 fo 1986 with the exception of the four years
he served in the service of his county in World Wer H,
{1942-1946). He served as a Major in the United States

Army-Judge Advocate Division, ia Paris Day of
Liberalism in 1944,

He was elected o the Missouri Legislature in
1950, scrving in the House of Representatives until
1956 when he was elected o the Senate, where he
served until 1972, a total of 22 years. Senator Avery
served on major commitices and received many honars
while in the legisiature. Senator Avery was always
active int Troy civic affairs.

In the 196€'s he did post gradnate work at
Cornell University, New York and served in both World
War [ and IL. Senator Avery died Septemiber 3, 1988,

TUDGE BRICHARD CREECH
Brevator Richards Creech was bom May 19,

" 1902 in Lincoln County, Missouri, the son of Brevator

Joseph and Mary Carter Creech.

He pgraduated {rom Troy schools and attended
Westminster Coliege, Missouri University, and
Cumbertand University, L.IB. He was licensed 10 prac-
tice law in 1926 and worked alongside his fathes. He
served three consecutive terms as Prosecuting Attomey
of Lincolr County, bus resigned in his fifth year to
become the first Assistant Atiorney General of
Missouri. He served in this capacity for four years and
while in office was appeinted Chief Counsel for War
Manpower Commission of Missouri. He was elected
wo terms {1948-1960) to serve as Circuit Judge of the
35th Circuit {Lincoln, St. Charles, and Pike Counties).
He then retumned to the general practice of law in St
Charles in the late 60°s. -

On September 29, 1942, Richards entercd mili-
tary service and during World War IT was attached by the
Judge Advocate General’s Office in Jefferson Barracks,
While stationed in Grand Rapid, Michigan, he met and
married Mary MacNaughton. They had four children:
Genevieve, Jobn, David, and Margaret.

Judge Creech was a member of the Troy
Masanic Lodge #34 and the American Legion of Troy
where he received his 30 year pin.

Brevator Richards Creech passed away March
11, 1982 and lies at rest in the Troy City Cemetery.



COL. ANTHONY F. STORY

Col. Anthony F. Story,
General MacArthar's lagt pilot and
aide de camp, died March 13,
1991,

“Tony™ Story, as he was
known, was born June 26, 1915 in
Troy, Missonti. He taught himself
to fly as a youth in the late 1520%
while working as a “gnet” fueling
and cleaning aircraft al # small airstrip in Lineokn
County, Missouri. His favorite pastimie was the seasonal
airshows, and his heroes were the barnstoming pilots of
the era before World War 1. He was a familiar figure
as a “wingwalker” at county fairs in the Midwest.

In the years before America’s entry inlo the War,
prior to Pearl Harbor, Tony Story made several attempts
{0 eniist in the U.5. Army Air Corps but was unsuccess-
ful. He persevered and tried to sign up with the Royal
Canadian Air Force in 1939, bur was similarly rebutfed.
Finally in 1940, after visiling several military air sta-
tions, he was accepted by the Royal Air Force Fery
Command and British Overseas Airways Corporation.
Crossing the Atlantic from Canada to England and
Malta, ke carried supplies and wounded soldiers. In
1943 he transferred to the U.S. Army Air Corps Brass
Hats Squadron of the Air Transport Command, flying
diplomats and dignitaries throughout the Atlantic and
Mediterranean theaters of war,

Following victory in the Pacific and the surren-
der of Japan in 1845, Gen., MacArthur’s pilet, Col.
“Dusty™ Rhoades, retired and Tony Story repfaced him.
He stayed with the Genera! in Japan during the ocoupa-
tion and the Korean War until President Truman
relieved MacArthur of his duties on April 11, 1951, Col.
Story flew the generul, his aides, and family back to the
United States to a tumuliuous welcome, and soon fol-
lowed the Gereral into retirement from active military
service,

Much decorsted, Col. Story received numerous
citations, including the Silver Star, Legion of Merit and
the distinguished Flying Cross. He ogged over 7,000
hours of flying time in an endless variety of aircraft
fram a Piper Cub to a British Spitfire, 2 Flying Fortress
to a C-54 - General MacArthur’s plane, Batagn 1L He
crossed the Atlantic 122 times and the Pacific 44 times.

Col. Story went into private business, first as a
vice president of American Distilters in charge of
exports, then as president of Jaeger Watch Co., & lcading
manufacturer of chronometers for the marine and avia-

tion industries. He then worked on Wil Street artang.
ing capital underwritings for old and new businesses,
and with the Atwater Bradley Group as a senior consul
tant {0 govemment and industrzal clients,

Col. Slory was a member of the Wings Club, the
New York Athletic Club, the fron Gate Squadron and
the Young President’s Organization. A 32 degree
Mason, he was a member of the Shriners Nile Temgple,
Seattle, Washington.

JUDGE WILLIAM HUNGATE

William I.. Hungate and
his wife Dottie and son David ]
maved 10 Troy in December of S
1948. He began the practice of law
in the offices of Derwood E.
Williams. During the first years in
Troy he supplemented his income
for law practice with monies |-
received from managing the Trojan RN
Theatre and playing dances with the Club Reyal, and
other bands.

After being elected Prosccuting Attorney in
1950 he moved his office to the Troy Building across
the ball from lawyer Pat Avery.

At this time Dottic taught the first kindergarten
in Troy. Their daughter Kay was bom in 1951, and they
moved into their new house on Second Streel.

In 1956 he accepled a position with the
American Bar Foundation to survey the Administration
of Criminal Justice in the U1S. headquartered in
Chicago. Pete Grewach came into the office and took
ever Prosecuting Attorney duties. Upon completing the
project, William “Bill” Hungate refumned to Troy and
went into a law partnership with Pele Grewach.

After the death of Mr. Clarence Canron, he was
elected 10 serve as U.S. Representative from the Sth
Dislrict,

Upon retiring from Congress in 1976, he
returned fo St Louis County where he worked as a part-
rer in the law firm of Thompson and Mitchell, In 1979
ke was appointed o the Federal Court and remained
there untif his retirement in 1992,

William served in a twelve member rifle squad
in the 95th Infaniry Division in World War 11,

While in Troy, the Methodist minisier, Herman
A. Lehwald, Dr. Bill Bechtold and “Bill" helped charter
the Kiwanis Ciub of Troy.

Bill und his wife Dottie are retired and now live

in St. Louis County.

ALLEN $. WHITMER

1 As the first Missouri State
Highway Patroiman staticmf.:d‘in
Troy. Sergeant Allen “Whit"”
- whitmer was the Highway Patrel.
: while in Troy from 1958 to i97§,
Wwhii and his family were active
members of the community dur'u?g
this thirteen vear assigament in
Lincoln and Pike counties. In >
1971, he was promoted to lieutenant and assigned ta
Troop C Headquarters in Kirkwood. He _stayed the::c
two vears. [n 1973, he was promoted again to captain
and assigned to Troop | Headquarters in Rolla. He
served as troop commander for six years and ha§
become the state’s senior commander when nﬁwl:f-.ciectm
ed Governor Kit Bond picked him to fill the position of
Colane! of the Missourl State Highwa)"?.atmi__i--le
served approximately twe years in this position before
retiring,

Since 1988
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Tray's fisst public schook.

What provision was made for the education of
the children of the first settlers is not cerfain. 1t is
recorded that Minerva Woods did teach some of the
chiidren in Troy, including her daughter, little Minerva.
Written accounts also show that Samuel Groshon
(Groshong} was & school teacher and probably taught in
Lincoin County before the War of 1312,

Troy did not become isvelved with public edu-
cation until 1337 when George Collier sold the trustees
of the Linceln Academy four lois to be used for a
school. The school was operated as the Lincoln
Academy until 1867 when it was purchased by C. C.
Jones. Mr. Jones operated s private school under the
name of Troy Christian Institute. On March 4th, 1874
Mr. Joncs conveyed the preperty to the Beard of
Education for School District No. 4 in School Township
No. 13, it being the Troy Public Schoo! District, This
building was replaced in 1396

WHERE THEY STUDY HARD

An institute for higher learning was desired and
R.8.D. Simpson conducted the Troy Collegiate Institute
during 1852 acd 1883 with fifty students in attendance.
By 1893 sentiment was growing for a higher institute of
learning. A meeting of the citizens of Troy and vicinity
was held March 20, 1893 in the Opera House in Troy.
A stock company was formed with a capital stock of
approximately $16,000 in shares of $18.00 cach. One
hundred and ninety citizens subscribed more than the
required capital stock. Because of the special devotion
and large gilts of Me. Alexander 8. Buchanan, the
school was named for him: Buchanan College. Three
actes of land were purchased from H. W, Perldns locat-
d in the west end of wwn, upon which the building was
erected. Adjoining acreage was given by Mr. Buchanan.
Work was begun immediately on the building whick
contained nine rooms and a chapel having & seating
eapacity of about four hundred. The first commence-

ment for the school was held June 21, 1835 with 1wo
graduates: Eugenia Allen (Mrs. W, 1. Smith}, Scientifie
Course and Maitie Kuhne, Music. The college had ath-
letic programs: tasketbafl for girls, track, basebali, and
{enmis for the boys. The schoot habitually operated at a
deficit and as a result of increased indebtudness, the
officers decided in 1905 fo seli the properly o the Tray
Public School District for $3,375.46.

The name was changed to Buchanan High
School and the building served the district until 1956,
and it was razed in 1960. The hoard decided to sell Jots
on the south side of the high school, and Chemry Street
cottld be made a continuation to Perking Ayenue.

When the high school was first erganized there
would have been somewhere between 25 and 30
enrolled by 1914 this had increused t 89, in 1933 it had
increased to 97,

The first ¢lass to graduate from the high school
was in 1946 with five members: Earnest Carter, Jessic
1L, Katherine Haverkamp (Mrs. E. E. Carter), James
Jackson and Carlos Tiffany.

When the school was first staried it was expect-
ed that the students would be concemed only with acad-
emic leaming, but extra curricular activities were soon
added. By 1907 the first high school basehall team had
been organized, and in 1909 the girls organized a bas-
ketbalt team with Miss Cowan as coach. At first the
gitls did not compete intercoliegiatly, but by 1911 they
were competing with other schools and finished the first
season with a record of vielory unmarred by a single
defeat. Girls basketbail ended with the close of the 1938
school year and was not teinstated untif 1976 with Ken
Hopkins as coach. The girls competed in statc competi-
fion and placed 2nd in siate in 1985, and 3rd in 1985

Troy Geamenar School, 1896,

und 1994,

The Tennis Club was organized during
September 15909, Although tennis has not been 2 comlin-
uous sport, it was being taught in 1930 and tournements
waere held.

‘The first Buchanan wack tearm was organized in
the spring of 1908, The track team has continued to
excel in competition. For the past 23 years Coach Dan
Reed has led the {gam to numerous titles. They were
champs of e East Missouri Conference from 1972 to
1983, They were district champs in 1972-1976 and
again in 1982,

In 1910 the first vearbook, known as The
Debris, was published. Later the name was changed to
Siege, which continued on an iregular basis until the
schoot year of 194344 when publication was discontin-
ued unti] after World War TE.

Aclivities continued to grow and in 1912 the
fiest boys hasketball team was organized. Boys baskei-
ball has always been a favorite sport of the school.
Probably one of the greatest moments for Coach
Murphy, the players and the lownspeople was when the
team qualified to play 6 the state tonrmament in 1954,
They won third plece by overpowering Alion. They
were able to compete in the state tournament again in
1960, placing second, and again in the years of 1976
ard 77, placing fourth both years. The boys made it 1o
state competition in 1986, 87, and 88,

Classroom subjects were becoming more varied.
In 1914 Domestic Science was introduced for the girls.
This gave them an opportunity to leamn the theory of
foods and conkery. They also leamned how to use the
needle and how to judpe textiles. This was later divided
into two departments. Domestic Science continued 0 be

Buchanan High School, 1894,
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the foods class and Domestic Arts was the sewing elass.
These two combined classes comprised the Home
Economics Department, which started in 1937, The
Home Economics Department continued to grow and
toduy is a vital part of the school, offering not caly
classes in cooking and sewing, but child care and devel-
opment, budpet planning, and interior decorating. The
Fumare Homemakers of America was founded nationaliy
in 1945 and Buchanan has been affiliated since 1947,
HERD was added to the FHA title, recognizing the
occupational aspect of home economics (Home
Econamics Related Occnpations). Not only is the cur-
riculum offered to girls, but young men play an impor-
tant role. The chapter has received many awards, and
they were the first chapter to represent the state of
Missouri at FHA/HERD in Parliamentary Procedure
Competition. The chapter is involved in communily
service projects. The carly sponsors of FBA were Ms.
Louise Clough, Ms. Warden, Dr. Betty Martin, Barbara
Parker, Ms. Schilling, Anactie Hill, Betiy Jackson,
Martha Anm Mansorn, and Kathy Woolfolk.

Buehanan High School was approved by the
state to offer a professional course for tmining teachers
for rurz! and praded schools, at the expense of the state.
The first ¢lass to complete the course was in 1914,

Manual arts classes for the boys began in 1915
where they were taught how 1o use the ordinary carpen-
ter’s tools. Bookkeeping was first introduced in the
school in 1917.

The music depariment was not a part of the
scheol bat Miss Birdie Well, an cutstanding music
teacher, was associated with the school in order that the
high school pupils might have the opportunity to
hecome proficient in piano musie.

The class of 1922 wanted to do something
unusual, therefore they decided fo publish a school Ma-
Z-Nus. The name was later changed to Buccaneer. The
debaling squad was formed that year, along with the
dramatic society. The debate topic for the year was
resolved, “That the Closed 8hop should Prevail in
American Industries.” Another faverite topic through
the years was the advantages and disadvantages of the
“chain store.”

During the yeers the chapel for the elementary
school served the district as an auditorium for school
functions. In the early 1900°s it was converted into a
gymnasiom and the high school chapel was used for all
activities. As the enrollmaent continued 10 grow the need
for an aeditorium was felt. In 1929 Bonfils Auditorium
became the performing arts center for the schoal and the

za

community. The name Bonfils was given to the building
because of the generous gifi of a former resident, Fred
BDomfils owner of the Denver Post. On May 3, 1039, the
first school activity to be held in the new auditorium
was the junior play and en May 12, the Baccalaureate
Service was held there.

In 1930 vocational agriculiure was offered for
the first time. Mr. Wallace Gray of Palmyra was hired as
teacher for the new department. The young people
became very involved, and in the fall af 1930 they
attended the state fair in Scdulia under the sponsorship
of the Chamber of Commerce. The boys took lents and
cots, leaving Troy at 6:30 am. and ardving in Sedalia
by nooen. Tweanty-one young men accompanied M.
Gray. When school started thirty-six young men had
crvolled in vocational agriculiure. The enroliment in
1993-94 was 231 boys and girls. The first bamwarming
was given by the FFA members, in November of 1930
with their girl friends, faculty, school board members
and their wives as puest,

Mr. Gray resigned in 1933 and Mr. Roy H.
Tomilsen was employed, followed by Glenn Woodruff
and Martin Seidel. I was during Mr. Seidel’s adminis-
tration that the Chamber of Commerce adopted the idea
of awarding a registered Duroc gili to the student
showing the most putstanding work in voeational agri-
culture. The first person to receive this was Teddy
Magruder.

In 1945 Mr. Jesse Clonts was employed as
teacher and served the depariment for 38 years. Mot
only was Mr. Clonts recopnized throughout the state as
an outstanding agriculture leader, he also maintained an
active interest in the sports of Buchanan High School.
When the new footbati fickd was built in 1974 the
Student Council recommended that it be named Clonts
Field. M. Clonts sponsored pep club for 14 years and
for many years served as home-geme scorekeeper For
baskethall parmes,

A new agriculture buildiag, separate fram
Buchanar High School, was built in the fate 40's. The
Veterans Program waes started and served approximately
530 veterans over a ten year period. Teachers working
with Mr. Clonts were Richard Lindbardt and Harold
Tindle from 1964-1966. [n the fall of 1966 M. Jim
Schuize joincd the staff, and at the retirement of My
Clonts in 1983 Mr. Alan Harrell was employed. Both
instructors are still with the program. In 1987 new facil-
ities were built for the growing depariment and horticul-
ture was added to the curriculum,

During the vears the chapter has had 226 State

I

A e

i

i

Clonts Fleid

Farmers, and won outstanding agricultural awards for
37 years. Many teams have placed in the state parlia-
mentary proccduse competilion, and the 1993 team
placed first in national competition.

Although the 30°s were years of depression
there were new activities heing created at Buchanaa
High. In 1930 the school provided for soccer goals, two
volieyball courts, four horseshoe courts and two tennis
courts, making it possible for 100 people to take past in
some kind of activity at one time. Soccer was taught for
the first time, Football was itroduced for the first time
in 1930, mainly the fundamentals were taught with very
Ettle scrimmage. There were no games oatil 1931,
These activities were dropped for several years.

In 1974 volleyball was recognized as an inter-
scholastic sport. Troy had both varsity and junior vazsity
1eams competing in conference play. The conference
was EMO {East Missouri) and included Winfieid,
Rowling Green, Elsberry, Wellsville, Van-Far, Clopton,
Warrenton and Montgomery City. While varsity finished
first in the conference with a 6-1 record and an overall
of 7-3, the juniar varsity compiled a -1 record and tied
for first place with Warrenton. Varsity fcam members
were Piane Tucker, Martine Smith, Marilyrn Krankel,
Beverly Steinbrueck, Kathy Krankel, Mary Humphrey,
Rhonda Starkey, Juanita Schneider, Donnza Cassidy,
Delia Perkins, Chery! Stallard, and Elaine Welch, The
teams were coached by Judy Roetiger and assisted by
Gay (Rucker) Reed. Since coaching volleybail was a
new experience for them, they spent many hours going
fo coaching clinics during their summers.

Tn 1978, Troy began hosting their own voliey-
ball tournaments. Some schools participating were
Mantgomery City, Wentzvilie, Lutheran North, and
Principia,

Nineteen-ninety was an importam daie in the

history of B.H.S. volleyball. The Trojanettes won their
first district championship. In the final game of districts
Troy defeated the Mentgomery County R-11 Wildcats.
The Troy Trojaneties were in the sectional play offs at
Florisssant Valley Community College. After defeating
Visitation, they fost lo Duchesne High School.

Cver the years the game became more complex
and the feams were enlarged 1o a freshmen, a junior var-
sity and a varsity level. The schedule grew from approx-
inately ten malches a season o thirty matches. Each
athlcte was ¢ligible te win recognilion and horor at con-
ference, disteict, und state level.

I 1992 the Troy Trojanette volleyball team,
along with all sports &t B.FLS., became part of the GAC
(Gateway Athletic Conference) which includes Francis
TTowell, Francis Howell North, Ft. Zumwalt South,
Wentzville, Ft. Zumwalt North, 8¢ Charles, Duchesne,
and St. Charles West.

Several volleyball athletes competed at the col-
lege level either on scholarships or as “walk-ons”.
Thase playing at the college level were Debbie
Sehocklee and Karen Reller. Those receiving volleyball
scholarships include the following: Carol Nichols-
Missouri Western College and University of Missourt at
St. Louis; Kristen Kinker-West Point and University of
Tennesses; Shelly Kramer-William Woods Collegs;
Elaine Dunard-Tulsa University; Stephanie Roetiger-
Central Methodist Cellege; Keren Meyer-Gettyshurg
Coltege; Christine Roetiger-Washington University.

Taking their volleyball career one step further,
the following ladies became volleyball coaches: Carol
(Micholsy Campbeli at Lindenwood College and is now
the varsity volleyball coach at Duchesne High School.
Rhonda (Starkey) Nichols and Marih: (Dunard) Lasater
perticipated in the volleyball program at Buchanan High
Scheal. Karen Reller presently holds the position of var-
sity volleyhall coach at B.H.S.

Football was drepped and not infraduced into
the school unfi) 1973, and has enjoyed continuous play
since then.

By 1935 school enrollment had increased to
164. The student council was started in 1937 and the
pep club was orpanized October 29, 1937, including
both girls and boys. By 1937 music was playing a very
vital part in the extra curricnhum of the school. Boys®
and girls’ plee chibs and chorus had been formed. The
music grouns took second place in the East Missouri
Music Conference that year. An orchestra was organized
in the spring of 1937, under the direction of Mr. Starkey.
“The membership soon grew o twenty-cight. In 1539
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the band was sble 1o purchase pvelve oow eniforms s

everyone could have & uniform. The highlight of the

year was 20 Operests, “The Chires oFNmaEc_iy; n
1950, under e direction of Mss. Camiyy M.Tgl-:e m»g;i

the quusic deparment was Very oulstsnémlg. r -,; ban
panicipalad ¢ many activities ard the hlgh[:’;g' ; was
roceiving several | patings 4l the Easl‘ ;s.sug:;
Canference Music Festival in Warremtoi, MleEun. : e
bang started @ fusd for ne% band u:mfnrms. ey first
received donations from the alumni. For the aext fe\‘v
hard contimued 1o raise mONEY for their uni-
1957 ey had made $1,800, but bocause of
{ae mreat increase In the number of meml‘:ers they 4wer.a
umﬂ;ie to purchase e wiforms. By 1‘_95n the new ung

forms were fmally purchased. Mrs }‘i!.eburg continte
with the music prograr: il sh.c retired i 1_%0‘, In
1981 g Carolyn Neihutg Memorial Schu}arshags Fund
was ¢stablished by former sméenls., aiumm,' fan_uly, and
Friends i memovy of the outstanding comhuimnh‘d@
Mrs. Nighueg orovided to the schaol, The st::hu!ars in i
avcarded pasaally to 2 college boazr}d wmc;r w!’m‘has
cxhibited outsiandig asehievement ‘m veeal or instru-
mental music during his or het bagh schodl career.
Today he Buchanan High School Concert Choir has
mkdcd outstandiog comributions & he ?cimcl. Fn:ir four-
feen conseeulive yeErs they have rcsewcd 1 ratings at
The Shoew Choir pecformed 2t the

istri ic coniesl.

i::;;ﬁas iwaais Copvention in Houston, Téx&?;
Opryland in Mashuille, Tennessee and b CopcedB h%i
performed &l DY World in E)rfazado f{lnnfia ;sa.
Carolyn Niehert, Jehn Scheuel.d, pavid Ray, Anita
Wiltizms, Cheryl Walkez, fong vpih the pre:ent spoDSor
Cathy Mason Whiswordh, have dzm:ied this g;j gr;:upj
A pirls track e wmaganmé_mme 1936-37 schoo
vear, A Latin cleh was ot izt in Septeraber of 1938_‘
F g Tn the pring of 1939 Gt the alumai
group Was formed. Although they kave dlscon.t]nucd
heving elomai mestings many clsses havcltf'eelr ow;;
vemivns, aRd in cefebration o[ﬂ_w. 1’_15&!1 :Arum ;;sjag'gs
Troy, an all school slamni :;;:mg & being held July

ights of Cofumbus Halk.
e K;‘lespite he desice wd contim! FOgEESS 10 the
toprent of sublic ?‘Iu;itlon;
s somelimes arose @ i aotal realizetion o

31[: hii:lls‘ As early as 1921, the 1egish@ﬁ mandated
on of 8 county plan with the primiaty PUIpose
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) The first transportation of students o Troy w,
by private conveyvance. }t is belicved that Leo Kcm;e,?s
may have been the first 1o ransport students to Fr, ‘
school. He bought a black pane! bread truck, with ;}’.z
only windows being by the driver and passenger sig,
and, of course, the windshicld. In the back there wﬂc
two wooden benches, one on cach side where the pa:
sengers rode. Leo called it kis “Black Mariah .
Completing his last three yeurs a1 Buchanan Hj 'h
School, he gruduated i 1938, He then hired Sﬂmeoie

to drive it for one more year.

‘[n the fali of 1939 Leo wanted to discontinue the
route since he was in college. He approached Juliug
B.r;iungarfit to see if he was interested. Julins and hig
wife Lillian taok ever the route. The first year they

drove a brown 1934 DeSoto and a green 1937 Plymouth

to transport students 10 high school, with parents paying
2 sum of money each month for the child. In the fall of
184G there were more students than they could accom-
modate so fulius bought a bus from the Silex district
that had four seats on cach side. The attendance Brew s
much that finally they purchased rwo, 48-passenger
busses. About the same time William Myers, who fived
north of Trey and came to town in a panel truck
hrought students with him as he came to worl,. He a[s<;
was responsible for collecting his own fees and paying
the expense involved. He later sold his route to Max
Teague.
It was in 1951 that reorganization was passed i

Lincoln County, establishing four schoal districts ce::
zered around the population centers. Sivdents from Troy,

Frst Troy school bus ownad by Jul
chased In 1941. v Julluss Braungordt, pur-
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vk Poin and Moseow Mills were the core of the R-
District. With the reorganization the board decided to
jate the district’s ownership and operation of school
o5, The hoard purchased and operated eight buses
4 coptracted cerlain rouies, inciudeing Mr. and Mrs.
ungﬂfdi

At first the eprollment of the high school was
wn, as meny who had chosen to come o Troy were
w required to go 10 other districts. Enrollment did

S nerease and it scon became necessary to build larger

thities. In 1935 new fucilities were opened on College
cel for the [irst unit of & new elementary school, and
52 19456 the adjoining new high schoal was opened. The
" Jents were asked what they wanted 1o call their new
high school Buchanan High School was again selected
the name, carrying on the adition of a half century.
The need for more room continued and in 1958 the ol
grade school building was razed and an addition was
made 1o the Elementary School. In 1962 this was for-
mally named Clande Brown Elementary, in tribute to
M. Brown who had piven so much of himself to his
schoot and community as teacher, administratoz, and
friend. A new gymnasium was built in 1970. Not only
did this provide better practice facilitics, but now Troy
codd host district tournaments. The enrollment in ele-
mentary continued to grow and in 1989 new facilities
were built on Main Street for grades K-2.

After the passing of the Vocational Act for
Business Departments, the Troy department became
vocational in 1964. With this, the department has been
able to move from twenty-five manual typewriters to a
computerized department. I the fall of 1987, under the
leadership of Mrs. Debbic Mulherin and Mrs. Retty
Schulze, a Futnre Business Leaders of America was
organized. The cnrollment has increased from 7% to
182. This organization reaches out (o the community in
many and varied activities. The students have placed
first at state in many areas of competition and competed
at pationals.

The school and the town have benefited from a
progressive art department. The high schoal art depart-
ment has been responsible for murals dotling the com-
munity and the school complex. The aciive Ast Guild,
with programs, projects, trips and activities insures the
continned success of the art program. An annuat schol-
arship of 5506 provides additional incentive to aspiring
artists. Many of the accomplishments can be atiributed
to Howard Woods, Art Depanment Chairmun and a fac-
ulty member of Buchanan High School for the past 22
years.

The first softball team was started in the sprng
af 1981, Then the stute chanped the season to fali, so
both spring and fall softhall werc played the first year.
Betty Schuize was the coach.

In 1982, the third scason, with a record of -5,
the team competed and won the district champiorship.
The team weni 1o their first sectional game and defeated
St Charles West to advance to the last seetional game
before state. Tray, however, lost to Lafayelte who went
on t¢ win the state championship that year.

Tr 1983, two players were recogpized as the first
1wo players to compete for four years. They were
Sharon Wing and Connie Schulze.

In 1986 enough hiph schools supporcd softball
that we were able to field the EMO Conference softball
Team. Troy had four players make first team: Dawn
(' Mara, Natalie Martinek, Sheila Suddarth, and Rachel
Tharg. In 1987 Brenda Luek made the EMO Corference
Softhall Team.

Jokr Bd Suddarth followed Betty Schulze as
coach. Durinp his sponsorship, the Ledy Trojans had 2
record of 35-28. In 1992, Connie Crane became head
coach and for the first time the team competed in the
Gateway Athietic Conference.

The pride shown in the early 19007 by the
towns people who spansored the formation of the new
high school and the early praduates is evidenl today in
the accomplishments of the staff and students of the cur-
rent high school. Athetic accomplishment, academic
prowess, and excellence in the fields of music, speech,
drama, art, business, and agriculmre continue to be a
source of enjoyment and pride for the community.

On Aprit 5th, 1994, patrons of the R-II Schoot
Dislrict approved, hy a nearly two-thirds margin, an 89
cent increase for the construction of a new high school.
The projeet resulted from a recommendation of district
petrons developed from a series of public forums con-
ducted in early 1993, “It’s s celebration for the commu-
pity and particularly the students,” commented Dr. John
Lawrence, superintendent of schools, following the
glection. “The people of our community have a right to
be very proud. What they {the patrons have} voled will
greatly benefil not only aur children, but our children’s
children.”

From the graduating cless of five members the
schoal has grownt $0 a total enrollment of 920 in High
Schook, 478 in Junior High and 851 in K-6, To date
there are 172 certified employees with 34 bus routes.
Other emplayees number 52 with an additional 22 by
food service contract.



Operetta “The Golden Trail”, March 1943

AFRO-AMERICAN EDUCATION
TROY, LINCOLN COUNTY, MISSOHRI

Afro-American seldiers of Lincoln County,
Missouri, from the Civil War (1861-1865) sent pay-
check money home for the purpose of building Wesley
Methodist Chureh in Truy, and the first black schools,
These same soldiers were responsible for the start-up
money for Lincoln University in Jefferson City,
Missouri. According to the law, Lincoln County did not
have public grade schools for the Afro-Americans until
1888.

Among the first buildings served as church and
School on the Lewis QOverion farm between Troy and
QOld Alexander. Lewis Overton, 2 former Kentucky
slave, had been taupht to read and write by his young
mistress, Virginia Shannon, He was a vounp boy and it
was against the faw at that time. As minister and first
teacher, Overton later brought in other teachers who
were paid by the county school board. Some of those
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ALMA MATER teachers were Lizzie Stallard, Sally Stablard, and Henry

. - . S. Bragg of Troy, Miss Clay of St. Louts and America
High upon a Trojan hilltop May she 1o her sons a'n d daughters . Hunt of Farmington. Rev. Lewis Overton's son, Hildra
‘Neath the heavens blue, Symbol be of life; vertom, went 10 the school for a liitle while. Hildra
Stands our noble old Bechanan E’re enduring, ¢’re aspiring Overton later became 2 very prominent Methodist min-
Glorious 16 view. Undefiled by strife. ster. This school was later closed for flack of pupils in

503.

Fraeme and Brick Linceln School in Troy, on the
Id Salt Road, Old Highway 61, came into being, Mrs,
eulah Copher Bragy graduated from eighth grade there
n 1913, There were three rooms, three teachers:
tofessor Cockfield, Mrs. Viola Perkins Hammonds,
iss Minnic Phillips. 1n the moenings, they would have
thmetic, reading, spelling. In the afterncon, the super-
ntendent of schools weuld pass oul materials for draw-
ng. Tridays were program days and prizes would be
en for the drawings. At noon baseball was played
the bays Griffin Wright and Richard Hatr sson got
of the girls because the girls couldn’s hit hard enough
them. The girls then played croguet and jump rope.
Gladys Shelton also attended this school abont that
e. Onie of her teachers was Miss Donnie Porter, Miss

Iton tater became a well known teacher.
In an oral intervisw in September 1993 with
. Sarah (Bailey} Williams, she happily reported that
-had graduated from eighth prade from a two room
and brick Lincoin Schoel, Troy in 1917 under
essor Rucken Clark. Her class consisted of twelve
15 and one buy, Gordon Cockrell. Miss Minnie
Hlips was her first teacher, along with Principal
Mpkine and his wife Maud Perkins Tompkins. As a

Life the chorus, speed it onward
Loud our praises ring;

Hai 1o thee our Alma Mater
Hail to thee we sing.

special activity under Professor Clark the girls learned
to crochet while the bays lcamed to weave baskets. She
stil! has some of her crocheling from those days.
Sometime after her graduation the school bumed down
i 1920, but Professor Clark and his wife, Evie, had
schood in their home until the new school was built.

Eighth grade class members graduating in 1927
from Linceln School Troy:Iva Beldea, Anna Lewis,
Elsie Lewis, Evelyn Creashaw, Charles Copher,
Raymond Basye, Carl Robinson, Thomas Shelton.
Celors: Purple and Gold, Motta: Paddle Your own
Canoce. Teachers: Peofessor Hebrew Cocldfield, and
Mrs. Viols {Perkins) Hammends, Subjects: arithmetic,
reading, writing, geography, history, language.

By 1930, there were only four black Lincoln
County grade schools: Troy, Aubum, Brett and Hayes.
Taken from a 1960 interview by Mrs. Marjorie Evans
with Mrs, Florence Diggs Begeman, Superiatendent of
Schools for many years. Her description of these
schools, and the cast off books from white schools keft
1o doubt as to the urtfairness of the policies. She threat-
en 1o take the school boand to court ard pleaded with the
state treasurer f0 hold state funds unti! the county com-
phied with the law. To some degree her efforts did
improve the children’s plight.

Eighth grade Lincoln School Commencemeat
Friday May 18, 1934 - Judge William C. Martin,
President of Troy School Board, preseated the diplomas
and words of commendation and advice to the gradustes
at the Wesley Methodist Church, Those graduating
were! Nora Washingion, Clara Shelion, Vernadeen Hutt,
Albert Huott, Charles Hatt, Lucille Cockreli, Covella
Robinson, and Letha Copher.

In an Qctober 1993 interview with Nora
Washington Hombeak, happy and special memories of
this gradustion were shared. Their teachers were:
Professor Hebrew Cockfield, Professor J. H. Cole, and
Mrs. Viola Perkins Hemmonds. Nora also spoke about a
two-vear unaccredited high schoof heing in the Lineoln
Schoo! building. Some students would stop school afier
the eight grade, some would stay for the two-year unac-
credited high sehool, and some moved away to accredit-
ed high schools. Thekr class song i which she sang solo
went like this: “Now our school days are passed and
gone. And yet we fondly linger here. But we think how
swift the moments passed. How delightful our friend-
ships bloomed. Farewell to thee, farewell to thee. Theu
charming ones who dwelled amoeng the bougher, one
fond embrace before we now depart. Until we meet
again.”



The eighth grade graduates in 1933 were: Lula
ntor; Robert Perkins, William Lindsey Shelton. In
: Anderson, Witlie Ray, Mildred Sydnor,
inda Hutt, Mac Ray, Clinton
Edwards, Wiliam (Billy)
Thomas Anderson. [n 1940:
on, Corinne Bolden, Clara Sydnor,
G@rge Sydnot, Mary Bena Cockrell,
iden, )
bin County had no aceredited black high
tif the 194075, That brought accredited two-
schools in St. Charles, Bowling Green,
sana, Vandalia, Elsberry, and Froy. The Troy high
hool was crowded into the hallway of Lincoln Grade
School huilding. The well and toilets were still on the
cutside. For the cleventh and twelfth grades the stu-
denis were transporied to 3t. Charles, Missour: by bus
and later by car. The drivers for the car were Tke Shaw
and Comelia Huit Perkins,

isaze Perkins remembers (November 1993 inter-
view} going to Lincoln School for the ninth and tenth
grades; fransported to St Charles for the eleventh and
returned o Troy for his twelfth grade gradualion in
1946. Tincoln Schoof was now & four-vear aceredited
high school with the graduation program held at Wesley
Church, in Troy. Classmates: Wade Boldesn, James
Teague, Jesse Edwards, Coy Sheiton Jr. Hazel Ray,
Isaac Perkins. Teachers: Principal York Lenoir, Miss
Carmeline Brown, Miss Pickett.

Taken from November 1993 interview with
Lewis Wilfiam Shelton. May 1947 eighth grade gradua-
tion students: Fred Ray, Robert Sydnor, Bragg Bailey
Jr., Edward W. Shelton, Elsie Mae Hautt, Lewis W.
Shelton, Charles L. Sydaor, George W. Cockrell. Mrs.
Violz Perkins Hammonds, teacher, became ill and the
year was finished by Miss Jean Flizabeth Carter,

Many plays and operettas had heen performed,
two were “He Coulde’t Marry Five™ and “The Three
Bears.”

Miss Gladys Shelton taught first thra fourth in
the basement. Mrs. Viols Perkins Hammonds taught
fifth thru eighth upstairs on the north side. Principal
York Lenoir tanght ninth and eleventh; Miss Carmeline
D. Brown taught tenth and twelfth in the split roams
upstairs on the south side.

Eighth grade graduates in 1952; Elia Cockrell,
George (Billy) Horsbeak, Lloyd Sydnor, Homer Green,
George Littleton, Patsy Shelton, Fred Robinson, Anna
Lee Robinson, Naney Sydnor, Paul Wright, JoAnn
Redmond, Robert Williams,

1954-Veteran’s High School Graduation: John
Cockrelf, Albert Hott, Tommy Sydnor, Robert Sydnor,
Fred Shelien, Nathaniel Washington, Isase Cockrell,
Edward Robinson, George Sydnor, Robert Perkins,
Frances Edwards, Teachers: Principal York Lenoir, Mr.
Moore, Miss Lula Belie Stamps.

Eighth grade graduation 1934 - Students;
Donald Shelton (interview November 1993} Norman
Robinson, Harold Cockrell, Herman Green Jr,, Donald
Higgins, Arthur Liteton, Robert Robinson, Amold
Dryden. Teachers: Principal York Lenoir, Mrs, Viola P
Hammends; Mrs. Blanche George-Johnson, Miss Lula
Belte Stamps, Miss Jean E. Carter, Mr. Thomas, Mr.
Murphy, Mrs. Helen Smith, Mr. Moore, Subjects: math,
history, peography, social studies, ¢itizenskip, Enplish,

After cighth grade graduation, Donald was
bussed to Fraoklin High in 5t. Charles, Missouri for the
ninth and tenth grades. For the cleventh and twellth
grades, he came back to Troy to an integrated Ruchanarn
High School. The 1958 praduation class went to the
Lake of the Ozarks, but the blacks eould not go.

Graduating from eighth grade in 1955 were:
Harald (Harry) Skeiton, Rachel Shelton, Doug Dryden,
Marjorie Ray, Ronald Lee Coclrell, Kenny Bradshaw,
Judy Sydnor.

Gary Sydnor recalled (interviewed in November
of 1993} gotng to Lincoln Grade School for the first thrs
foarth grades. Studenis with him were Ralph Hutt,
Gladys Sydnor and Vera Green. Some of the teachers
werg: Mrs. Blanche George-Johnson, Mrs, Helen Smith,
L. €. Wisc and Mr. Deik. By this time, Mrs. Hammonds
was used only as a substitate teacher. In 1556 Mr.
Svdner was transferred fo an integrated Claude Brown
Elementary.

The graduates from the four-year aceredited
Lincol: High in 1947 were: Eugene Perkins, Alice Mae
Robinson, Jimmy Warren, Flora Sydaoz, Maurice
Sydnor, Marian Lee Shelton. In 1948 Stella Mae
Bailey, Charles Shelton, In 1949: Thomas Higgins Jr,,
Roland C. Sydnor, Jr.., Mary Della Robinson, William
L. Robiason, Thomas Shelton, Perry Shelton In 1950
Valx'g,gsa L. Cockrell, CEfford Teague Jr., Norman
Sydnor, Julius Sydnor.

Beginning in 1951, Lincoin High School was
discontinued. Pupils were bussed to Franklin High in
8t. Charles, Missouri until 1956. White children rode
the same bus to a white high school, and the black chil-
dren had to sit in the back of the bus. The bus drivers
were W. P Johnsen and Freddie Wyatt. 1956 brought
integration into Buchanan High, Troy.

With the complete luss of Linceln School 10
iptegration, the black children and their par;ms t_lad
many irials and battles to fight for equal cducation with-
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in the system, All of the black childree from Lincoln
School had been well educated by their black teachers.
Until recently there had been only two black teachers:
Mr. Charies Green (1970°s} and Mr. Murphy (1960?‘9
for very short time. Mrs, Lori Milter, Mrs. F:isze
Cockrell, and Mrs. Clarissa Sydnor taught as substitie
feachers for several vears. Mrs, Clarissa Sydnor was

7B ol
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hired as a first grade teacher for the 1993 school year.
Contrihuted By Elsie Cockrell

IN PRINT!"

"YOUR COMMUNITY

PROUDLY SERVING YQU SINCE 1986

15 East Cherry St., Troy, Mo, 528-9550

Lincoln County
ociation

T. B__énneﬁ Bu;kemper, J
Thomas B. Burkemper
James D. Burlison
William W. Cheeseman
Dale B Copesssr
Dan B. Dildine
Lee R. Elliott
Patrick S. Flynn

%J ess L. Mueller .
~G. John Richards
Jeffry A. Robertsom
C. Fred Rush, Jr.

W. Suddarth

=t




WHERE THEY WORK HARD

Ira L. Russell Hardware, 1920°s

WITHROW AND SYKORA 1TARNESS SHOP

In 1833 Joseph Withrow opened a harness busi-
ness at the southeast comer of Cherry and Main Street.
The business was handed down to his son T.W.
Withrow, St. He carried on the business until his death
in 1922, At that time John Sykora bought the business
and ran it as long as his health permitted.

My, Svkora began his career as a hamesy maker
in 1890 when he served his apprenticeship under Jewell
Hechler for two years. He then went to work for Mr.
Withrow. At that time, there was enough work to keep
fve expert harness makers busy.

When Mr. Sykorm went into business demands
were mainly for saddles and buggy hamesses. During
the time of the touring cars he repaired the cloth tops
and side curtains, even making leather fan belts for cer-
tain model cars,

By 194} most of the work was the making of
saddles. From his shop, hamnesses, szddles, ¢te. have
been shipped to every state in the union and Canada.

M. Sykora married Frances Stanek. They bad
two daughters, Clara (Mrs. George Weinand) and
Johnnie (Mrs. Henry Schaper).

Pxcacon, 23 he was so fondby known by the ehil-

dren, always had candy to sharc with them. At the
Methodist Church where ke atiended, one could see the
children sliding up to Deacon so he could slip them a
piece of candy.

Mr. Sykora died in 1958,

TROY FURNITURE AND CARPET

One hundred {wenty-live years ago (1869) Mx.
Henry W, Kemper, a {erman immigrant, settfed in Troy
and opened a cabinet making shop. At that time nearly
alt houschold furniture was hand made. As soon as he
was old enough, his son, Sam, helped in the business.
Following his father’s death, Sam and his wife, Frances,
managed the furniture business. In 1944, the business
was sold to Ted Schaeider, an employze of twenty-bwo
years, In March of 1974 the Hall family purchased the
business.

The show room was enlarged, and now contains
approximately 24,000 square feet. Salesmen believe this
£0 be one of the aldest, if not the oldest fumiture store in
Missouri, The furniture business has grown from the
straight back kitchen chair to the modem electric ehair
for the handicapped; from the old namow high back bed
to the king size water bed. The old plank floors have

been replaced by hardwood floors, and coverings are
now vinyl or stain resistant carpet manufactured by
Armatrong and Mohawk,

Appliances have been added to the furnitre
line. Today the store offers a complete line of the most
moderm furniture available.
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KEMPER MARSH FUUNERAL HOME

In the year 1869 a German immigrant cabinet
maker named Heory W. Kemper walked to Troy, leading
a wagon condaining his family, his tools and supplies.
He quickly established himself as the local furniture and
cabinet maker, and soon erected a large three-story
building on Main Street in Troy, He was histed as an
advertiser in the 1873 Troy Herald newspaper.

In the early days of American histary, the local
cabined-maker was the only one who possessed the tools
ta make a proper “coffin,” and as such became the per-
son called when death oceuwrred. They were called
“Undertakers™ or “Furnishing Undertakers” because
they furnished the needed supplies and materials and
“undertook™ the unpleasant task of caring for the dead.
Many people were afraid of the dead, believing that they
could be “cursed” from “beyond the pake.”

Henry Kemper was a man of strong Christian
beliefs and Hile fear, and did his best o serve Lincoln
Ceunty as their “Undertaker”. When a death occurred he
was notified by a horseman or foot-runner. e would go
o the place of death and measure the decedent by cut-
ting lengths of corn-stalk o the exact height and breadth
of the person. He then returned to his shop where he
inrnediately, regardless of the hour, began to construct
the coffin. Henry was assisted by his two sons, Samuel
F. and Emest.

His tools, some of which oxdst foday in his orig-
nal teolbox, ware of saperb quality, and his ability as a
craftsman was wnsurpassed. An example of his work
servives as a “pinch-toe” coffin made for an infant.
This small unit was kerf-sawed then held over steam
and hand-bent to form the necessary curves in the wood.
The 1k of this unit has been measured and found to he
accurate to within 1/32nd of an inch.

Before the Civil War, bodies had been held for
bunal by usc of sy of several patented devices using
tce, but & new procedure known as embaliming was
developed during the war. Ernest aitended a two-day
seminar put on by Professor (self-anointed) A. Johnson
Dodge, who sold Em 2 fow cases of his patenied chemi-
cat and pronsunced him as an “Embalmer of the Dead.”
This was the manner in which most embalmers of the
day were educated.

Following the death of Mr. Kemper the business
fell to his two sons. Samuel and his wife, Frances,
devoted Lhermselves primarily Lo the fumiture store,
while Ern was the embalmer and did most of the funeral
work,

Duriag the early days of the firm, embalming

wag done at home, and the “wakes” were customanly
held in the home also. In futer years the body would be
taken to the furniture store where it would be
embabmed, dressed and casketed. Sam and Ern would
then iake the caskel, along with chairs, Hower rucks,
veils, black crepe door badges, black cloth to cover all
mirtors and pictures in the house, candles and candle
holders and ather appurtenances 1o the home. Friends
would then “sat up” with the body. On the day of the
services the casket would be taken to the church where
services were held, followed by burial in the cemetery
of choice.

Until the 19207, tha casket was conveyed in a
harse-drawn hearse driven for many years by Mr. Fred
Stallard, who passed awav just a very few years ago.
The horse-drawn hearse was replaced by a Meteor
molor hearse in the Iwenties, and this drew the firm into
yet another phase of small town American business. As
times changed, so changed the mares of funeral service.
Soon the firm showed a full line of “ready-made™ cas-
kets on the third floor of the furniture store, and more
and mere families chose 1o bave the “visitation”, as the
wakes were coming to be known, away from the home.
I thesa cases, Sam and Frances Kemper placed the cas-
ket in the bay window of the dining room of their own
hoime.

In 1939 Ernest Kemper died, apd Morris
Muschany, a funeral Ikune owner from Wentzville, was
engaged by the firm for technical work. In 1940 Sam
Kemper hired Joseph 1. Marsh, Sr., who was then work-
ing at the Smith Funeral Home in Hannibal, Missouri, as
the firm's embalmer and funeral director, and to work at
the furaiture stors, On November 7, 1940, Joe, Lois and
Jim Marsh arrived in Troy, and Clay was bom over two
years later in the family home on Third Street. Joe
entered the service of his country in the 1.5, Army,
serving as the 0.8.5. in China, Burma and India and
earned the Bronze Star for valor in battle. Upon his
return in 1945, he and Lois purchased half of the funeral
home from Kempers, and purchased the remainder and
movi! the business to it’s current location i 1950,

Joe Marsh died in 1963 and ownership of the
firm passed to his wife Lois. She was a woman of com-
passion, courtesy and generosity who, like Will Rogess,
“Mever met a person she dide’t Hke.” She was assisted
in the operation of the business by her sons, Jim and
Clay, and by a number of respected men of the Troy
comrmunity, These incleded Ted Schadeder, who had
been with the funeral home and furniture store since
1643, Roy 1.eek, Opal 1. Giles, Howard Briggs, Gary

Hoffman, Ralph, Dareell and Jerry Coose, Harry V.
Dillon, Richard Luckent, Jack Milcs, Ray Henson and
others. These men served as ambulance drivers and
helped on funeral services. Orville, known as “every-
one’s grandpa®, and Glen Bishop, former service man-
ager of Phil Beck Motors, now serve as funeral assis-
tants, and Maureen Basher serves as office manager.

In 1973 Lois and her sons puschased the build-
ing recently vacated by the Peoples Bank of Hawk Point
i that city and opened the Hawk Point Chapel in that
area. Retired postmaster Bill Graham served as manag-
er of that facility until his death.

The firm had cutgrown it's existing fucikities in
Troy, and in 1984/85 added 2 beautiful new chapel facil-
ity seating 175, Designed and built by Robert Kuda of
Teay, the facility was built mostly by Lincoln Coungy
crafismen. The foundation was built by Harke Conerete
of Troy. Coocse construction, owned by former employ-
g Darrell Coose, was the general contracior. The grace-
ful fluted wooden pilasters were created by Wallace
Mershon of Troy, and his son Ronnie buiit the commu-
nion rail, fsetern and the wall behind the pulpit arca,
creating it all from raw wood on the siic,

The lovely gile tnm throughout the chapel was
hawd applied by Bill Reed of Troy, and the remarkable
custom windows in the angles at the front of the build-
ing were created by Joe Thurman of Troy Marble and
Granite. .

Lois Marsh died May 20, 1920, and her sons
[Tim and his wife Altha, and Clay continue fo operate the
husiness.

Today the Kemper-Marsh Funeral Homes stand
ready to scrve the needs of ceniral and western Lincoln
County ss 2 modern, full-service facility offering com-
bined experience of over 120 vears of service to the
people of this area.

Both Jim and Clay were educated in the Troy
school system, and both graduated from Buchanan High
School. The staff of the Kemper-Marsh Funeral Homes,
Jim, Altha, Clay, Mauzeen, Orville, have spent their
entire lives helping to mold Lincoln County into the
finest place on earth.

Wineteen ninety-four marks the heginning of
their 125th year of continnous service fo Lincoln
County under the same name, and they are proud of the
roots and iraditions of their heritage.

TROY AND HAWK POINT
MISSOURI

Compliments of

KEMPER-MARSH
FUNERAL HOMES

Serving Troy and Lincoln County
for over 125 years

Clay, Jim and Altha Marsh
Orville Hutton, Glen Bishop, Maureen Buscher

528-8221
5284799




KEMPER LUMRER COMPANY

Henry W. Kemper came to Troy ia 1869 to
make coffins during the influenza epidemic. He had for-
mely iived in St. Charles, and upon his asrival in Troy
setiled in a house close to the land now known as
Fairgrounds Park. Tn addition to making coffins he went
into the furniture making business and esiablished his
husiness on Main Street. Mr. Kemper also pructiced
Homeopathic Medicine.

Since the Kemper family worked with wood in
the furniture and undertaking business they soon found
that they sold wood (o other people in the community
and thes went into the lumber and building supply busi-
ness. The oldest journal that is available shows eniries
beginning in February 1893, The journal was that of the
Troy Lumber Company, which was what the business
was called at the time.

The lumber yard was focated al the present site
of the St. Stephens United Methodist Chureh  parson-
ape. In 1899 an ad appeared in the Tray Free Press
which read, “H.W. Kemper - Dealer in Lumber - yard
near the Methodist Church.” There was another lumber
yard located in Troy, and in the early 1900°s the Kemper
family purchased that yard and moved the Kemper
Lumber Yard 1o that location, The new location was or
Wood Street close to the Hanni Miil. Wood Street was
zlso known as “Mill Strect”™ in those days due to Hanni
Mifl's location.

HW. Kemper, 8z continued to operate the busi-
ness until his death, His eldest son HW. Kemper, Jr.,
ook over the business with his son Hamry. Harry later
moved to Warrenton and went into the insurance busi-
ness. Whea HUW. Kemper, Jr. became seriously il in
the early 1930°s, his son Charles H. Kemper returned
from Kansas City 1o run the business. Charles was a
registered pharmacist and was working at the Swope
Clinic in Kansas Cify.

DuLiN-HARRELL LuMBgr Co.

DL . HARRELE

3IBC E. Woon 51, Bex T7
Tror, MO S3370 HAWK FONT. MO 63340
1314] 5265.8490  Res. {314) 528-4525 {314} 3394332

Charles H. Kemper ran the busingss, which was
then know as Kemper Bumber Co. uniil his death in
1969, Mr Kemper was very active in the Troy commu-
nity for many years. He worked in the Troy Chamber of
Comemerce, the Troy Rotary Club, St. Siephens United
Methodist Church, the School District R-3 School
HBoard, and Lincoln County Memarial Hospital., In 1950
ke was the President of the Southwestern Lumbermen's
Association which encompassed Arkansas, Kansas,
Missouri and Oklahoma.

Following Charles Kemper’s death, his son
Charles IL “Pheeze” Kerper, Jr. took over the manage-
ment of the business. He operated Kemper Lumber
Company until April 1978 when the busincss was sold
ta Terey Reeder and renumed Tri-Cosniy Lumber
Company. Pheeze Kemper continues to live in Troy and
is the Mayor of Troy and the Secretary-Treasurer of the
Missouri-Arkansas District of Kiwanis International.

KUHNE BROTHERS

In 1877 Otte Debertshauser moved his small
stock of goods from Warrenton, Missonsi to Troy. He
moved it into 2 smalt store room belonging to August
Kuhne. He pave Allic Kuhne a job helping after school
and on Saturdays. He was in Troy one year when he
decided he wanted fo have his store in Bowling Green,
Mo. e persuaded Mr, Kuhne to buy his stock and fum
it over to his 14 vear old son, Allie, which he did. The
store then was called “The New York Racket Store.”
The stock was composed of linware, glassware and
notions. At that time the stock invoiced at $128. By
1919 the inventory had increased to $150,000. The mer-
cantile department end office remained continuously at
the same loeation uadil it was scld in 1950, On QOctober
29, 1991 the old landmark was desiroyed by fire. His
brothers Henry E., George T. and Phillip A. joined the
firm. Mr. Phillip remained with the firm entii his death.
Other family members helping with the business were
Mr, Alhie’s wife Maud, sister Mrs. D.M. Harraway and
John, adopted son of Phitkip.

Mr. Allie and brothers, sons of a blacksmith
[lather, were farmers at heart. Kuhne brothers bought
150 aeres adjoining the town of Troy, On the farm they
placed a herd of holstein cattle which developed into
one of the best producers in the Dairy Caltle
Improvement Association. The herd was used as a
demonstration herd by vocational groups. For many
years A L.. Creech, was farm manager with Vingil
Groshong, his assistant.

‘Thousands of galions of milk were bottled at the

plant. Bulk milk was sold in the Troy store at 6 cents a
guart, They did more: they put in a smull creamery and
ice ceeum [lactory, using the milk from their herd and
buying every gallon of milk and cream Lincoln County
farmers would offer, at a satislaclory price.

Four vears later, Kuhne Brothers decided to do
sornething to stimulate the pochry business. Thousands
af dollurs worth of pouttry and eggs were brought o the
stare. As far back as 1902, the firm had bought 13,359
pounds of turkey in ane day. A plant costing $87,000
was installed and TF. Adams was placed in charge of
the plant, as well as buying every egg and every fowl
farmers offered. Eighteen hundred Hampshire Red
chicks were placed into wire balteries for forced feeding
every thiry days. The batteries could hold 20,008 young
fowi when filled. In one year Big Boy Restaurand at
Wright City served 50,000 chicken dinsers and tock up
0 1,260 Kuhne fryers a week. In 1923 Kuhnes started
buying eggs on grade. As a result, poultrymen started
bringing in eggs more often than once every two weeks,
The buildings down on Front Street housing the poultry
plant have just recently been vacated by the County
Highway Departenent.

Kuhne poultry piant.

The third Kuhac farm venture was with hogs,
They bought everything in pork products farmers
brought in, but demand exceeded supply, Kuhnes put in
a miniature packing plant. They buiit 2 smoke house
and hundreds of hickory smoked hams were shipped to
former Lincoln County residents all over the U S.A. The
progeny of their twenty-four duroc sows, along with
hundreds brought in by farmers, passed through their
packing plant.

Saturday aflemoon drawing of the Kuhne Brothers Mercantiie.



In 1940, the Kuhnes butchered 800 hogs for
farmers complete with sausage and lard for less than §1
a porker. Farmers used the Kubne coolers for storage.
Wuch of the meat, poultry and dairy products were
siored in a Kuhne Market in St. Louis where 1.8, Cox
Was manaper.

in addition to these enterprises they bottled
Kuhne Bro's. soda and manufactured ice. in 1941 CS.
Trail told how farmers were coming into iown for small
purchases. When he joined the company in 1835 as
men’s furnishings depariment head, farmers would stock
up for a long winter, buying as much as $160 worth of
merchandise at a time. Desides the farm enterprises,
Kuhne Mercantile operated a general store selling gre-
ceries, clothing, furniture and in the eerly years sold
coffins. Along with Mr. Trail, other lang time employ-
ess were R.W. Blair, C.F, Schraidt, Lou Story, Charlie
Wiiliams, Joseph Kallash and Mrs. Julius Hunter.

Not only was Mr. Allic a businessmag, but he

Albert A, Kuhne pork, 1918,

took pride in the community and his home. la 1918 he
invited the public to visit and walk through the park
which he provided for public use. The park was located
on the east side of his house where Powell Memorial
Library is now situated. There were over 1,800 plants
and bushes inciuding 200 rose bushes, 600 orange can-
nas along with waler ifies, moon plants and others. In
the northeast comer of the lot there was a goldfisk pond,
stocked with eightean large gold fish and hundreds of
baby ones. Molded concrele scais were provided for
people to sit and rest as they walched the birds from the
twelve to fifleen bird houses. A rose covered trellis
marks each of the three entrances to the park.

Mr. Kuhne was a member of the Troy Methodist
Church, teaching Sunday school for more than fifty
vears, a member of Troy Chamber of Commerce and
IOOF Lodge. When Mr. Kuhne died in 1965, He had
Just completed his weekly religious article for the Free
Press.

Muck and Keck blacksmith shop.

MUCK AND KECK

‘The blacksmith firm of Mack and Keck was dis-
continued in 1960 after serving the Troy arca for 64
years.

John Muck started as a blacksmith assistant in
Tray in 1889, He worked in Troy aatil 1895 when he
went fo Herman, Mo, to work, He returned to Troy in
1896 and opened his own shop. Two years later he buili
a new shop and made Amsold Keck, his half-brother, a
parner. In 1919 they built a new shop.

Fred Keck, a brother of Amold recalled that the
hitching rack outside the building “quite oflen would be
Hned with horses apd wagons,”

The men sharpened plows, repaired wagons and
bugrgies, built wagon and truck beds zlong with the
shoetng of horses. One of the busiest days i the shop
was when the two men put on 367 horse shoes in twelve
hours. The odd shoe was to replace one that had fallen
off.

The men’s mother came from Germany when
she was fourteen years old. John's father died at an carly
age and his mother remarried, They came from their
original home in ('Fallor, Iilinois when Amold was
about six months old.

e
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J. J. Hechler udvertisernent; 1900,

HECHLER HARDWARE

For almost 104 years Hechler Hardware has
been a part of downtown Troy. From the dirt roads and
the days of the horse and bugpy, fo the space age, the
store has witnessed changes and tried o keep up.

Fulius J. Heckler, the founder of Hechler
Hardware, opened the doors for business os March 4,
I896. He had been i the hamess making business in
Troy for about ten years previous to that. He and his
brother-in-iaw, George Kempf had buikt the first two
sections of the Hechler building iz 1891. George Kempf
had a grocery in one side and he had his harness shop in
the other. He then built the last section of the building
and started the hardware business. He was no stranger to
this busimess as his father, Adam Hechler, owned a hard-
ware store on second street in Alton, Illinais, and his
father-in-law. Witliam Kempf. owned a laree hardware



First Hechler and Kermp building, 1891,

store on Markei Street in St Louis.

Julius was an expert tanner and repairman. He
advertised that he could fix anything from an old gun to
a stationary engine. He sold all kinds of farm equip-
ment, spring wagons, surreys and buggies, He instalted
iron and tin roofs, set windmills, end sold wood heating
and ceck stoves. By 1900 he was installing acetylene
gas systems for lighting in homes. The store had 2 full
line of hardware, housewnres, glasswarc and toys.

In 1386 Julius marmried Mathilda Kempf, They
had three childven, Ernest, Laara, and Willie. Willie died
in infancy. Mathilda died of typhoid fever in 1892.
Emest was only five years cld, and Laura was three.
Several years later Julies married Ehizabeth Klcin of
Mascow Mills, Mo, They had five children, Edith,
Fred, Henry, Louis and Edward. Laura died when she
was 18 of Bright’s disease.

In 1903, William L. Martin, Attorney-at-Law
bought half interest in the business and was his partner
for about two years. Tn 1905 Gamer Ellis became his
partner for about o vear. then sold hig share hack to Me

Hechler. In 1910, Ernest, his son, bought half interest in
the business.

In 1918 Ernest was called into the serviee of his
country, He was a member of the 4th division, 12th
Machine Gun Battalion. He was invaived in several well
known battles during World War I, incloding the great
batile of the Argonne in France. After the war he served
with the Army of Occupation in Germuny.

In 1920, Emest was marricd to Ethel Schaper of
near Troy. The had five children, Fhwyn, Mabel, Bthel,
Lucille, George and Robent,

In 1929 julius Hechler died and Ernest became
full owner of the business. Tt was a bad time 1o take over
the basiness, as the depression had just begun. Then
World War I1 followed. Metal was so scarce that the
store couldn’t find items {o stock the shelves with.
There was a scarcity of nails, bolis, and any item that
contzined metal. Ernest sold caps, shirts, and any items
that he couid find to purchase for resale. At Christmas
time, the Hechler children brought their used toys o the

<tnre 1a el as fave were eearce and tha hardumee cinra

Ernest Hechler.

in those days carricd many toys in stock.

When the war was over, the hardware business
recovered and was scon selling all sorts of new services.
They installed Surge Milking Machines, fumaces and
did all manrer of guttering and sheet metal work.

Emest was alse an expert tinner kike his father
His prized creation was a beautiful stainless steel violin
he made in 1962.

In 1966, Frnest sold the business to his son
Robert, who is the third generation owner. Ernest stifl

came 1o the store every day until about six wezks befors
he died in 1980, at the ape of 92,

Hechler Hardware was an authorized Lennox
Bealer for forty-six years and Robert, or Bob as he is
called, installed furnaces and air condifioning until his
health no longer permited.

Bob, and hkis wife, Judy, and their two sons Dan
and Phil, are keeping the old tradition alive. They are
preserving the building as much as possible. The ald
cast iron and zine front still carries the names of J.J.
Heehier and Geo. B Kempf at the top. Some of the old
wooden floors and fixtures are original, along with the
iron ladder on the track to reach the items on the top
shelves. The beautiful, ornate brass cash register that
Julius bought i 1912 is on dispiay in Bob's office.

When the energy crisis developed, selling wood
heating stoves became big business again. Instead of the
old reel type lawn mowers, the boys are seliing the latest
in lawn and garden eguipment.

The Hechler family is proud of their heritage
and hopes 1o serve the public for many years (o come.
Dan has twe fittle fifth generation Hechlers coming
along, Ashley and David. Grandpa Ernie always said,
“Never let the store be for sale!” The family plans to
follow his advice.

I

HESRER

Cur Special thanks lo the
peaple of Troy for their con-
tmaing support and loyal-
y during the past 98 yenrs 8
of the hardware business. §
It is a pleasure to be
purt of Trey’s F752
Anniversary Celebration.
We would Iike to invite
everyone 1o siop by for o
visit during the speeial
euenits.

330 MAIN STREET

TROY, MISSOURI
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TROY MARBLE AND GRANITE

Troy Marble and Granite Company was estab-
lished in the fall of 1904 by Oscar Allison and his wife

¢daughter of John and Elizabeth Thurmon). Dee R.
‘Thurmon became a partner in the business around 1916,
The present building was built in 1919, In 1933 Dee R.
and Thomas E. Thurmon purchased Mr. Allison’s inter-
st and were pariners until 1955 at which time Thomas
F. and Bugene Thurmon purchased Dee Rs interest. It
has been owned by Eugene and Evelyn since 1965,

In earfy days lhe monuments were hauled to the
cemetcry by drafl horses. They would load the team of
horses, wagen, and monuments on 2 raileoad car and
ship us far porth as Cantor, and west 2s far as Mexico lo
instali monuments.

The draft horses were used 1o putling heavy
loads and won the pulling contest at the Lincoin County
Fair so many times the company agreed not 1o compete
anymore.

In later years trucks wese used, and due o the
mud roads and fifteen mile per hour top speed, it weuld
take four 1o five kours to get to Montgomery City to set
3 monwnent.

Troy Marble and Granite has been on Main

Street ofthe 175y

| ence}' Val & Sara Spencer

l 430 Main St.
Jaler jJ Troy, MO 63379
- 3145287032

Antiques & Collectibles

CANNON COMPANIES (ForuMERLY TROY IVIRANCE AGENCYS

Charles Barnett Collard {usually answering to
“C B.” or “Case™) was a dreamer, but a practical dream-
er, who made his dreams come irue by knowing how to
face reality in the litde town of Troy be loved so much.
1le secmed 1o know, even as a boy, that when things did-
n't abways werk out (living on a small farm had taught
him that at an carly age), perhaps, just around the comer
was that which would/could “fix the broken plow.”

C.B. was born on a little farm in a fittle red brick
house {imost doll sized) just outside the little town of
New Hope, and the school he attended uniil he was
twebve years old was calied (this is the truth!y *The Last
Chance Schoolhouse,™ He was bormn January 21, 1893.

His hers was Abraham Lincoln and some of
Honesi Abe certainly rabbed off on “C.B." In his world
of business, his world of friends, his family world, hoa-
esty played a big important part - a strong chord.

A new world was opened to him when he
moved to Troy with Kate, his mother, and his stepfather,
Ben Cannon. {His father had died very carly, as had two
rothers, Sherman and AB). Mr. Cannon had bought a
Fvery stable in Troy which had accounted for the fami-
ly's move from the farm. C.B. helped at the stables, but
kis favoritc job was driving the carriages down to The
Evergreens, a summert tesort just outside of Moscow
Mills - the hig house still stands and is kept in pood
shape, and some of the evergreens are sil! there.

In this new world, almost immediately, C.B. was
discovered by his first Troy teacher whe saw that bright
young mag, but 2 very quiet man, however, she knew
she had a student who had come to leamn. And learn he
did. This teacher was Miss Frances Jordan and she
often said that not only was be an excellent student (he
wias always wanting to learn more and more), but he
was the most handsome young man she had ever seen,
All through fife, until her death, she was a very impor-
tant persor fo him and he always respected her advice
and her friendship. Miss Jordan became the wife of Sam
Kemper who was in the furniture business as well as the
mortuary in Troy with his father and brother - the mor-
tuary s now known as Kemper Marsh Funeral Home.

While in high school, “C.B.” worked ‘at Bragg
Drug Store, & store that not only filled prescriptions,
efc., but also had truly wonderful gifis of china, glass
and heantiful boxes of candy. This was the time of his
courtship with the girf he married, Mary Eugene Sydnor.
(.B., being romantic, saw to it that a lot of kis small
salary was spent on china dishes and gorgeous boxes of
candv.
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In his first venture in *his own™ busingss, just as
he was leaving high school {but for a long tine he con-
tinued by mail correspondence courses in English, histo-
ry and lew}, he bought 2 local cleaning and pressing
business for $250. He added sample books for men to
look a1 and select suits for themselves. “Every suit is
guaranteed o fit and to give satisfactory wear” was in
his Troy Free Press ads, because he believed in the
power of sdverlising and uscd it in all his businesses.

C.B. wus now called Merchant-Taylor. The shop
was in the Colbert Hotel on Main Sizeet. {This hotel was
owned by Ed Wright and his wife, Maud Coibert
Wright. Ed was 1he uncle of Alda Haverkamp and Maud
was the auni of Mary Collard).

While running his new business, C.B. was
hecoming inerested in the field of insurance, and one of
his custorners, Wesley Schiceman, had his small insur-
ance agency, Peoples Insurance Agency, for sale. At the
time, someane had wanted to buy the Merchant-Taylor
shop. C.B. sold it and bought the Peoples Insurance
Agency, but nof long after, he wanted the name Troy in
the name (always wanting to advertise Troy). The name
was changed to the Troy Insurance Agency,

When the Troy Building was bailt on Main
Street, the Troy Insurance Apency office was movad to
the second floor of that new building. The second floor
had, through the years, doctors, lawyers, dentists, and
the Troy Insurance Agency. And for the first fime, C.B.
had a secretery, only in those days she was zalled the
stenographer. She was Laura MeKay, daughter of Dr.
McKay wha had his offices over the Bragg Drug Store.
(Later in her life, she became the first “lady” postmaster
for Troy and later married Hugh Scotl, & very successful
farmer just north of Troy.}

in 1932 Gwen Howell became the secretary and
she helped immeasurably during those lean “deprassion
days™ as well as the more prosperous days that fol-
lowed. Gwen resigned twenty vears later having married
lawyer Grover Huston. The valuable (“C.B.” descrip-
tion) secretaries to follow were Norma Rakmeier
Keeteman, Jean Kadlec Meyer and Linda Shaw Seeger.
C.B. always felt these young ladies were very much a
part of the success of the company.

I was in the early thirties that the Troy
Insurance Agency added real cstate to the fim. There
came a time when C.B. (elt he should add a young man
10 the staff, someone with new ideas and could carry on
the business. He staricd looking for someone to fit wha
he was looking for, ind then he thought “why ook fur-
ther?”, Why look any further than his nephew Harold

Harmon Cannon, the son of Harold and Lilkian Cannon.
Harold was young and he was bright. Harold and his
wife, Raihy, were approached and it scemed that aVery-
thing fell into place. Harold joined his unele in 1958,

The offices were still on the sceond foor of the
Troy building, but there was a need for expansion and
the offices were moved to the first flaor of the same
building. In 1971, the offices were maved into a new
affice building at Lincoln Drive and Chesry Streer.

“C.B.” was a worker in any organization he
belonged o, He was particularly interested in the Troy
Chamber of Commerce (he was president of the organi-
zation and alse Man of the Year). A big part of his heart
was in Kiwanis. He also was president of that organiza-
ton and was called “Mr. Kiwanis™ and so honored at the
end of his business career. He was also active and loved
his church, Troy First Christian Church. “CB.” retired
in the mid-scventies and died in 1979. Harold and
Kathy saw lo it that C.B. had an office in the new quar-
ters whenever he wanted to get away from home, 801
Second Sireet. He always felt welcomed and still a part
of the family. “C.B.” planted the acom, the little compa-
ny he started in the zarly twenties, which has become 2
pari of the large and successful Cannon Companies.
Harold and Kathy's two sens, Mikel and Monte and
their families, are a big part of the company today. The
spreading czk tree is growing in: the city of Troy.

Mikel and Monte Cannon joined the company
after having received college degrees. Mike married
Pamela Pendelton, davghter of Ron and Leveda
Pendelton, in 1577. They have a daughter, Carrie, and 8
son, Cale. Pam is the owner of The Mane Place hair
salon, formally known as Laveda’s. In 1978 Monte mar-
ried Fanet Fischer, daughter of Don and Laverne Fischer.
They have a son Tyler, and a daughicr, Rachel, Janet is
an English teacher at Troy Junior High School.

Starting with an insurance agency and real esiate
brokernge, the Cannon Companies have grown steadily
in the past thirly-six years, which now includes nine
additional companies managed by Haroid, Mikel and
Monte. The success of the companies kave been due to
the dedication of key employees such as Linda Sceger
who has contributed 2B years and Charlens Tweliroan,
now manager of the Troy Insurance Agency, has devot-
ed over fifteen years. Several other emplovees have
served over ten years as a tearn with the Camnons who
havc aiways been a family oriented business,

In Movember 1990, the new office building
located at Lincoln Drive and Highway 47 was complet-
ed and now serves as the Cannon Companies home.
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FASHION SHOP WILLIE AND DOT

The earliest history of the Faskion Shop began
before the business really existed. Miss Willie
McCuliock had an understanding with Kuhne Bros.
store wherehy she kept her hemstiiching machine in
their window, and helped on the floor when not busy.
The plan worked out very weli untid Willic no longer
had time to help on the foor.

About this time, Miss Dorothy Holmes was
looking for a business in which to invest some money.
Together they formed a partnership and went in to busk-
ness over Penn’s Cafe, Incated where Shamrock Park is
now. Alang with the hemstiching they carried a ling of
hats, and Miss Maude Haddock of Silex was in with
them as a dress maker, Miss Haddock stayed with them
for twu and one-half years.

Being upstairs was a haedicap, in March of
1922 the parmers decided to rent and move to the first
floor of the former Universalist Church on Main Strect.
The following Scptember they were able {o purchase the
buitding.

In 1924 Willie began to believe that the beaury
business was the coming thing. At that time, she had
never as much as seen a beauty shop, The more they
talked the better the idea scemed 1o them. They went to

Lowisiana, MO, and studied and finished at the
Marinello School of Beauty Culture in St. Louis.

Their Troy friends were not encouraging. One
woman was offered a shampao just to scquaint her with
the idea, but she fatly announced that she could wask
her own hair. Another said asbsolutely they would never
get any of her money. Most of their friends fold them
hey were very sorry for them that they had gone to all
that expense! Undaunted, they forgad ahead. In the
futire both of the ladies became steady customers!

At the time women were just beginning to cut
their hair, and women came in so quickly thal they were
almost overrun with business. Thwn hair wus oaly mar-
celled, round curled, or set with water wave combs. One
woman would come in and watch another have her hair
cut and curled. She wouldn’t have the slightest idea
what kind of curi she had, but wouid ask for the same as
the preceding woman. In 1933 they installed their first
permanent wave machine. Miss Norme Kummer of St
Louis was their first sperator and stayed with them a
year and & haif. Miss Mary Jane Walton (later Mrs.
Martin Seidel) graduated from the Mardnella School of
Beatty Culture in 1935 and jeined them.

in £934 a celebration, celebrating their first ten
vears of business i the beauty shop was held. They cel-

chrated with a baby show held in the Colonial building,
which then housed the picture show (located on the
portheast corner of Cap-au-Gris apd Main). Fifteen boys
and twelve pirls were entered. The judges chose the son
of Mrs. Johnnic Kuda and the daughter of Mrs. Rex
Reckman the winners. The mothers of the winncrs
received a permanent wave each, and all present were
weatcd to the picture show.

When they first started into business the prices
were §1.20 for a marcelle and shampoo, and $1.06 for a
shampoo and set. During the Depression just before
Christmas of *31 they lowered their prices to 25¢. It
wasn't untif 1935 that there was another beauty shop in
Troy. As their business grew they added other lines.
Two of their faithful sales ladies were Mis. Judpe Heek
and Mrs. Avery Walker.

The beauty shop was later moved to their home
on Boone Street and continued until the 1950°s.

FASHION
BEAUTY

SHOP

Shampoo and Finger Wave...
Dry Finger Wave ...
Wet Finger Wave.
Marcel ...
Hair Cn
‘Manicure
Arch .

[ Shampoo and Finger Wave.
Nestle Colorinse. ...
Henna Pack with Shnmpw

and Finger Wave

L

Bukikbhise

Croquignole Bad Curls, each . 15
?ERHANEN'?S-—$3 50 and &5 Oﬂ

A Satisﬁed Cﬁe-tele ?rom the Qual-
ity of Our Service. Youw'lt find a hearty
welcorme always awailing vyou at our
shap.

Willie McCulloch Dorothy Heimes
“Kegp Thet Well-Groomed Look”

BESSIE MAE SHOPPE

The Bessie Mae Shoppe originated in Windield,
Mo., sometime in the 1930’s. it was owned and operated
by Bessie Mac Blair as a millinery, Later on, in the same
decade, she moved her business to the Birdie Wuif prop-
erty on Main Street in Troy, which is presently the

Finley Shoe Store. In the early 1940°s Mr. and Mrs.
Blair built a new building at 340 Main Strect where they
operated a ladies ready-to-wear shop. 1n August, 1936,
the shop was sold to Opal and Dorathy Giles, where
they continued operation of the Bessic Mac Shoppe
antil 1982, at which timc it was sold o their daughter,
Pat Stark, who continucs her business at the sume loca-
tion.

KROGER

The first Kroger Store in Troy opened in the
summer of 1922 on the southwest comer of Main Street
and Wood Street where the Treasure Shop is now locat-
ed, formerly known as the Dyer Building. The first man-
ager was Mr. Robert Sanderson. with Mr. Wyatt
Rinaman as clerk.

Shortly afler the store openad Mr. Sanderson leil
and Mr. Rinamar was made manager. In 1930 Mr, Ed
Wieman was made manager. The store operated on
Main Street until 1941 when it was anncunced that
Kroger was going self service and moving to West
Cherry Strect. The store remained there until 1966
when it was moved fo East Cherry Street, where the
Orschein store is now located.

After serving as manager for 44 years, Mr.
Wieman retired and Mr. Charles Rexroat was made
manager.

In 1973 Highway 47 was re-routed and busi-
nesses began 1o move to the north edge of town. In 1975
Kroger butk  new Superstore in the Lincola Shopping
Center focated on the south side of Highway 47,

Tn 1986 plans were announced for the construc-
tion of a 43,500 square foot building to be keated in
Troy Square on the notth side of Highway 47. This is
the fifth location: for Kroger since coming to Troy in
E922.

The Kroger Co. J-724

#1 Trav Seuake SHorrng CENTER » TRCY, MO
(314) H28-8423




P. M. Weinand arxi his fonk wogon tuck, cireg 1931,

WEINAND YOUNGER SUPPLY COMPANY
1931-1984

Weinand Younger Supply Company's histary
begins in Troy, Me., in 1931 when Paul Meriyn
Weinand became the agent for Sinclair Refining
Company. PM. was 23, the youngest son of Henry John
Wesley Weinand and Beriha Annetes Cortelyou
Weinand, PM. had moved to town from the family farm
on Highways ] and U, and roomed and boarded at the
Jones Hotel at the northeast comer of Main and Colicge.

George Albert Weinand, one of PM.’s three
older brothers, was employed by Nicholas Hanni, agent
for Texaco in Troy. As the Sinclair agency grew, PM.
was joined by George. The two delivered petroleumn
peodducts in a tankwagon truck, casrying product in five
gallon buckets from Lhe truck to their customers® stor-
age. They had a bulk plant on Front Street.

Working from their homes and “hip pockets,”
their books were kept by Georpe’s wife, Clura Sykota
Weinand, in their home at 881 W. Cherry. About 1934
the Weinands rented a cubicle office in the W.G,
Schaper Ford Motor building at 52{ Main. The brothers
sold gasolinc from pumps installed on the curb in front
of the agency.

In 1935 M. married Sarah Frances Taylor,
daughter of Charles Franklin and Alice Frances Diryden
Taylor of Briscoe. Their only child, Alice Annetts, was
born in 1936 They moved to the home at 390 Monroe
in 1938, where Mrs. Weinand stil} resides.

The Weinand brothers opened a new Sinclair
gasoline station on Highway 61. (N. Lincoln Dr.), just
north of Highway 47, (E. Cherry), in 1937, The boilding
was white stucco with & green tile oof, a canopy, two
bays, a pump island and a cafe. The brothers owned s
businesg antil the mid-1950%.

in 1942 John N, Allen was hired to drive and
deliver product, beginning a long line of employees in
the Schaper-Allen farmily. Scon John's wife, Tiah Marie

Schaper Allen began part time bookkeeping, working in
her home. In 1946 Mrs. W.G. (Florence) Schaper begap
as office manager-bookkoeper assisted by her daughte
She retired in 1968. Her husband, W.Gi., worked pant
time for Weinand Bros. Mrs. Allen then began full
time, retiring in 1982, Her husband, fohn, retired in
1974, Their son, James Nicholas, began tire work with
the company in 1977 and continues there. Another rela-
tive, Franklin Schaper, (W.43,’s brother), was a driver in
the late 3¢’s era.

in 1946 the brothers moved their business across
the street {0 520 Main and formed a partnership,
Weinand Bros. Supply Co. Ifere they continued in the
Sinclair agency and added 2 line of Goodyear tires.
Tires wese mounted in a buck room which also served as
a tire warchouse, and were installed outdooss in the rear,
on the ground, below the loading dock.

it should be noted that in WWIL staying in the
petroienm business became an art of sorts as rationing
affected every petroleum user. P.M.’s daughter recalls
ki sorting, counting, and tallying boxcs and boxes of
redeemed rationing stamps. Sleep at the home was fre-
quendy interrupted by a phone call summoning PM. to
the bulk plant where a transport defivery was made.
P.M. would dress, drive to the Front 56 location, chimb
to the tops of tanks, measure, wait for the product to be
pumped, then measure again to determine he had
teceived the number of gallons he was ready to sign for.

In the 1940°s George Weinand was diagnosed
with multiple sclerosis and by 1950 was physically
unshle to work. He remained an inactive partmer. ITis
wife, Clara, worked at Bank of Troy. They had no chil-
dren. George died in 1975,

About 1960 PM. purchased a gasoline station at
E. Cherry and Second. The company operated the sta-
tion umtil 1990,

In 1961 P.M.’s daughter with her husband,

TIRES TIRES TIAES

Weinand Younger Supply Co.

THE TIRES PEQPLE
ZI0E.Cnery SL Troy, MO 63378
Tises and Tire Sandes of a8 Kinds

8 am~5pm

314-578-4334 Mo thra Sal.

william Michae! Younger, Jr., moved to Troy when
vounger left the LS. Navy as a submarine officer. The
conple had met at the University of Missouri where
Younper was sent on 2 NROTC scholarship from his
home in Asheville, NC. Younger worked tor Goodyear
in §t. Louis until 1963 when he began work with
Weinand Bros., conceatrating his efforts in the tire area.
Mike and Alice Ann became parents of Sarah Davis in
1965 and William Michae! TII in 1968.

On June 29, 1968, PM. Weinand fell dead of a
heart attack at his desk at Weinand Bros. His son-in-faw
continued operating he business and purchased Georpe
Wainand’s interest, forming Weinand Younger Supply
Co. Inc., and Weinand Younger Petroleum Co. Ine.
PM.'s widow retained her interest in the Supply Co.

in 1972 Younger purchased the propeny adia-
cent fo the E. Cherry 5t. gasoline station and erected the
building presently housing the company at 230 E.
Cherry St. The building is 5,600 square feet and houses
their office, display area, service bays and warchousc.
The company sells a full line of passenger, truck, farm
and industriai {ires, representing nurersus brands.

In 1990 Weinand Younger sold their oil business
to Bobeen Oil of Troy. They continue in the wholesale-
retail tire business.

McCOY BLOSSOM FUNERAL HOMES

In 1933 Wayne and Heten McCoy founded the
McCoy Funeral Home in the Harbaum property af 230
Boone Street. Wayne and Helen continued Lo operate the
business untit 1970 when they merged with Paul
Funeral Home of Warrenten, MO, In January of 1983,
sim and Mari Blossom purchased the funeral home,
adding the name Blossom to that of McCoy, New
enlarped facilities were constructed at 1304 Boone
Street with four chapels available. Chapels are also
located in Moscow Mitks, Winfield, Elsberry and Eolia.

WESTERMN AUTO

Western Aute has been part of downtown Troy
for aver fifty years. Since its beginning in 1940, it has
been owned and operated by three generations of the
Curt family. .

Walter J. and Clara Curt opened the business in
1940 seliing a varicty of iterss from automotive parts
and Western Flver bicycics, 10 gas powered wringer
washing machincs and battery operated radios. ' Without
electricity in the surrcundiag rural area, battery operated
radios were as popitlar as television is today.

In 1940 when the business started 3 was located
at 440 Main Streer, where Russ Nivon Auto Parts is
today. Over the vears, as the business grew and became
a part of the community, Walter 1. and Clasa chose to
build a new store and relccated the business. In 1248 a
new huilding was built and the store moved to 309 Main
Street, its present location. Walter L. and Evelyn Curt
took over the business when his dad retired in 1955. As
time went on the 2,500 square oot building soon
became inadequate. Additional space was needed @
carry ail the new lines Western Auto was offering.

In 1964 & larger building was buill next to the
existing store and the store moved to 381 Mam Sireet.
Both buildings are presenily being used. The business
continged to grow and in 1971 another building was
built behind the existing store. This building has been
used for a warchouse and to provide auto and small
enging service for customers.

Walter I.. and Evelyn Curt stayed in the business
until 1976 when the third generation of Cart’s, Mark
and Karen took over. Over the past fifty-four years
Westarn Auto Supply compary has made many changes.
One aspect that has remained unchanged is the personal
attention apd service received by each customer.
Western Awto has grown with the community thanks to
the generosity of ail its valoed customers.

w2MSCo

Jim & Mari Blossom

Troy & Moscow Mills + 528-8244
Eolia * Elsherry » Winfield

]
TACO BELL.

Troy, MO 63379 (314) 528-4873




TROY AND WENTZVILLE
VETERINARY CLINICS, TNC.

The Troy and Wentzville Veterinary Clinies, Inc.
is honored to share in Troy's 175th Birthday
Celebration, With the area rich in agricultural tradition,
the Troy Veterinary Chnic claims roots deeply imbed-
ded in the repion, providing the first and only veterinary
service available for many miles. With the area void of
additional velerirary care, the aext closest service avail-
able would have heen in St. Charles.

Troy's histary for veterinary care began over
fifty vears ago when Dr. Bender came to the area.
Service provided through Dr. Bender’s home and veteri-
nazy care in this ers was almost exclusively for lvestock
as the service catered to the vastly rural area,

in August 1951, Dr. Rameau fobnson, an Ohio
Siate praduate, purchased the business from Dr. Bender,
who left to practice in Nevada, Missourl, The business
was jocated in Dr. Johnson's home on Cap-au-Gris. The
following year Dr. Johnson was joined by Dr. William
E. Newberry, a graduate of Kansas State College of
Veterinary Medicine.

While in veterivary school Dr. Newberry
enjoyed some time in the national spotlight when he was
featured on oational television demonstrating the use of
a surgical instrument he had invented. This instrument is
still widely used in the livestock industry.

In 1933 the business purchased a building that
remains the present location at 210 North Lincoln Drive.
This huilding was purchased from Jerry Burkemper and

had previously been used as a packaged ligeor store.
The need for a move from the home-based business of
Dr. Johnson to a pare business location accommodated
the growing needs of the community and growing
emphasis on pet animals.

In 1960 the business expanded to a second loca-
tian in Wentzville and started the present association of
the Troy and Wentzville Veterinary Clinics, Tnc. A third
veterinarian was added, Dr. John Mozier, from the local
area. His stay was short as he left to join the Amyy and
he was replaced by Texas A & M graduate Dr. Lioyd
Selis. His stay was also shart and he was replaced in
1965 by a Wright City native, Dr. E.D. Garrent. Dr,
{Garrett, a graduate from the University of Missouri,
contimes o erjoy a fong association with the business.

When Dr. Jehnson retired in 1973 he was
replaced by D Alkite who stayed for five years, leav-
ing in 1978, Dr. DN. Rasmussen, an IHinois graduate,
came to the area in 1978 and remains active in the pre-
sent practice, When Dr. Mewberry retired in 1984, the
vacated position was filled in 1983 by Dr. R.D. Ragan, a
Missousi graduate, who remains active i the business,

Witk continued rapid growth of the area, the
business has expanded in Troy, built a new clinic at
Wentzville in 1991, and added a fourth veterinarian to
the practice. Dr. Carol Ryan, a Foristeil native, gradaat-
ed from the University of Missouri and joined the prac-
tice in 1992,

The two clinics service western §t. Charles
county gnd the entite Lincoln County area extending
frem: Dardene northward 1o Eolia end {rom the extreme
eastern Missouri border as far west as Truxton. Services
have progressed from almost exclusively farm animals
in the zarly years to include small animals to a level as
high as sixty to seventy-five percent of the business
teday. The practice also secs a growing number of exot-
ic animals as they become increasingly more popular.

Taov & Wewrzviile Vercrmeany Cumics, Inc.

TROY BFFICE
210 M. UMCOLN OR., TROY
TEL S2Ra5%8

WENTIVILLE OFFICE
W2 £, PEARCTE, WENTZ
TEL 375438

HOURS: MORNIRG BY AFPOINTMENT
MON.-THUR. 2 7O & PM~TROY
FRIGAY & T % M. YROY
MOR -FRI 2 TO B BM. WENTIVILLE
SATURDAY { YO 3 Pbl —TROY & WENTTVI LE
RECULAR HOURS & EMEAGENCIED - 24 HOUR CALL

o AT T A e T Ryt R

WESTERMANN FROZEN FOOD LOCKER

The latc John Westermann operated the first
locker plant in Lincoln County from 1947 1o 1971, John
pionzered the freezer business in Lincoin County in
1942 and started building his freezer operation in 1945,
The freezer operation opened in 1946, He erected the
most modern food locker and slaughtering honse i the
state at that Lime, destgning the whole building himself,
This {reezer operation served the Troy community for
25 years until sold in 1971, John being manager and
president at all times,

During this time Johns civic interests were
many. He served on the board of aldermen in Troy for
{wo terms and while alderman he was also street com-
missioner. John was past president of Troy Rotary Club
and was a 25 year membez. He served many terms oa
the Board of Directors Troy Chamber of Commercs and
was awarded Man of the Year in 1968, He served sever-
al times as a Bey Scout district director and received a
recognition award from the Boy Scouts. He helped ini-
tiate and organize the Lincoln County Beef Association.
John was interested in 4-H and FFA activities and
received an award as friend of 4-H in 1972, Ako, he
worked with meat judging classes and initiated lie
Carcass Fvaluation class which has been held since
1960, Jokn was also interested m trees. He served as
chairman on a commitice which platted plantings of
twees and shrubs for the city park. He started the Troy
Garden Club on a program of planting a tree on Arbor
Day. These trees have been planted on the courthouse
lawn, in the city parks, or at the Sheltersd Workshop.

To John his greatest and proudest achievement
was to help reestablish the Lincoln County Youth Fair
and he was the first chairman of the present sssociation.
He served on the board for approximately sixteen years.
He was known as Grand-Daddy of the Youth Fair,
receiving a sixteen year plaque in appreciation of his
services in 1976.

Wastenmann Frozen Food Locker,

Dee Hunter, 1551,

HUNTER AND TURNBULL REDI MLX

Dee Hunter and Eldon Turnbull started the first
Redi-Mix Concrete plart in Troy in 1951, The plant was
located on Ellis Strect. They contracted for constructing
basements and afl types of concrete work. They operat-
ed uniti! 1960 when they sold out o TTunt Corcrele.

After retiring from business Dee became
Alderman and served as interim Mayor in 1989-90, He
was still an Alderman at the time of his death in 1991,

HARCOURY BRACE

Groundbreaking ceremonies were held October
14, 1968 for a new type of business for the Troy area.
Harper and Row Publishing, one of America’s oidest
firms, was preparing to apen its Midwestern Book
Bistribution Center in Troy. The building covering
seven and one-half acres made it one of the largest
buildings in the publishing worid. The warehouse had
storage space for 22 million books. At the time of open-
ing in 1970, books were donated to Poweil Memonal
Library, giving the library personncl the privilege of
later selecting new publications as they became avail-
able. The business was located on the south edge of
Troy on what is now south Lincoln Drive.

The building was sold in 1985 to Harcourt Brace
Company and the Harper and Row distributinn center
was moved to anether facility. Harcourt Brace immedi-
ately added 136,500 square feet bringing the total area
{0 427,000 square feet. This made room for the moving
of its Weber Costelio subsidiary to Troy. Weber Cosizilo
was later sold making more warehouse space available.
In 1994 the area that housed Weber Costelio underwent
extensive renavation to accommodate the warehouse
autoration project,



BODINE ALTIMINUM

Bodine Aluminum, Inc. was founded in 1912 by
Jesse R. Bodine to manufacture patterns for Dorris and
Meon “motor cars™. Since then, the company is now one
of the lurgest producers of aluminum castings in the
country and supplies products to many customers in the
acrospacs, agriculfune and attomorive fields.

I.?.ecause of the demand in the awtomotive indys.
. 'B.odme Aluminum expanded and built the new Troy
Division to produce aluminum automotive parts far the
Toyota Camry plant in Georgetown, Kentucky, The
Troy plant is one of the most modern and highly auto-
fnated aluminurn foundries in the world. The new facil-
ity began full production in Seprember 1993 and

cmploys cighty-five team members on a two shi
=g a two shift opera-

BODINE

ALUMINUM, INC.

Congratulates
the

CITY OF TROY

on their

175th
ANNIVERSARY

Troy’s HomeTowN Rabio Station
Since 1949

COUNTRY

Warrenton - Troy « Wentzville

SEe Us At Our New
Troy Location Next 1o Troy Citco

' BANKING

1t was not urnti] February 1873 that a charter was
granted for a bunk in this part of Missouri. Priorto this,
bznking service in Troy was provided by John Knox and
others who had conducted a private bank.

Through the activity of such mer as Walten
Perkins, Elias Norton, Dr. I, W. Welch, Henry T, Mudd
and other leading businessmen, a bank 1 be known as
Farmers and Mechanics Dank was orgenized and char-
tered. The bank hagan with a capital of $10,000 and the
stockholders soon began io receive a [00% dividend.
This was possible because of the scarcity of money and
the high rate of interest received. As it was the only
bank between Bowling Green, St. Charles and Louisiana
the demands upen its services were great.

In 1967 the Masonic Lodge and the Bank jointly
erected a new building located on the northeast corner
of Main and Cherry Streets. Locating to the center of
town ond an increase of capital resulted in an increase in
business. Tn 1922 it was shown as the leading bank in
Lincoln County.

in 1923, improvements were made which
included a new front, and a writing room where one
could find a comfortable fire, writing materials and
tables providing tor the convenience of the customer,

On August 15, [891 a new bank known as the
People™s Savings Dank of Troy was chartered. Twenty-
one husiness men became the first stockholders. Tn 1895
the name was changed to Peoples Bank.

The capital stock continued to increase and on
February 3, 1923 the bank was relocated to the south-
west carner of Main and Chemry. The new location pro-
vided for a community room that could be used by the
citizens of the community for meetings of various kinds,
Instalicd was a marmamath new vault with 2 6 1/2 ton
Mosler doar, providing space where people of the com-
munity could securely store their valuables. 1t was esti-
mated that on epening day between [200 10 1368
attended the program aranged by the officers and direc-
tots. BEveryone received a souvenir: there were sewing
yils far the ladies, maichboxes for the men, and basebali
tops for the children. The feature of the day was a
guessing contest of how many pennies were in & gless
bowl. Mrs. W. £. Aydelott and Mrs. Lenora Walton cach

reccived a §5 gold piece, as they cach were each within
four of the correct number of 1291, Receiving the prize
as the youngest depositor was the four day old son of
Mr. and Mrs. D, H, Walton of Hawk Point. A prize was
given o the oldest depasitor. Prizes were also given for
the largest depositor and the largest depoesitor in a sav-

SERVING

THE BANKING
NEEDS OF
LINCOLN COUNTY
FOR 60 YEARS

BOATMEN'S®
BANK OF TROY

FDIC




ings account. The first person to register that day and
the first time depositor all received gifts. )

Prosperity continued pndl 1430 when business
corditions became such that Peoples Bank merged with
Tarmers and Mechanics Bank and the deors of the
Peoples Bank closed forever. As business conditions
worsened, the Famers and Mechanics bank closed in
Tuly of 1931 for reerganization or liquidation. They
were never able to revrganize; in 1941 the remaining
notes and assets of the hank were sold at public auction
at the courthouse door and the final checks were mailed
to the Former depositors.

Troy was without the facility of banking ser-
vices until August 1935 when a charter was granted ©
the Bank Of Tray. The bark opened September 38, in
the buiiding of the former Farmers and Mechanics
Bank. The oflicers were: Ira L. Russel, President (akso
the first depositor-§100); W, £. Aydelott, Vice President;
R. H. Brown, Cashier; Goldic Brown, Assistant Cashier
and employee, Wendle C. Wombles. The directors
weze: Dr. Ben L. Neubeiser, Dr. H. S. Harris, John
Dowell, Henry Nichaus, R. I1. Brown, W, E. Aydelot,
fra E. Russell. The statement at end of the first day:
loans, $7.00; cash and due, $60,352.30; FDIC,
$750.00; expense, $33.00; total, $61,230.76. The Habili-
ties and vapital were: capitat $25,000.00, surplus
$5,000.00. In 1966 they moved to 2 new building locat-
ed on the northeast corner of Main and College. In
1976 the building was remodeled to accommodate the
increase in business, In 1972 Boatmen's National Bank
purchased the business. As banking was increasing and
new business’s were being buiit in this ares, Boatmen's
maoved in 1990 to their new modem facilities on Front
Street.

CLIFFORD BANKING COMPANY
Clifford Banking Company has a fong and suc-

BOWLING GREEN £314) 324-3385
CLARKSVILE (374) 242-3517
EOLIA (354} 4B5-7 471
TROY (314} 528 2526

STEPHEN A. JONES
Presisnt

CLIFFORD BANKING COMPANY

BUS. 81 & 34, BOWLING GREEN, MISSOUST &334
410 5. SECOND, RHSSOURS #3336
BOUTE D & U5, 81, ECLA, WISSIRRL 63544

15 N. LINCOEN DR.. TROY, MISSOLRY &3578

SANLE 1RT1
MEMSER FTHC

cessful history in the Pike and Lincoln County area,
Clifford Barking Company was incorporated in 1871 by
Benjamin P. Clifford in the town of Clurksville, Mo.
Mr. Clifford was a riverboat captain and had established
a company, Benjamin P. Clifford ané Sons- Rankers, in
the 1850s. The bank received its F.D.1.C. insurance
charter in 1935 certificate number 1421, In 1959 G
Jack Jones Jr. purchased the company from Mr. Robers
Carrol, a direct descendant of the founder, Mr. Jones
came from Elsberry, Mo. where his father was in charge
of the Bank of Lincoln County under the ownership of
U.8. Congressman, Clarence Cannor. In 1976 Mr. Jones
purchased a controlling interest in the Citizens Bank of
Troy in which his son, Stephen Jones was in charge.
Duz to Mr. Jones sudden death in 1977 the Citizeas
Bank of Troy was merged and sold to the Peoples Bank
of Hawk Point. In 1991 Clifford Banking Company was
the first bank o apply and receive permission to estab-
lish a bank facility in Troy, across county lines under a
dew state branch banking law, The bank puechased the
Prudential Bank building a1 115 North Lincoln Drive for
a full service banking facility. Stephen Jones, president
of the bank s in charge of this office. Stephen is mar-
ried to Mary Beth Curt daughter of Walter Curt, whose
fumily has been an established Western Auto retailer in
the Troy community for over filly years. The Jones fam.
ily has been serving the financial needs of the citizens of
the Lincoln County community for three generations.

FEOPLES BANK AND TRUST OF LINCOLN CO.

Peoples Bark and Trust Company of Lincoln
County was originally organized under the name of
Peoples Bank of Hawk Point on March 10, 1924,
Peoples Bank started by acquiring the assels of the Bank
of Hawk Point which had been in existence since 1905,
The first president of Peaples Bank of IHawk Point was
William Kowazek, and Richard H. Brown was the otigi-
nai cashier and bank manager. The original Board of
Directors of Peoples Bank of TTawk Point was William
Kowazek, .M. Barbee, Otho F. Barley, Charles S.
Eames, William Lanwehr, Frank Kaizel, Sr. and Fred
Meine. Total asscts of the bank were originally
$123,886.24.

Richard H. Brown served as cashier and manag-
er of the bank unti] 1935 at which time he moved to
Troy, Missousi and became the manaper of the Bank of
Troy. He wus replaced in that position by Arthur K.
Schaper. Mr. Schaper served as manager until his death
on October 1, 1957, William Kowazek served as presin
dent until 1938, In 1938 William Lanwehr was elecied

president of the bank. He served as president umii'l‘}ﬁ-’:
at which time Arthur K. Schaper was elected President.
Mz, Schaper was in that position until 1?57. Or
November 9, 1957 Joe Tomek was elected president and
he served in that position until 1976 when Donald E.
Thompson was elected president. Mr. Thompson had
been serving as manager of the bank since 1957 follow-
ing Arthur K. Schaper’s death. anaid Thompson
served as president of Lhe bank until 1992 when he
assumed the position of Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer which he still bolds. A‘rthm‘ R
Schaper was elected president in 1992 and still holds
that office. N
Peoples Bank of Hawk Point moved 1o Troy on
December 18, 1978 when it acquired Citizens Bank of
Troy which had been in existence since 1973, Upon
moving to Troy the bank changed its name to Peoples
Bank of Lincoln County. In January 1982, Peoplcs
Bank of Lincoln County became the lead bank in a
holding company organization called .Lincoln Couf}ry
Buncorp which then aequired the Wmﬁeiv:‘l Banking
Company. In 1985 Peoples Bank wes suthorized by the

Missourt Division of Finunce {o offer trust services and
in March 1986, in an effort 1o reflect these additional
scrvices, the bank changed its name to Peoples Bank
and Trust Company of Lincoin County. In February
1988, the Lincoln County Bancorp Helding Company
Organization, lead by Peoples Bank and Trust Compangf
of E_inwin County, expanded into Pike County, Missour
by acquiring the Bank of Louisiana. Muost rcccn-ﬂy_._on
October 18, 1993, the holding company organization
expanded fo Perry County, Missouri by acquiring the
bank of Altenburg.

The bank that was chartered in Hawk Point on
Oclober 18, 1924, with $§23,886.00 in total assei?, has
grown over seventy years (o be an urga.nizalifm with an
excess of $86.7 million in toal assets. 1t is the lead
barik in 2 four bank holding company organization §av—
ing total assets i excess of $167 miltion. This organiza-
tion is manaped by a board of directors consisting of
Donald E. Thompson, Arthur R. Schaper, C. Robert
Hall. William K. Creech, Ir., Wallace Anderson,
William R. Duncan, Albert Sianek, Lawrence Meine,

and Jess H. Fietcher.

Peoples Bank and Trust
of Lincoln County

Recognizing that Troy, Missouri
has been a great place to live
and do business for 175 years.
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WHERE THEY PRAY HARD

The early pioneers who first came to the settle-
ment aound the Spring were of 2 devout lot. This was
itfustrated by Deacon Coitle when he knelt in prayer
after the Indians silently retreated into the nearby forest
upon surveying the small group. Deacon was a name
given o Coitle as he had so faithfidly fulfilied his posi-
tion as a deacon in the Bapfist church in Vermont. His
matriage license also shows that he was & minister of
the Gospel. Althouph no record of worship services are
given, one would believe that afier the clase of the
Indiaa War and setilers staried coming into the village
of Troy these sturdy pioneers would have met in homes
for praise and thanksgiving.

After the building of the court house in 1830,
believers of all fziths would congregate there for wor-
ship. This continued unsif 1831 when the first continual
organizations of the faith withdrew into their own orga-
nization.

PRESBYTERIAN

On Saturday, November 26, {831, nine people
gathered at the meeting house in the town of Troy with
the aim of crganizing a Presbyterian Church in Troy.
Rev. John 8. Ball, then in charge of the Bonhomnme
church in 5t Louis county, and the Rev. Wm. S. Lacy,
in charge of the Dardenne church in $t. Charles County
presided. Francis Parker made record of the organiza-
tion. The nine persons resolving to form the church
were: Francis Parker, Alexander Wilson and Eliza
Wilson with certificates from the church of Dardenne,
Mo.; Catherine Parker with certificate from the
Methadist church; Otis 8. Linn and Elizabeth Ling with
centificates from the Woodford, Kertucky charch; Grace
Linn, with cerlificate from the Bethel, Kentucky church,

and Rache! Ford, with certificate frem the Baker's
Creek, Tennessee church. Mary Linn was admitted by
satisfactory verbal testimony. The members ther pro-
ceeded to elect two elders, Fancis Parker and Otis 8.
Lirm. There were no dencors until [866. Rev, Bali ook
charge of the church immediately after its organization,

The members continued o hold preacking ser-
vices at the Court House with prayer meetings in the
home of Francis Parker. In 1847 the members felt the
need for their own place of worship and on Septembser
16, 1847, the cornerstone of a brick building on Court
Street was laid, and on Jan. 23, 1848, this building was
dedicated as & church, This building served their pur-
pose for twenty vears when it was sold 1o the Froy pub-
lie school district. This building was then boughi by the
Catholic Church, In 1868 the edifice on Boone Strect
was started and was completed in 1874, After the entire
indebtedness was paid, the church was dedicated on a
Sunday in July, 1875, by Bev. D. Brookes of St. Louis.

In 1977 the church building was recognized as a
historica! site and designated as American Presbyterian
and Reformed Historical Siie, No, 149, In 1981 the
church celcbrated the erection of a new manse afong
with the 150th anniversary of the church.

Miss Isabel Howell served the church as organ-
ist for at least forty years and maybe cloger to fifiy. She
began playing at the church by sharing the responsibility
with one or two others, until one day she was the regular
pianist and organist. Miss Isabel worked with various
church cheirs and musical groups through the years.
She shared her talents with other churches in fown play-
ing for community services and World Day of Prayer
services. In addition she tzught an adult Sunday School
class and served as Sunday School treasurer. She also
served as a member of the Session, the governing board
of the church. After her retirement she continued to
share her love of music as she continued to teach in ber
bomne.

BAPTIST

The first permanent arganization of the Raptist
Church in the city of Troy was in 1844, There had been
other churches organized in the county, and the Troy
Church had no doubt been essociated with these. The
above group was organized in the honse of a Baptist
preacher, John C. Herdon, with eighteen charter mem-
bers. This group was missionary-minded, and its

Sunday school was organized around 1896, foflowed by
separate mission organizations for the women (1924),
children {1929), and men {i952). This congregation first
mel in homes and then shared the building with (he
Preshyterians al Roone and Siith Secis.

In the Spring of 1860, the Baplists moved into
their own building on the southwest comner of Boone
and Fifth Streets. On May 5, 1912, a new brick building
was occupied at 611 Main Street {where the present
Masonic Hall is focated): that building burned and was
replaced in 1937. On January 13, [967, the church
moved fo the preseni site at 800 Cap Au Gris, ocoupying
a two story educational building. The new church audi-
sorium was dedicated September 26, (976, A third
addilion was put into use in 1991

The church started a mission in Wentzville in
1958 and Lake Saint Louis in 1982; both are now
charches. They gave financially, with other churches, to
help start the Moscow Mills Baptist Church. In 1992
they started the Ridge Road Baptist Mission on
Highway 47, east of Troy.

FIRST CHRISTIAN, DiSCIPLES OF CHRIST
The formal organization of this body did not
occur until 1856. There are indications that others were
immersed into the faith and beliefs prior o this time.
They probably worshiped in the Court House along with
individuals of different belicfs, The first meetings were
held in the Universalist Church located on Main Street.
On fuly 6, 1856, Mary Crump, Ann E. Wing,
Joanma Nult, Elizabeth Hunter, Benedict Crump, John 8.
Null, Mary Wing, Sarsh Sheets, Elizabeth by Mary
Wing proxy, Eliza Null and Frederick Wing met and
reselved to come together as a chureh. In May 1859
Brother Stephen Cottle and Cdic Cottle were reeeived
into Bl fellowship. It was in 1861 that the new church

building was ready for service. Duuring the Civil War
services were held inflequentdy.

According to an article appearing in the August
1864 Louisiana paper, the church was the scene of a
murder. A Democratic Conscrvative Union meeting
was being keld in the church when soldiers burst iata
the meeting and demanded to know if this was a conser-
vative meeting. When Mr. James Reed answered in the
affirmative, he wes killed instantly. Shots weze fired inio
the crowd, wounding others. After the war the church
members united and the lukewarm congregation began
worship services.

The congregation continued to grow and by
191} a 607 x 20" addition was made to the church. In

_ the early 50's the sanetuary was remodeled. The mem-

bership outgrew the space and in 1965 additional land
was bought to relocate. In April 1970 work was begun
on the new church building. In January of 1991 the
New Philomene Muck Fellowship Hall was dedicated.
in November 1991 newly remodeled classrooms were
} dedicated.

KRUMBLY

BURGER

75 Front Street * Troy
528-5646




ST. STEPHEN UNITED METHODMST
In 1859, the
very first Methodist
Episcopal Church
South was built in
Troy. Rev. Andrew
Monros served as the
first minister. He g
came from Virginia = S
about 1825, He lived in Troy and prior 1o {828 kept a
hotel in a brick building on the 8.E. corner of the Spring
Lot. The ground far the church was purchased from the
estate of John A. Woalfotk for the sum of $1060. The
decd t_o that property names Jesse Orear, H. E. fones,
Wni. M. Welch, James Anderson, and Samuel Avery as
the Board of trustees.

The cotnerstone was kaid July 19, 1859, by the
Troy Masonic Lodge. The building was of brick, and
faced the east and the pulpit was in the west end. Fong
raised benches were used for seating and there was a
solid partition, four feet high, running through the center
of the building which separated the men and boys from
the women and girls. The choir was in the northeast cor-
ner and the “amen comer” in the southeast corner. The
carly Methodist were fervent with their “amens”. The
building was heated with two stoves, and kerosens
lamps furnished the Hght.

A first this congregation was a poor struggling
one and did net prosper. During the Civil War troops
were quartered in the building and political meetings
were held there later.

Ag the close of the war, the church was reorga-
nized and an effort made to pay off the debt and prevent
the building from being sold. The debt was cleared and
the dedicatory service took place in early 1867,

The first Sunday schools were held on Sunday
aflernoon and prayer meetings were held each Thursday
evening. As there were nat many men who at:endeci,
and as womer did not pray in public, Lenoard Henry
ard T. J. Nally from the Christian Church conducted the
services. A minister was not always able to be present as
Troy was on a circuit at that time,

The church continued te grow and by the late
1890’s a building committee was appointed and a strip
of ground twenty feet wide on the west side of the old
church was purchased from B W. Kemper to make
room for the larger building. Worship services were
held in the Troy Christian Church while the new church
was being erected.

The cornerstone wus was faid Friday, August 24,

-

1960 by the Troy Masonic Lodge. The church was ded-
icated Sunday moming, February 24, 1901, At the con-
t:]usion of the dedicatory scrmon it was announced that
it was necessary to raise 3650 in order to finish paying
for the building, which, with the furnishings, cost about
$8,000. The response was liberal and $500 was raised,
the Ladies™ Aid Society pledged the remainder,

In 1906, the church was fitted with handsome
chandcliers of brass with a dozen lights in cach
(replaced in 1937). Tn 1924 the basement was enfarged.

In March, 1947, the Hummond eclectric organ
was installed with a set of chimes. This was replaced in
1981 with & new Allen organ. In 1950 a Christian edu-
cational building was built, providing much need space
for sunday school classes, a pastor’s sty and office
space for a church secretary.

WESLEY METHODIST

Rev. Louis
Overton, Henry §.
Rragg, Sr., Jack
Stallard, Monroe
Gibson, Jack Perkins,
Sr., and Daniel
Webster were forenm-
ners ia the organiza- E :
tion: of Wesley Methodist Church. These men traveled
by horseback i Moscow Mills, Elsberry, Hawk Point
and other adjacent territories untif in 1858 they fonnd
the present site in Troy to build a church.

The first church building was a frame strucrure
equipped with wood stoves, home-made benches and
kerosene lamps. Some of the funding for this building
came from money that the Afro-Americans Fighting in
ﬂ?e Civil War had sent home during their time of scr-
vice.

The membership was small, but Fred Lindsay,
fokn Boyse, Charles Wheeler, Griffin Cockrell, Sr,
Silas FIrenshaw and others motivated the growth of this
organization

The toiling of a buge belt suspended from
wooden strueture served not only as a call to worship,
bat its plaintive peals signified the death of a member.
g}[ Hal Brown held the distinction of being teiler of the

The first regular minister was Pastor Douglas.
The depression years made survival difficult, but the
pastors and the concemned cengregation worked toward
the spiritual growth and development of the people,

During the ministry of E. W. Hannzh the church,

along with the records, were destroyed by tire. The new
brick building was crected in [921,

A group of youngsters known as “The Sunshine
Cleb” was organized and they sponsored varied mis-
sionary endeavors and visited the sick and shut-ins,

An organization known zs the Ladies Aide
Soticty began functioning during the early history of the
church. From the sale of the guilts made by these
wamen many af the local expenses of the church were
defrayed. Later their name was changed to the Women's
Society of Christian Service.

Each of the conscientions ministers who served
the church found some special way they conld serve not
only the spiritual tife of the church, also helping with
the care of the building.

Rev. Hildra Overton, son of Rev. Louis Overton,
one of the founders of the church, retumed Lo the area
and served the church along with his wife Dorothy,
Rev. Overton was an active minister for forty-five years
andd.served as district superintendent for twelve years.
Many young men have gone forzh fom this congrega-
tion bui one who has gained great respect and admira-
tion is Charlie Copher. He received his doctorate degree
and became presideat of Gammon Theological
Seminary, Atlanta, Georgia.

SACRED HEART

The seed for the beginning of Sacred Heart
Church was sown when Father Cleary of the Millwoed
parish came to Troy and helped establish a mission
parish. As the number of communicants increased
Father Cleary was assisted by a priest from St. Charles,
thus the communicants were assured of services once a
month on # stated Sunday. By 1874 it became a necessi-
Ly that the group bave a house of worship of thelr own.
The group purchased the building that formerly served
the Presbyterian church

In 189 Rev. E. L Lembkes was appointed the
first resident Catholic priest of Troy. After several
montis he was succeeded by the Rev. Phil Carroll, who

died at Millwoed after having been pastor of the Troy
parish for aboul one year. After Father Carrell, there
was a suecession of pastors assipned to serve the parish.
In 1903 Reverend L. F. Schathoelter was appointed 1o
serve, and it was during his pastorate plans were made
for a new building. The church building was sold to R
A. Trait in 1906, and that same year the comer stone
was laid for the new building located at the corner of
Main and East Cojlege. The church and rectory were
dedicated Juae 18, 1947, Lumber for thess buildings
came from some of the buildings used in the St. Louis
Waoeld's Fair. Mr. Osto Kulape, a comtractor, donated all
of the bricks for the church and rectory. At the time of
building the church a four faced clock was donated by
the Chamber of Commeree,

On April 17, 1954, Holy Saturday mormning, 2
fire was discovered about 3:30 a.m. by Rev. Bart
Keamey, pastor of the church. Father Keaney, the sisters
of the parish and community volunteers were able to
save the church records and the portable articles from
the church, such as holy water (onts, statues and stations
of the cross,

Tmmediately after the fire the community came
to the aid of the group and non-Catholic denominations
offered their churches. An offer zlso came from the Troy
School Board fo make available use of Bonfils High
School Aunditorium. Easter Sunday Masses were cele-
brated in the anditorium. A dwelling was purchased in
Kuhne Heights to serve as a temporary rectory,

{On May 22, 1954, Rev. Henry A. Ahrens, pastor
performed the ceremony of ground breaking for the new
school convent combination. On Sunday moming, fuly
22, 1954, although the interior of the church was aot
entirely finished, the first Sunday Masses were conduct-
od there. The dedication of the building was held in the
fll.

Io December 1959, plans were mads to build a
convent for the Sisters teaching there. This new building
was completed in 1960, Plans for the present rectory
were drawn i March 1963, and an open house was held
in November 1963.

SACRED HEART SCHOOL

The first Parish school was established in 1544
when the Jones Hote! was purchased. School opened on
September 5, with 39 students registered. The Superior
Sister Bernard Marie and Sister Joseph Delores were the
first teachers. The eight grade students were Edward
Heitman, Robert Kaltash, Charles Lindsay, James Witte,
Marjorie Hasselfeld, Efvadcan Peasel, and Janct Hutt.



SACKRED HEART CEMETERY
On September 7. 1883, William and Mary
Colbert sold 1w Rev. Peter R. Kenrick an scre of groun;i
to be used as a final resting place for members of the
congregation.  In Oclober 1957 an additional acre of
land was added 12 the cemmetery. Some of the early buri-
als were: Amy Ancela Murphy, May 18, 1884; Henry |
Wagner. December 17, {884 Bernard Citve!:;nd
Thunmond December 28, 1885; Jane E. Murply, April
13, 1887; Agnes M. duughter of Wm. and —C—-
(probably Carter) April 1889, George Miester, February
16, 1891; Margaret wife of George Jackson Nov. 9,
1391 (George Jackson stone is marked 1874, however
he was first buried in St. Charles County and later
moved here) John, son of T, J and M. Jackson, Feb. 13
1892; Jeannette M., wife of T. 1. Jackson, Aup. 24,’
1893; Daisy Sydnor, March 17, 183%4; Lucy M. McKay,
1895; Sarah Ann Leffeler, March 21, 1895; Mamie R.
Hunn March 30, 1896; John F. Cazly, April 30, 1898;
Nora M. Hunn, Feb. 21, 1899; o
Because the congregation is outgrowing the pre-
sent church and there is not room for expansion at the
present site, in 1990, the parish purchased land at the
itersection of Old Cap-au-Gris and Highway 61 with
plans being made for luture expansion.

ZION UNITED CHURCH OF CHRIST

. The Zion United Church of Christ was orga-
nized by eighteen familics in the summer of 1887.
§\a.iany of these persons had come to Lincoln County
directly from Getmany ooy & few years carlier. Several
came from the same reral community in the territory of
.Hanover. Prussia. They decided 1o worship together, and
in 1387 they bl & building at the end of Mound Street,
dedicating it on Thanksgiving Day. By 1919, Engl EsI;
languzage services had been intreduced, and men and
women began to sit together in the church, Previousky,
men sat on one side and women on the pther.
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The first building was used until 1926 when,
under the pastorate of Rev. Clyde Koehier, she congre-
gation sald the old church property and built a new
church at 725 South Main. The comerstone was laid in
May and construction was completed by fall.
Dedication services were held Thanksgiving Day.

In June 1987, the cerlennial year, groundbreak-
inp ceremonics for the new addition o the church were
held, The new bailding provided space for a church
office, educationat space and fellowship hall. Accessto
all parts of the church has been provided for handi-
capped people by way of & lift. Holding to wadition,
dedication services were again held on Thanksgiving
Day. On January 22, 1989, a time of joyous celebration
was held as a Zimmer pipe organ was dedicated.

On April 25, 1921 the Troy Evangelical and
Reformed Cemetery was officially established, and 2
road was built, Burials were reconded as carly as 1892
when Wil Louis-Sohn Von M. and A. Schroedel Geb. 5
April 1892 Gest 17 April 1892, another in 1893 Edie
Busch-Oct. 23, 1893 Nov. I, 1893 along with August R
Broemmer, 1854-1894.

TROY HOLINESS

In the summer of 1925, Rev. and Mrs. Floyd
Martin and workers conducted a three week lent meet-
ing on a lot owned by Mr. Elmer Creech on East Cherry
Serect, This site was then known as “down in the val-
lev.” near where the Orschcln siore is presently located.
The tent for the meeting was 40 x 60, but was much oo
small for the crewds. Some worshippers came before
sundown Lo get & seat. This same evangelistic party
came back in the fall of 1926 and erected another tent,
twenty feef larger than the first one, at the Fairgrounds,
but this still would net seat the crowds. Inierest
increased from night to night and people from all walks
of life bowed at the altar, seeking forgiveness of sins of

u clean heart, and a number received definite experi-
ences. They had a desire for a church for worship so
money was tatsed during this meeting and the lot was
purchased on West Cherry Steet. Services were heid in
homes, with Rev. Lawrence Schaper a8 leader, until the
church was erected in 1927, Bro. C. C. Hamm served as
pastor from 1927 to 1932

Bro. Floyd Martin's health failed aad he could
no longer perform evangelistic work so he and Sister
Martin moved to Troy in 1932 and took charge of the
church. He held his fast tenf revival n the fali of that
year on the fot just southeast of the church. On. Nov. 18,
1934, during a Preacher’s Convention here in Troy, he
passed away. Sister Martin took charge of the church
until Jan, 1935 when Bro. 1. E. Holden and wife came as
pastor. [n May of that year the first camp meeting was
held in a large tent at the Fair Grounds with Dre. E. E.
Shethamer as cvangelist. [n £936 the first camp was
heid on the newly acquired grounds on Scuth Maic. In
1937 the church bought the parsonage a1 1100 Scuth
Main, and ihis served the church wntit 1960 when a new
parsonage was built on the church camp grounds. ln
1953 a new piano was purchased for the church, and in
1955 & front porch was added. In 1957 a fire caused
considerable damage and as a result the walls were pan-
eled and ncoustical tile ceiling was put in.

In 1990 & beautiful new church was built on the
camp grounds. The church is of brick construciion and
has twelve memorial stained glass windows.

PLEASANT VALLEY

The Pleasant
Yalley Church is &
branch of the Old M.
Zion Baptisi Church
which was located an
West Third and
Cherry Streets. In the
vear 1937 the Old Mt.
Zion Baptist Church was lost and services were held in
the Benevelent Hall, and also in the Knight of Tabas
Hall. In 1939 the ground for the present location on
Sydnoville Road (north Main Street) was purchased,

1t was not antil the years of 1945-46 that the
congregation was able to erect and fumish a new build-
ing. After Rally Day in 1950, Hena Lucketf and
Harriette S. Higgins made a special effort to retire the
debr, and it was not long unti the mortgage was burned.
The congregation has continued {0 grow and mprove
their facilities.




SHEPHERD'S APOSTOLIC PENTECOSTAL
CHURCI

The church, founded by Rev. Walter §. Guinn,
ariginaily met at the Old Adexandria Christian Church.
As the congregation grew, the need for a new church
home was met with the boilding of a structure on
Highway 61, north of Troy. Dedication services were
held June 30, 1932, Shortly after this Rev. Guinn
resigned, turning over the ministry of the church to his
son, Rev. Eddie Guinn.

In 1983 it was decided to change the name of
the church to one that would reflect the beliefs of the
church- Shepherd’s Apostelic Pentecostal Church.
Shepherd's incorporating the Great Shepherd- the Lord
Jesus Christ, Apostolic- built upon the foundation of the
Aposties, Pentecostal- an experience not a denomina-
tion, and Church- for the model ¢hurch, In June 1989,
an early moening fire destroyed the Church leaving the
congregation withoui 2 home.  Afler the fire the congre-
gation found a home on Cast Cheny Street where they
worshiped until they moved into their new building on
Oid Highway 61.

CHRISTIAN COMMUNITY CENTER CHURCH

Christian
Commenity Ceater
was started as 2 Bible
study in the home of
Ken and Faye LaRue
in January of 1976.
The basement of their
home, where they -
met, soon became too smalfl, The bmldmg at 541 Second
Street, formerly the home of The Disciples of Christ,
became available and was purchased in October of
1978. The Center began to sec the need for Christian
education for their young people, and in 1982 the
Christian Center Academy School was started in con-
junction with the church. Again it became apparent
more room was needed and a new facility was buill at
510 South Lincoln Drive, providing more space for play
grounds and learning center space,

TRINITY LUTHERAN

In Auvgust, 1963 Donald Diedrich inserted a
notice in the Free Press asking anyone interested in the
organization of a Lutheran Church to mect at the Troy
City Park. Several responded and the decision was
made to start an organization with Tmmamued Lutheran
of Wentzville as the sponsor. On Qctober 27, fifty-two
were present for the first service conducted in the Little
‘Theater of Buchanan High school by Pastor Heckert.
In Nuvember temporary officers were elected with W,
Rassrresser: as president and Herb Ils as vice-president
and Sunday School superintendent . In January 1964 a
constitution was adopted apd the name Trinity was cho-
sen for the church. By May of 1964 the last meetings
were held in the Little Theater, and church services were
moved to the American Legion Hall. The congregation
was growing and they felt the ased for a permanent
home. Land was purchased in January 1965 and a buitd-
ing committee was formed and plans made for crecting
a permanent structure.  In September of the same vear
the new building was dedicated with 41 communicants
and 23 souls present. On February 1, 1970 Rev. George
Gibson, Jr. was instailed as the first resident pastor.
Rev. Gibson served the congregation uniil February 16,
1973, when Rev. Ross E. Haupt was instatled as the sec-
ond resident pastor. The congregation continued to grow
untif there was a need for a larger building for worship.
On October 30, 1977 ground breaking ceremonies wers
held, with Jim Palmer as building commiltee chairman
tuming the first shovel of dirt. Om October 8, 1578 the
new 9,000 square foor cdifice was dedicated. Or March
13, 1981 & morigage burning was held for the first
building. In 1982, Rev. Thomas W. Larson accepred the
call to become their new pastor. In 1985 a sofiball Seld
was constructed adjacent to the church. This field not
only serves Trinity Lutheran, but is used for Troy area
inter-church softball games.

CHURCH OF CHRIST

The Troy Church of Christ met for the first time
on May 3rd 1964 in what nsed to be the old school
building for colored children, located on North Main
Street in Troy. Wendetl Kee from Coliinsville, Hlinois
preached the Brsl sermon.

The six families attending that first Sunday
were Mr. and Mrs. David A. Cross and daughters; Me
and Mrs. Gilmer Dehn and children; Mr. ané Mrs. Bud
Templeton and dsughters; Mr and Mrs. Harold Hulett
and three sons; Mr. and Mrs. James Hansell and daugh-
ters; and Mrs. Dezzie Miller.

Thirteen acres of land were purchased one and
one katf mile south of Troy on highway 61 in late 1985,
4 brick building was built which included living quar-
ters for a preacher. The first services were held in carly
1966. It was not long until Highway 61 was being
expanded into a four lane highway, necessitating the
sale of the building and three acres of land,
Construction of a new building was scon started on the
remaining land and by 1970 the congregation was again
able to move into their new church home. Although the
church did not move, because of the by passing of 61,
the present address is Old Moscow Mills Road

FIRST ASSEMRILY

On January 20, 1968 at 7:30 p.m., a mecting
was held in the home of Rev. A, . Wright at Troy for
all those who were interested in organizing an Assembly
of God Church is Troy. The church was organized with
22 charter members. Tt was decided that the Church
wouid be named first Asscibly of God.

Properly was purchased from L. L, EaRue on
South Highway 61, (now South Lincola Drive) and a

three unit church was started. the first being compieted
Aprit 1, 1968. The membership inereased and by 1870
the second unit was added.

Rev. A, D. Weight was the first pasior. On his
retirement in 1976, Pastor Larry R. Donelson was called
to serve the growing church. '

in 1980 the congregaticn gave unanimous
approval to build a new straeture. In July 1982, for the
first time they held worship services inside their new
modern sanctuary.

Pastor Donefson left the group in 1985 and
Pastor Randy Coleman presently serves the congrega-
tior: along with the assistance of Dencan Craig Ahrens
a4 asanciate pastor and dircctor of youth ministries.

FELL.OWSHIP BAPTIST
The Fellowship
Baptist Church was
organized January 24,
1971, The Fellowship
Baptist Church is an
independent funda-
mental, Bible believ-  —
ing church and its i
purpose is ko reach the lost for Christ. Rev. Wakter Kirk
of the Immanuel Baptist Church of Louistana, Mo offi-
ciated at the first service, assisted by Bro. Robert
Hellwege of the Open Door Baptist Church of Overland,
MO, and Bro. Denver Moore of 8t Louis.

After scripture reading and prayer, officers were
elected and the Sugar Grove Community House was
selected as the place of worship, They coatinued meet-
ing there uatil 1988 when land was purchased at 1235
Somth Main Street in Troy and 2 new building was erect-
ed. Bro. Cluphan is the present pastor.

JEHOVAH'S WITNESSES

Their witness-
ing work began in
Lincoln County in the
late 1930’s and early
194{"s, but it was not
until late spring 1963
that a group returned
1o Troy to form the
Troy Congregation of Jehovai's Wilnesses. They rented
a building at 7 Alden Street, Troy. They soon outgrew
this building, and in the fall of 1968 & lot on Highway
47 West was obtained and the present Kingdom Hall
was erected. The first meeting was held on Tuesday




Aprii 1, 1969, The hall was remodeled in 1988,

The congregation has grown to 126 publishers
associated with the congregation. They are planning on
cxpanding to & new building that will be located on
acreage purchased o 8. Main. The auditorium will be
2,709 sq. ft. and there will be room for expansion.

Even though the churches in Troy have had
their individual places of worship, they have always
been ecumenical in worship.

During the earlier years union Sunday evening
services were held in the Open Air Theater, which
belonged to Mr. Cass Stewart. The building used by
Burkemper Law Firm is presently on this lot. Other
unien services have incleded World Day of Prayer,
Thanksgiving Services, Easter Sunrise services,
Vacation Bible School, church camps, singspirations,
and in 1993 “The Way of The Cross” march.

Duaring the years, union revival mestings were
held, the most memorable ome of these was the Burch

Tent Meeting heid in 1914, The 60° x 20" tent was
located on the Carter lot on West Cherry Street, now
occupied by the garment factory. Each evening this was
filled to capacity. This meeting began on Sunday
September 6, 1914, and lasted for 33 days. The minister
was A. E. Burch and he was assisted by a song leader
and choirs from various churches. Preaching services
were held in both the afternoon and evening. On
September 18, the business houses advertised they
would be closed from 2:30 to 3:30 each afternoon and
then at 7:30 each evening umtil the close of the meeting.
On October 9, a march for Christ was held with over
1,260 participants. The march was led by the children
af the Sunday Schosis. At the close of the meeting
there were 316 additions to the churches in Troy and
surrounding arca.

At one time the interest was so great that word
was sent ta the light plant not to shut off the ighis at 11
o'¢clock as was the usual custom.

WHERE THEY PLAY HARD

The ampitheatre and race track at the Troy Falrgrounds, circa 1923

When pioneer families first settled in what is
now Troy, they kad little time for what the modemn indi-
vidual would consider as recreation. Most of their
reereation was combined with work such as log roitings,
bailding of homes, barn raisings, corn huskings, quili-
ings, ete. When work was complcted there would be
play perties and dancing. In the spring and summer
there were outdoor dances. The young people built
brush arbars and put saw dust on the ground afier they
had smoothed the surface. Fox hunting along with
shooting marches were sports for the men. Five would
compete for a beef, the first two getting the hind quar-
fers, the third and fourth the fore quarters and the fifth
the hide and taltow.

With the growth of churches and schoals they
became the gathering places for enderisinment. Box sup-
pers, pie suppers and ice cream sceials along with cnter-
rainment from focal talent provided an evening of relax-
ation,

Weddings provided an opportunity for commu-
nity gatherings. The first marriage recorded in Lincoln
County, bat not the first occurring, wasg that of John
English to Catherine Davis, solemnized on August 3,
1825. This was not recorded into court records until
November 1825, Weddings provided a time for a feast
of the best pioneer faods such as venison sreaks, and
roasts, turkey, grouse, nectar-like maplc syrup, and the
best deserts of the time.

In 1897 through the efforts of Sam Kemper o
group of unmarried Troy businessmen organized a
camping efub 0 be known as the Broken Heart Club,
“Millionaire Club” charter members were, Sam Kemper,
James Dudley, John Sykora, Tom Nuckols and Clarence
Copher. Joining later were Hamy Kemper, Leighton
Howell, Latham Henke, Ralph Copher, Owen Turnbull,
Emmeit Shafer, Billic Wells, Walter Meister, Rufus
Dudley, I. Hayden Foster, John Brandes and Dr. Wi,
Wells.



TFhe first camp site was on the cast side of
Cuivre River near Frenchman’s Bluff Bridge. The camp
site consisted of two [arge tents, one for sloeping and the
ather for cooking. The mess hall was the space belween
the two tends, with tent flaps serving as the top. In 1925
they purchascd land on the west side of the river, south
of the bridge and the tents were put there until the club
house was finished in 1927,

The club house was built above high water
mark. The main room provided ample space for an old
fashioned wood range, a coal oil stove, large work table,
dining table, ice box, cupboard, bed and chairs. A large
screened-in porch had a long table wilh benches and
was an ideal sleeping porch. The grounds covered
about one-fourth of an acre, with large trees providing
lots of shade.

The silver and red boat, bearing the club’s
insignia, a braken heart, was kept fied ai the river bank.
Alter the men were married one day of the camp week
was fdesignated as women’s day, at which the the wives
and families were invited. The men loved to eat and
employed Johanie Robinson, joe Mounce, and
Snowhal]l Bowles as cooks for the camp, who prepared
meals such as fried chicken, mashed potatoes, com-on-
the-cob, sliced tomatoes, and blackberry cobbler. The
men went to camyp, fish, bunt, rest, enjoy life and tel] tall
tales.

About the same time the men formed a club the
young ladies decided to form “The Pinfeather Club”,
Joining the club were Lilly Wells, Kitty Tice-Wetls,
Mary Lou Irvin-Howell, Nora Linakan-Mitchell,
Martha Linakan-Dyer. Mary Linahan-Pene, Elsie
Baker-Foster, Clara Pean Cottle-Heimberger, Lillian
Baker, Dorothy Mohr-Bversmeyer, and Georgia
Richards-Pauly.

In 1923 a number of the members of the old
Troy “Pinfeather” crowd were present for the Lincaln
County Fair and had a get-to-gather meeting and supper
party at the White Kitchen Cafe.

In the carly 1900’s one place for enjoyment by
the young people was the Woolfolk Pond, later known
as the Bockhorst pond. This was located on what is now
the northwest comer of Cherry and Lincoin Drive, then
known as Frenchman Bluff Road. This large pond was
spring fed so that the water level was constant. In the
winter it was a greal place for ice skating, and aiso pra-
vided ice for the large ice house which Mr. R, O,
Woolfok had constructed in 1885. This was one of the
sourees of ice for use by the residents of Troy during the
summet. Young lovers found this 2 geeal place for

canoeing during the summer months.

Watch maker Mr. Cass Stewart had a mosie and
jewelry store located on the northeast comer of Collier
and Main Sweet. He enclosed the east side of the lot
with a solid board fence and operated the Idle Hour Air
Pome Thealer. During the summer months silent
movies were shown oa Fuesday, Thursday and Saturday
evenings, with a new program each evening, Admission
wes 3 conts and 10 cents. On Surday nights the church-
es would hold union services there. Various groups
would use this as a place for money making projects. Al
a social held there the Civic Club raised $15 to he used
in purchasing an ornamental famp post for the Spring
Lot Park.

With the closing of the Livery Stable on Main
Street, just south of the Khune Building, Mr. Joe Wells
and Burt Brown remodeled the buiiding and opened the
B. J. Mation Picture Theater. On Friday, October 20,
1916, opening night, the all silent movie was Irene
Fenwick and Cyril Keightley in The Spendikrift, in six
reels. Saturday mght featured Henry B. Walthall in Birth
of a Man, in five reels. On Friday, October 27 they pre-
sented the well known actress Miss Billie Durke in
Glorias Romance also the beginning of the comedy
scries featuring Harry Watson, tr. in Mishaps of Musty
Suffer. Prices werc adalts 10 cents 2nd shildren over 6
and under 12, 5 cents. Doors opened at 7 - shows start-
ed at 7:45,

As early as 1923 there were adds for the
Colonial Theater located on the northeast corner of Cap-
au-Gris and Main Street, Mr. and Mrs. Charles Rudolph
of 8t. Louis bought the theater in June 1934, On
Christmas day 1939 the building bumned.

Following this a few movies were shown in
Bonfils Auditorium, but for the mosi part the town was
without 8 motion picture theater wmtil May 6, 1940 when
owner Charles Rudolph opened the theater in the old
Hanni building on the southeast comer of Main and
Collier. Upon moving the name was changed to “The
Frogan™.

The frst movie featured Bob Bumns in Aliay The
Beaeon. Other movies featured included on Saturday
May 18 a double feature with Gene Aoty in Colorado
Sunser as weil as Ana Sothern in Congo Malise, along
with colored cartoons. On Sunday and Monday the fea-
ture was Shirley Temple in The Blue Bird along with
Popeye the Suilor. Tuesday and Wednesday featured
Fred Astaire and Eleanar Powel! in Broadway Melody of
1940 The Trojan Theater continued operating, showing
films until 1987,

Parcde for the 1906 circus.

Tred Bonfils, who was bom and raised in Froy,
Ieft as a young man and as owner of The Desnver Post
became very wealthy. He was aiso the owner of one of
the largest circus’, “The Sells Floto Cireus.” Usually
they did not appear in towns as small as Troy, but in
recognition of his home town the circus was brought to
Troy in August of 1906. Tradition has it, that there were
S0 many lrain cars transporting the circus that there
werenaot enough side tracks in Troy to unload the entire
troop so part had to be unloaded at Moscow Mills and
transported ic Troy.

The next lage circas to come to town was in
1915 when Gollmar Circes combined with Herr
Drieshock’s Trained Wiid Animals with three rings and
thres stages set up where Kuhne Boulevard is. The
September 10 Troy Free Press gave the following: “The
visit of Gollmar Bros. Circus to Troy, Tuesday drew one
of the larpest crowds in the kistory of the town. Long
befare the time for the parade, whick appeared upon the
streets at 1§ o’clock, the city was crowded with visitors,
the sidewalks being practically impassible. Some esti-
mates place the crowd at 6,800, but we believe that it is
a little exaggerated and 5,000 is nearer right. The parade
was good and the performance was better, in fact one of
the hest our people ever witnessed. The teat in e after-
noon was crowded to its utmost capacity and at the
evening show a large crowd was also present. Our busi-
ness houses had extra help to wait on the trade an all
report a rushing business. The bakery sold over 1,200
loaves of Bread over the counter and the restaurants had
more than they could attend to. It was certainly 2 big
day in Troy and everybody seemed to enter into the spir-
it of the day. School was dismissed for the day se chil-
dren could attend the cireus.”

Sports have always been a vital part of the lives
of the people of Trey, not only in the school but in the
town as well. As early as 1887 a Troy Bascball Club
was organized. The officers were W, A, Manhardt,

Mgx; C. W, Knox, Presidem, J. L. Woodson, Secretary-
Treasurer, W. A, Brickey, Captain. Teams were orga-
nized and dropped until 1920 when the town team made
a name for itself. The All Star Tearn was composed of
Woolfolk and Admire as pitchers, O"Mara as catcher. 5.
Woolfolk, first base, Elliot, second base, Meyer, short
stop, Brandes, thisd base, Henkey, left field, Linahan,
center fieid and Garrett an Kelly, right field. They were
so cutstanding that they received a letter from the
Cardinal management of 8. Louis mguiring if 2 game
between the two teams could be arranged. The game
was held October 15 with a big crowd present.
Although the score was 10 ta O in favor of Cardinals,
the spectators were thritled to see a big league team
playing on the Trov diamond. As a rosult of his exper-
ence and training while playing on the All Star Team
Ernest (Hop) Woolfclk signed with the Fairbury Chub of
Nebraska in 1922, Near the close of the season he was
sold to Roger Brashanham, manger of the Toledo, Chic
Club. Mr. Brashanham was formerly with the Cardinals.

The vears of 1933 und 1935 again produced ail
star winning teams. T. M. Bragg an Hurley Stephens
served as managers for several years, bat late in the sea-
sor of 1935 they resigned and Charlie Rudolph and
John Brandes were selected to serve as managers.

Early 1930's ball fearn.



in December of 1925 a group of businessmen
wider auspices of the Civic League presented a
Womanless Wedding at the Colonial Theater. The
money from the project was 1 be wsed o build 8 com-
munity buitding. A capacity crowd attended both
nights, a third performonce was given on January 8,
1926. The net proceeds for the three performances was a
little over $300.00. Ladies of the Teague who were in
charge of the program were: Mrs. E. T, Steele,
President; Mrs. 0. D. Brudley, Mrs, D, B, Killam, Mrs.
§. L. Penn, and Mrs. Otio Hanni. Unfortunately they
were never able to get the commuaity house buill.

Card playing “Rook and Five Hundred™ provid-
ed pastime, especially for the women. Afternoons
would be spent playing cards foliowed hy deficious
refreshments.

One of the most elaborate pariies was the one
given in November 1923 at Hanni Hall. Gver 200 invi-
taticns were sent oul for 2 Rook and Five Hundred
Party. Misses Elza Harris, Dolly Wells, Mabel Kemper
and Mildred Henke and Mesd. Joe Harlaa, Claire
Montgomery and Walter Henke were hostesses. About
fifty tables for cards and Rook formed the center group-
ing of the room and 2 cozy comner and iounge was pro-
vided for those who did not play. An alcove divided
from the rest of the room by ferns and flowers, formed a
space for the B. H. 8. orchestra, which furnished
delightful music during the evening, There were prizes
for the highest scores and also for consolation, About
E1:3% delicicus refreshments in keeping with the
Thanksgiving season were served. Later bridge clubs
replaced the Rook clubs.

In 1931 croquet was the game of the year. The
grounds located on the south side of Bonfils Auditorium
were leveled and the two courts were busy every night.
There were sixteen teams with thirly-two entries. On
September 11 the big croquet tournament was held with
Fred Harrison and Latham Henkey vs. Fverett Davis
and Joe Kallash. Davis and Kallash were the winners.
Others who were regular plavers were Dr, Leighton
Howell, W. P, Smith, Roy Blair, George McGregor, C.
B. Watts, A. C. Shields, Olin Rell, Grover Huston, Joc
Harlen, Japka Schloeman, B. . Creech, Amold Keck
and Joe Bayse. These were businessmen of Troy.

in 1933 a number of golf enthusiasts in Troy
decided to undertake to build a goif course at the Fair
Grounds. A canvass for membership was made and
about thirty members signed, The grass was cut and 3
six -hole golf course, with sand greens was taid out. It
was decided (o make a permanent organization, and to

improve the course. ‘The name was the Troy Galf Club,
Joe I. Harlan elected president, Aaron Shields,
Secretary-treasurer, O 5. Manken elected chairman of
the greens committee. Goal was to enroll at feast fifty
members. The club did not continue but townspeople
continued to practice for several years on the old course.
In 1594 twa golf courses, Woods Fort Country Club and
Royal Oaks Golf and Country Club wiil be opened.

For winter pastime there were the checker
games played ot Harris Drug Store. The 1933 tourna-
ment was played on the new glass top checker table
made by Roy Clayton. “Bradiey’s Old Guard™ were
challenging “Curley’s Rats.”

Another utiusual type of entedainmenl was the
Donkey Ball Games sponsored by the American Legion
in 1938 and 1939,

In the 30s the businessmen of Troy sponsored
Children’s Theater for the rural children as weil as Troy
children. The first were held on May 13, 1939 with over
300 in attendsoce, By the second week the atiendance
had increased to 400, aitendance continued to prow until
there were at least 460, attending the Junc 3 show,

Another project sponsored &y the city under the
management of Mayor Hanni and assisted by members
of the Rotary Club was Troy Day on August 15, 1939,
at Sportsman Park. Eighty-five cars left Troy in an
arranged possession and others joined en route. Two
hundred and twenty-seven adult tickets were purchased
and at least 200 children from ten to sixteen years were
admitted free. An escort from the St. Louis police
department preceded the caravan to Farest Pack where
the children watched a lion show, monkey show, and an
vlephant show. Dinner was served in the park and from
there, the cars were escorted by St Touis motoreycle
potice to the ball park. The Troy school band was part of
the cefebration.

1" THE CORNER DELI
£01 §_ Lincoln Drive
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LINCOLN COUNTY FAIR

An Apricultural and Mechanical Society was
nrganized in 1855, Iis officers were Maj. Gc-urgc W.
Huston, president; Dr. F. G. Gilmer, vice-president; S.
R. Woolfolk, treasurer; C. W. Parker, cotresponding sec-
retary; and A. V. Mckee, recording secretary,

The society temporarily ftted a fairground aorth
of where Claude Brown Elementary now stands. There
it held its first annual exhibition, commencing October
1, 1856; another sxhibition was held in 1857, This soci-
ety was dissalved sometime afler this. In 1379 a joint-
stock company kanown as the Lincein ‘ County
Agricultaral and Mechanical Fair Association was
formed. It was organized with 2 subscribed capital stock
of $3,500 divided into shares of $10 each. The first
exhibition was held in the fall of 1879 on a lot near
where College and Fifth sireets now intersect. On
August 3, 1880, the association purchased 64 acres from
the bankrupt estate of B. §. Crews, known as the

" Frederick Cottle property. The purchase price was

1,500 giving three-$500 notes with the stipulation in
the deed that if they could not meet the payment of thf:
notes they could continue to rent it for $30 & month unlx‘l
notice lo quit. Forty-two acres were later sold off.
Auticles of the association were filed with (he Secretary
of State and a chartar dated October 2, 1882 was grant-
ed. The first fair was held on the grounds in 1880. The
greunds were enclosed with a solid board fence.

In 1882 a list of the task assigned and those
responsible were: Chief Marshall and Superintendent of
Privileges, H. W. Perkins; Field Malrshali, T. C.
Magruder; Superintendent of Stalls, GerV{s Hammond;
Superintendend of Police, Tom Carter; Ring Mal's}fa“,
John Johnson; Gate Keepers, J. M. Newiand, Riley
Birkhcad, Lelm Thurman and John E. Richards; Rent

W._ 1. Dryden and Jue Creech. .
Booth i wasD;ygreed to admit all schocl child:edz; atvé;cd};
ing school at the time of the fair, free, the first day. ]



student was reguircd to obtain a certificate from his or
her teacher that he or she was agending school and pre-
sent them to the gate keeper.

In 1882 F. M. Harlan was allowed $2 a day for
31 days work supcrintending the building of the
amphitheater, with a seating capacity of about 1,000
people. In 1883 the At Hall, which still siands was built
by John 1} Cox. Other improvements included a race
track, band stand, sheds and stalls for live stock.

On the first day of the fair in 1882 it was report-
ed that wagons were coming inio town from every
dircetion bearing loads of humanity, This being chil-
dren’s day the crowd of fittle folks was immense. The
Tray High Schoot and Normal Institute pupils formed in
ranks at the schoothouse, and about nine o’clock
marched to the fair grounds headed by the Prairieville
brass band (now known as Eolia). The first two days
were devoted to judging of livestock and ladies depari-
ment which inchuded hand work, jeilies, bread, and cat-
sup. The third and fourth days were the borse races.

People crowded onte the grounds from all over
Lincoln ané surrennding counties. On Thursday it was
estimated over 3,000 persons were present, with only
2,604 on Friday.

The entries and prizes were quite different than
those of today. A prize of 31 was allowed for cach of the
following: best loaf of com bread, best five pounds of
butter, best live yards flannel made in the family, best
twenty yards or more rag carpet, best wool stocking or
socks knit by gitl umder ten years of age. A prize of §2
for a woolen tidy, best half bushel tumips, best sample
of wheat {not less than 1 peck), best half bushel flax
seed, best display of chickens, ducks, turkeys and geese,
each receiving a $1 prize. Some of the premiums includ-
o were 200 pounds of the besi Troy flour for the best
loaf of hop yeast bread baked with Troy flowr. Wright
and Bragg donated a nice 510 heating stove for the best
loaf of bread baked op any Bridze and Reach cook
stove. The show that attracted the greatest interest was
the baby show.

Tickets to the fair were sold for 25 cents for
adults and 15 cents for children. Total receipts for the
1882 fair were $1,470.85. This was $600 mare than
cxpenses, which was considerad good as it rained on
Friday and no fair was held. It was not uniil the late
1920°s that thers was a mighe fair,

The St. Louis and Hannibal Railway offered
ticket sales to Tray at one fare for the round trip.

One of the greatest attraclions to the carly Fairs
was Miss Rosie May and her Double Balloon

Ascension along with her teained dog.  An atraction o
the 1888 fuir was the marriage of Johany Cannon and
Minnie Howlelt o the grounds,

For some unaccourded reason Troy failed to
have a fair in 1890, but resumed in £89] and continued
until 1917 when World War [ was on.

Beginning in 1913, and continuing for several
years, a bip automobile tour promoted the fair. 1n 1914
automobiles lined up on Main Sireet and by 8 o'clock
were loaded to capacity as they toured the towns of
Moscow Mills, Flint 11 and Wentzville where a crowd
af 200 people were present to welcome them. Then on
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to Forstell and Wright City where the hand welcomed
themn, thraugh Trusedale and Warrenton where one of
the biggest crowds on the lot welcomed them, and a
chicken dinner was scrved, followed by a band concert.
Leaving Wamenton they continued on to Jonesburg,
High Hill, New Florence, and to Montgomery City,
where the icur disbanded. The round trip was a little
more than 125 miles. Another project to promedte the
1914 fzir was the purchase of 5,000 postat cards for
sale. There were thirteen different varieties ali designed
tc advertise the coming fair.

Because of the condition of warld affairs in
1917 the fair was canceiled and did not resume until
1023, In 1921 the city sold the bleachers, jndges stand,
ticket office and other buildings at pubkic suction.

In 1922 a new lease was made between the City
and Fair Association as it was specified in the sale of the
land to the city, if the managers should fail 1o hold a fair
for three successive years their ripghts would ¢ase
unless the Board of Aldermen granted the right. The fair
re-opened in 1923, and rao wntil 1929 thus ending the
olé Lincoin County Fairs. In 1923 the Fair Association
took oul a policy of insurance against rain covering
Wednesday and Thursday of the fair. Tf it rained as
much as 1/3 of an inch between 6 2.m. and 1 pm. on
cither day, the insurance company would pay the Fair
Associglion $2,600. If that much raio should fall on
both days, the payment under the policy would be
$4,000.

In 1925 the grest attraction to the fair was The
Big Four Flying Circus. Kenneth Hunter, “Daredevil
Hunter,” performed many hair raising stunts on the
plane. The last feat each afierncon was the parachute
teap which Hunter made from the airplane at a height of
2,080 feet. [e addition they pave those who wished a

ride in the plane, abowt 108 people enjoyed rides.

The stock market craghed in 1929 and the con-
tinual drought conditions in 1930 caused the directors to
call off the fair.

In 1946, under the direction of Sohn Ed Harriss,
Extension Specialist, a new fair was formed o be
known as the Lincoln County Fair Association. In 1949
the Fair Associalion was Incorporated under the leader-
ship of Charles T.aRue, Jack Winfrey, Martin Seidel and
R. H. Brown. This organization was aclive for & few
years, then the fair became mostly a Hivestock exhibit
and sale in connection with the annval horse shew. In
1961 the Town and Country Youth Fair was formed with
John Westerman as chairman.

The fair was a family activity, with parades,
youth and 4-H exhibits, ractor pulls, demelition derby,
livestock exhibits and sales, and truck pulls. The adding
of & new annual event was the crowning of a Fair
Queen. Ann Taylor of Elsberry arca was the first queen.

The fair continucd to expand and in 1981 land
was purchased northwest of town and the fair activities
were moved. Several events were held to raise funds for
the purchase. Dances were held in various locations
throughout the county. Bencfit auctions were also held.
The grounds were laler expanded to pearly 90 acres. In
April of 1982, there was not & bailding on the fair-
ground. Through hard work and countless velunteer
hours, the fair was held in July with an ¢xhibit hall for
4-H members 1o display project work {that year the
wails were not finished; no restrooms or kitchen facili-
ties were in the building and the roof served as the csil-
ing as well); two restrooms; foodstand and an entertain-
ment center was added. The fivestock barms were buit
through the donations of organizations and many busi-
nesses and individuals.

improvements over the years have included: the
purchase of the grandstand ai the west side of the track
in 1985; tht covered show arena built in 1987, This
came about after torrential rains during the livesteck
sale in 1986, Many individuals and livestock cxhibit
members gave 2 donation to enable the board to elimi-
nate the risk of 2 rain-out of lvestock shows and the
auction. The lape commercial building just east of the
exhibit hail was built in 1988. In more recent ycars, sev-
eral changes have been made. An addition of office

space and a meeting room was completed in 1992 to the
main building, the food stand has been expanded several
fimes over the years, as has the entertainment center (of
beer garden), in 1993 improvements were made to the
ice cream stands, soda stand and a new fennel cake



‘has also helped to

stand was huilt-\'c:ﬁ i

‘space for simulta-
-al and expanded
< hafl and other build-
15 other organizations for their

aclivities.
The members of the board of directors spend
many hours of volunteer time planning and conducting

the annual fair.

TRI-COUNTY
POWER CENTER, INC.

SALES - PARTS - SERVICE - RENTALS

New & Used
Farm Machinery

Lawn & Garden Tractors
& Equnpment

¢ Financing Available

'528-8524

108 N. LINCOLN DR. AT HWY. 47 - TROY

LINCOLN COUNTY FAIR CHAIRMEN

John Westerman 1961
John Spatafora 1962
Jim Witte 1963
Gene Woeger 1964
Ben Hasrmann 1965
Harvey Martin 1966
Ken Shilharvey 1967
Earl Thornhill 1968
Bob Dunard 1969
Jim Schulze 1970
Rich Palmer 1971
LeRoy Braungardt 1972
Harold Creech 1973
Bill Cappel 1974
Bob Kallash 1975
Charlie Day 1976

James Clare Mudd 1977

Wayne Henke 1978
Bill Boekhorst 1979
Dave Humphrey 1980
Nick Allen 1981
Jerry Fox 1932
Jon Gillespie 1983
Roy Gilbert 1984
John Kallash 1985
Daisy Mordt 1986
Jack Gillespie 1987
Betty Linke 1988
LeRoy Schieffer 1989
George Albart 1990
Gary Braungardt 1991
Earl Huslage 1992
Tom Castor 1963
Jerry McClellan 1994

AR At

LINCOLN COUNTY FAIR QUEENS

Ann Taylor

- Janet Henderson

Laura Depping
Linda Lovell
Dorothy Waits
Jovee Martin
Glenda Barley
Frances Clare
Regina Coerver
Jan Lynette Nothaker
Teresa Brinkman
LeeAnn Folta
Janet Van Diver
Beth Horton
Tina Braungardt
Patrice Taylor
Becky Thompsen

1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1967
1968
1969
1870
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977

Cheryt Vaughn
Gwen Stuart
Diebbie Dickherber
Kar Kuda

Dianne Miller
Sarah Younger
Dianne Eddy
Monica Day
Micheile Niehoff
Jennifer Davidson
Shelly Henke
Brenda Luck
Denise Muensterman
Kamala Moore
Angela Sullivan
Leah Wommack

1978

(1979

1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1687
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993

T B i
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Witiam Jennings Bryan, rear ight, 1916 Chaoutougua,

CHAUTAUQUA

An educalional assembly resembling those held
al Chasteuqua, New York, consisting of lectures, home
study, concerts, sic. The Chautauqua movement was
tharoughly undenorainational and non-polifical amd peo-
ple of alf creeds and parties co-mingled.

The first Chautauqua to be held in Troy was in
1943, The program ran from August [0 to 16 and was
put on by the Mid-West Company of Kansas Ciy. Not
only was this for adults, but there was a children’s
Chautauqua. Advance financing for the guaranteed
amonnt was provided by soliciting business people.
Serving as officers for this first time event were Dr. W.
P Smith, Presideni; C. A. Cannon, Secretary; Dr. E. S,
Woulfok, Assistant Secretary; and Louis G. Brandes,
Treasurer. Dr. L. . Mokr and J. Forrest Johaston were
appointed to solicit names for guarantors. B.J. Creech
was appoinied as & commities of one on concessions.
Plans were made to hold i at the Fair Grounds, it being
better adapted for the holding of a large pathering than
any cther place in town. Every business house and mer-
chant agreed to close cvery allernoon from 2 to §
o’clock the entire week, with the exeeption of Saturday

affernoon. Af the last moment the location was changed
from the Fairgrounds to the Grammar School grousds,
owing to the fact that no place was available at the fair
grounds unless some irees were cut down or the temt
was put up across the race track.

The program consisted of a male guartette,
humorous speaker, opera program, Dr. Thomas Green,
spesker on peace, renowned violinist of Norway, lecture
by Seichere Kiemto, of Japan, Croatian orchestra.
Entertainment of this fype for & week for only §2.

In £916 one of the main speakers on the
Chautuqua was William Jennings Bryan, a well known
Demaocratic figure, Mr. Brvan declined a dirner mvita-
tion of the local supporiers so that he might visit Mis.
Mary A. Bryan, whose husband, the late Wm. H. Bryan,
was his first cousin, The anncunced title of his speech
had been “The Furopean War and the Lesson It ‘Teaches
Us” Mr. Bryan had visited 'Froy and the spring some
34 vears prior and upon his arrival he re-visited the
spring and drank several glasses of its sparkling waters.
After speaking on war and the country’s preparedness
he devoted the remnainder of the lecmire to Troy and the
Spring.

Throughout the years programs were varied and
offered a variety of topics and exceblent music.

The 1929 Chautauqua was held in the newly
constructed Bonfils Audilorium. The program was
knawn as the College Circuit, which visited many of the
colleges throughout the state, Although the programs
were cxcellent and the crowds good, there was not suffi-
cient money to pay for the cost and the guarantors were
required o pay $30 a piece. This was the last of the
Chautauquas. With ecenomic conditions being what
they were and the dronght of 1930 it was impractical v
continue.

THISSPACE g5 &
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IS FOR THE {4
CHILDREN °

WE wani you to know about ihe
CHILDREN'S CHAUTAUQUA.

WE think youll like it beiter than
the BIG FOLKS' CHAU.
TAUQUA

Your Chastauqua will be held at the
grosmds in the momnings, and it's free to all the
boys and girls who want to come.

There will be all kinds of the fnest games
ard stories as well as other things, something
different every moruing for all kinds of boys and
girks.

Every afterncon, tos, thers will be more
good things for the very Hitle folle
We want vou to come to the
: CHILDREN'S
CHAUTAUQUA,

This is your invitation

N

Don't Forget

CULTURE, FEDERATED CLUBS, LIBRARIES

The early settlers were busy with the establish-
ing of homes and praviding for survival, but they never
lost the desire for the finer things in life.

In 1850 Mr. L. J. Henry buil: a large two story
building to be kaown as the Opery House in order that
Troy mipght have the convenience of such a hall. Stairs
from the ontside jead up to the second story. Mr. Henry
was a shoemaker and repairer of shoes, He and his
brother moved their business into the first floor and the
upper story became the social center of the town, A
stage was provided for the performances of the enter-
tainers, and seating for spectators. Not only was Mr.
Henry a successful businessman, but he served Troy as
its Maysr having been elected in 1918, He gave mch
of his time and energy to the duties of the office.

M:. Henry, who was bon in Troy June 9, 1849,
died February 6, 1919, having spent his entire life in
Troy.

Stock Companies and local talent all appeared at
the Opera House on various occasions. Plays, socials,
balls, parties, carmivals, buzaars, musicals, stage shows,
along with dianers and church activities were held here.
Plays given by local talent, those from neighboring
towns and traveling troops all performed at one time or
another. Motion picture shows were held with admission
of 5 and 10 cents. At first the movies were shows at
2:30 in the afterncon. “Because I Love You™” was pre-
sented by The Kentucky Club, Elsbersy brought their
three act play to present te the citizens of Troy, and a
traveling troop brought the light operetta, “A Mid
Sunmer Eve.” Churches would have fund raising pro-
jects there. The ladies of the Christian Church would
serve meals, and the ladies of the Methedist Church
held their annual Kandy Kamival and Bazaar’s where
oysters any style were served along with ise cream and
cake. Their progzam consisted of Dickens’ “Christmas
Carol”, “Mrs. Spripgs and the Census Man” and several
quariets. Admission: adults, 10 ceats; children, S cenls.
The Catholic Church held a Valentine Rall. The Wright
City Orchesira played for balls that were held a: the
Opera House.

The Opera House centinucd {o be the center for
social events until 1919 when it was soid to Albert and
Lawrence Schaper and R. H. Kennedy, aulomobile deal-
ers, for $8,000. They made $4,000 worth of imprave-
ments and an elevator was installed to move the cars
from the stare room upstairs $o the display room below.



FEDERATED CLUBS

Ladies of the town were always interested in
learning more zhout the finer arts such as music, com-
posers, and writers. In 1891 an organization known as
Federated Clubs had been founded with their purpose
being cducation and service. It was not until May of
1942 that the first Federated Club known as the Troy
Literary Club was organized in Troy, One of the more
interesting programs for this group was given by Mrs.
N.R. Leng. She told of the founding of the Readers
Digest 23 years earlier by Pendleton Dudley, a former
Troy hoy. The last meeting was held in the home of
Miss Aida Haverkamp on May 15, 1963, with Miss
Haverkamp giving the history of the club, The club
joined the Federation of Women's Ciubs on May 13,
1913

in 192% they helped {o organize a Junior
Literary Cleb known as the Mark Twain Literary Club.
Fourteen girls who were daughters and close friends of
the membess became charter members, Officers elected
were: President, Mary Georgia Holmes; Vice-President,
Camille Kuhne; Secretary, Annic Lez Wilsor; Treasures,
Helen Kemper; Librarian, D Arline Watts; Press agent
Christianz R. Hanni. Other charter members were Eppie
Jennings, Helen Campbell, Eleanor Cockrell, Ruth
Harrisen, Mildred Wilson, lane Penan, Willie
Montgomery, Jessie Eee Tucker. The jonquil was cho-
sen as the club flower, and archid and yellow as the cheb
colors. Among the activities sponsored by the chub are:
co-spensoring the Sephomore Pilgrimage, Girls Town,
contributing ‘o Head Start, and DARE. In 1932 the
Mark Twain Club sponsored and organized the
Evangeline Club.

The Troy Study Club was organized in 1931,
They celebrated their 10th anniversary in the home of
Mrs. James Dyer with eight charier members present.
They were Mrs. €. L. Nuckels, Mrs. W. E. Aydelott,
Mis. O B. Collard, Mrs. Joe 1. Harlaa, Mrs, W. C.
Carter, Mrs. T. W. Withrow, Mrs. R. L, Howell and Mrs.
Merrell Tavior.

The Evangeline Club was organized in 1932
with charter members: Dorothy Adams, Marjorie
Aydeiott, Frances Gilmore, Adrian Groshong, Willena
Huston, Mary Sue Mosely as President; Frances Penn,
Orhella Shepard, Lenora Thurman, Gladys Tucker, Lois
Turnbuil, Mary E. Wilkinson, with Jenrie Wilson,
Sponsor. Study programs have included; sudy of the
poem “Lvangeline,” history of Troy, Missouri,
Christmas {celebrations, carols, community participa-
tion). Bach year, since 1981 the members have filled

and detivered cheer boxes of fruit, candy and cookies to
shut-ins. This is done in March near St. Patricks Day.
They have helped host 4th District converntions, and cel-
ebrated their 25th and 50th anniversary of club work.
Marjorie Aydelott Creech is ihe only charter member
who has remained in the eteb. The club has helped to
organize two other clubs: Elizabeth Wilkinson Club and
Martha Dyer Club.

The Builders Club was organized and federated
in March, 1934, with fifteen members. Mrs. James Dyer
wius the organizer and Mrs. Edgar Woolfolk the sponsor.
Mrs. Lawrence Kaser was the first president and is stilt
living. The club was active in projeets, noted especially
for their mystery parties, mecting at the spring lot and
following the leader to the designated piace for the
party. The club is no longer in federation, but does have
inferesting programs and carries out local projects. Miss
Dorathy Helmes kept a lovely club serapbook which
members pian to donate to the Historical Soctety.

The Octavia Club was organized by the Builders
Club and became fedesated in January of 1951, The
charter members were: Mrs. Claude Brown, Mrs.
Richard Brown, Mres. Vesper: Creseh, Mrs. Ted
Eachmann, Mrs. W. B. Lackey, Mss. Paytor Jenkins,
Mrs. Wiliam Norlon, Mrs, Virg! Renzleman, Mrs.
Hardin Richards, Mrs. Fred Schoure, Mrs. John Taylor,
Mrs Miiford Teague and Mrs. Dee Tipton. Mrs.
Florence Schnumr was the first president, and the name
Octavia was chosen as it was the eighth Federated Study
club i Troy and Moscow Mills.

The Martha Dyer Club was sponsored by the
FEvangeline Club. The club was organized November
1952 with fifteen charier members. The elub was char-
tered February 1953 with Mrs. Cles Scheer sponsor and
Mrs. Martha Dyer an honorary member.

SCHLOEMAN
CLEANERS

201 E. wOQD 8T,
TROY, MO 63379

528-8565
TUXEDQ RENTAL
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MISS BIRDIE WillF

Tn the early years of the public schools music
was not in the scheol curriculum. In order that the stu-
dents could have training in music Miss Birdie Wulf
came do the school and pave lessons. She established
the Troy Conservatory of Music which she operated for
thirteen years. Noa only was she an accomplished musi-
cian but she composed music, some of which was pub-
fished. She wrote songs suituble for intermediate grades
along with solo work for B-flat soprano or fenot saxe-
phone, B flat trumpet, clarinet, or any B-flat instrument,
any E-flat saxophone, baritone or alte ¢larinet, or C
melody sax, violin, flute, oboe or any other C-instru-
ment, along with the words and piano accompaniment.
Some of her numbers were “Moonlight cn the Colorado,
“Here Comes the Sun”, “I’'m Yours,” *1 Get A Thell,”
“If I Could Be With You” Copies sold for 27 cents
each.

CARILLON CLUB

Wheo Mrs. Paul Coerver moved to the Troy
community from Dallas, Texas, in 1956, she felt the
need to organize the rausical talent in the area into 2
working music club such as the one she had been active
in . In September 1958, eight women musicians were
invited to her home to discuss the possibility of forming
such a club. By October, twenty ladies were on the ros-
ter and were charter members. Mrs. Bess Witkerson
subsmitted the name, Carillen chib, for the organization,
and this was adopled. The club received ifs charter in
November of 1958,

From the beginning, the club encouraged stu-
dents in the shudy of music and offered scholarships to
various music camps. From 1959 to 1967 the Catiilon
club sent one junior high student each year to the
Egyptian Music Camgp in DuQuion, IHinois. In 1968
and for a number of years, a student was sent to the
Thousand Hills Music Camp. In later years, scholarship
winngrs have picked the camp of their choice.

In 1971, the club co-sponsored the Young
Audience Programs in the Claude Brown Elementary
School, and is continuing to do sa.

The first annual guest evening, & program pre-
sented to a smali audicnce of forty ladies, was given in
March, 1960, with each memmber pesforming in her spe-
ciaf area. This type of program expanded into a stage
production in 1966, with scenery and costumes,

The Cleb has participated in National Music
Week activities since the first years. The first light
opera, “Showboat,” was presented for National Music

Week in 1966. In recent years they have tumed from
Breadway Show produetions to writing musical reviews
of their pwn. The production has grown each vear antil
the attendance has reached 500.

Grther activities include musical community ser-
vice programs, fibrary contributions of mesical refer-
enee books for the Powell Library, corpaser biogra-
phies and recordings for the Charkes Gingrick Library, a
June nursing home presentation and a poster contest for
National Music Week.

LIBRARIES

Early in the 1900°s the ladies of Troy were inder-
ested in increasing the culture of the citizens through
reading. Books were obtained and left at Haverkamp's
Jewelry for people to check out for reading. Attempts
were made throupghout the decades to establish a library,
but it was difficelt to get one to survive.

Buring the time of the WPA they maintained a
small library along with funds and focal donations., but
it soon ceased to exist and several hundred books were
piled into big cardboard boxes and pushed inte a comer
of a vacant dance hall.

In May of 1941 Miss Sarah 5. Molony, State
Extension librarian, met witk {ifieen ¢lub and civic lead-
ers in the City Hall at which time she discnssed the
method of operating a Ebrary. Bt was decided to puton a
membership drive, and when the drive was completed,
those holding membership cards were (o be called i o
mass meeting. A Library Beard would be elected and
polices would be formed. The drive for membership
continiied, but aRer several weeks there seemed to be
insufficient interest to pursue the proiect,

On April 2, 1949 Lincoln County Library was
organized by Women’s Federated Clubs of Troy.
Through the sugpestion of Mrs. Milton Duvail,
President of the Missouri Federation of Women's Clubs,
a Troy councit was formed. The first project of this
council was a public library. A pledge of fifty dollars
from each club, the few doliars and the books remaining
from the oid WPA Library, and one hundred dollars
fram an ice cream social that had been given in an earli-
er attempt 1o revive the library were the tangible assets
for the new organization,

The use of a room was donated on the second
floor of 2 building on Main Street. A fow months later
when these quarters were no longer adequate, a larger
room was made available, The use of this Hbrery served
the towns peaple until 1966.



POWELL MEMORIAL LIBRARY

Powell Memorial Library was dedicated Sunday
April 17, 1966, a gift from Mr. Watson W. Powell, of
Seottsdale, Arizona, in tribute 1o the memory of his par-
ents, James Watson Powell and Annie Whiteside
Powell. The mvo stery building contains some 20,008
square feet of usable space and houses kwo complete

libraries, one for the public, one for school use. At the #7 Troy Square
time of dedication there was an assembly room designed Troy, MO 63379
for the wse of the Women’s Clubs and other public
assemblies, also eight classrooms for use of the Troy (314) 528-5669
schools.
President Travel of Lincoln County PoiELINE AND UNDERGRGUND [HSTRIBUTICN

Trog roagan s5a78 Croft Electrical
(314) 5286647

(800) 747-6647 CO ntraCto TS 7 I m. . 77 Portion of the art hall built in 1883.

A Rarry Luedloff 528 5143 CITY PARKS The grounds were divided more ar less info two
Sandra Topping g parcels. During the summer with the exception of fair
: 7/ Penny Frame EDNA GROFT MIKE BRADSHER DENNIS McVAY FAIRGROUNDS PARK {ime, the main use of the park was ball playing. The
PTRREQS‘-IJDEQ?)F ws%?g:‘zs;;%Em v:c%fgesmﬁm On March 9, 1893 the city of Troy purchased  east side of the park including the pond was fonced and

. . ¥, MO

from the Agricultural and Mechanical Fair Association  rented for pasture. Bids were taken for the rate of eent
the land used by them for their annwal fairs. This land  to be collected. The fence on the south stde dividing the
consisted of two parcets of land, oue containing 22 acres  park from the Clare property was an al{ board fence, and
and the other .56 acres. The city gave a down payment  in the winter months provided a source of fire wood for
of 9600 and the association gave a $700 payment to  the skaters. When spring arrived it often would be in
apply to the purchase price of the land. The balance was need of repak. In the winter time the privilege was given
secured by a Deed of Trust, The deed stated that the  to individuals to remove the ice from the pond fos stor-
land was for the use of the city as a public park under  age in private ice houses.

Ralph & Alice Coose
Century 21 Coose Realty
and

: the control and management of the Mayor and Board of When the City purchased the grounds the Fair
D ll 8 B b C Alderman. The Fair Association reserved the night and  Association had already buill the amphitheater and art
al'l'e ar 0 0 Se ; privilege of using the grounds for such length of me or hall. A portion of the art hall still stands, as the hexagon

bt B limes each vear as necessary for helding fairs or races  partof the building adjoining the shelter.
COOSG ConStrUCtlon Company therein, free of rent or charge. Seventy-five percent of As early as 1914 ladics of the Civic League

the net procoeds of all races ar fairs would be applied 1o appeared before the Board of Alderman and asked to
. the paymenl of the debt against the land until the debt have a walk of scrcening (gravel) built, also the Boerd

CongratUIateS TROY On the lr : was fully paid and then the city would receive 25% of  agroed to stend the expense of current for onc light if
1 7 5 th & n i Versa . the net proceeds of all fairs end rmoes. These funds were  the ladies would pay the cost of the pote. In 1920 ladies

to be used only for the purpose of improving and beauti-  from the same group asked that two more lights be
fying the grounds. If the managers of the fair should installed. Improvements continued to be made until the
fail fo hold or have a fair for three successive years, then  entire park was lighted for night lime activities,

- ’ o their right to do so would cease unless the Board of Summer baseball was a great atiraction and in
CALLUS AT: ol o b R | Aldermen granted or exiended ihe right, The fences ard 1920 the Troy Alk-Star Team was so great that manage-
Kh28-8941 c > E buildings of the ground would be kept up and repaired  ment of the St. Louis Cardinal's invited themselves to
/--._2] 0. Box 101 by managers of the Fair Associntion. On March 2, 1896 come to Tray and compete. When the game was playad

the city clerk was instructed to pay the balance of the  on October 15 the score of 10 to 0 was devastating (o
indehtedness due on the fairground. the local team. Pitching for Troy was Ernest Woolfolk,
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and catching was O Mars.

In 1917 because of world conditions it was
necessary for the faif to be discontinued until 1923. A
new ten year lease was written for & yearly rental fee
of $50.

in 1924 Mr. Bess Garret purchased and gave to
the city an adjoining acre of ground to be used for horse
stalls.

After the American Legion purchased ground
adjoining the park joint activites werg held. In 1935 the
City and Legion sponsored a three day picnic at the Fair
grounds on a 50/50 basis. The Board voted to let the
American Legion keep the entire $50.00 proceeds,

The road through the park is part of the old race
track. The only access to the park was from Monroe
Strect until late 1930°s wher the CCC boys built the
enfrance to Hwy 61. {(now South Linccln Drive}.
During this time they also cleared brush from the fence
rows and cleaned the pond with picks, shovels and
wheelbarrows.

Ir 1950 the boazd of aldermen voted to drain
and fill in the pond in order to make an additional ball
diamond. Mrs. Edgar Wolfolk stopped this single-hand-
edly when she came over and literally stood in front of
the bulidozer, thus stopping the praject. She sid that the
pond was the only nice thing about the park. Thanks to
Mrs. Woalfolk, we have the pond today with the fish,
ducks ard geese for evervone to enjoy.

in 1959 the board voted to improve park facili-
ties by adding barbecue pits. new picnic tables and
improving the playground equipment. In 1971 Harper
and Row donated two seis of bleachers at the Tittle
ball diamond and four more sets for the large dia-
mend,

As the population of Troy continued to increase
more space was needed for youth activities, In 1990,
using the funds from a hequest left by Mrs. Goldie
Brown, acreage adjeining the south side of the park was
acquired. This provides for the addition of two ball dia-
mands, a sand volleyball court, soccer fields and mare.
The ceremony dedicatiag the new sddition was a pars of
the officiai {993 Fourth of July celebration.

Mary activities have been held in the park,
There have been supervised playgrounds for summer
vacation, band concerts, Fourth of Tuly celebrations,
Easter egg hunts, tractor pulls, hotse shows, Khuory
Leugue activities, school ball games, small circuses, 4-H
exhibits, queen contests, and many others, but most
important, it is a place for family gatherings and recre-
ation.

AVERY FAMILY PLAYGROUND

In 1986 Senator Omer H. Avcry and his wife,
Elizabeth, donated to the city approximately seven
acres, focated at the intersection of Cap-au-Gris Street
and Lincolr Drive for use as a family picnic and play-
ground. The acreage was purchased by Omer H. Avery
Sr. andt Kate J. Avery from Rev. 1}, L. Gmdflcld in 1892
and kad been in the family ever singe.

The park is used as a playground for children
and picnic ground for familics, complete with children’s
playground equipment and tables for family picaies.
‘the playground was officially dedicated in June of
1988.

THIRD PARK

In 1992 three and three-fourths acres of land
was purchased on the west side of Troy for a new park.
Money for the purchase and land development will
come from the Clara Weinand estate. Preliminary plans
call for the construction of a picaic shelter, walking
paths and instaliment of small playground equipment.

CATASTROPHES

Frg on Maln Street, 1928,

Fires huve been a threat to all generations. The
early fires in Trov were fought with a bucker brigade.
The water was transferred from the reservoir from the
Spring. Mr. Mudd in his history tells of severat early
fires. 1t was in December of 1883, before daylight, that
the large three-story frame building, with a basement
urder it, the whole containing twenty-two rooms, owned
and used at the time by Mrs. Hutt as a boarding-house,
was consumed by fire. This house stood on Cellege
Street, neur tbe schoolhouse. It was erected in 1867, at
a cost of $8.000.

Om September 1, 1887, the Jackson property,
consisting of a wooden building, with iwo business
fronts and z dwelling in the rear, located on the west
side of Main Street, was consumed by fire. Holmes’
hardware was housed in one room and & millinery stock

was in the other business room. The contents of the
basinesses along with the houscheld goods of Mis.
Brickey, who oecupied the dwelling were completely
destroyed.

The Laclede Hotel, which stood o the east side
of Main-Street, and owned by . F. Boswell burned
down in February, 1888, The Colbert Hotel was oppo-
site it

The following is an account as given by the
TROY FREE PRESS of a Btc which occurred on June
17, 1888.;

“Tom (. Thomhiil, George Jackson, Vilmy Tice
and John Ellis were awakened about half past two
o*clock Sumday moming, in the front room over T.C.
Thomhill and Co.’s by a dense smoke that came up from
the rear of the lower story. They at once began  hasty



